
 
Page 1 of 4 

September 21, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

  
YOLANDA FORD  
Mayor 
 
VASHAUNDRA EDWARDS 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON  
Mayor Pro Tem 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 2 
 

 
                                                    the show me city 
 

CHERYL STERLING 
Councilmember District A 

  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  
 
Notice is hereby given of a meeting of the City Council of Missouri City to be held on Monday, September 
21, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. at: City Hall, Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, 
Texas, 77489, for the purpose of considering the following agenda items.  All agenda items are subject to 
action.  The City Council reserves the right to meet in a closed session on any agenda item should the need 
arise and if applicable pursuant to authorization by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code.   

 
 

NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Center for Disease Control's recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the public will not be allowed to be physically present at this meeting.   
 
The meeting will be available to members of the public and allow for two-way communications for those 
desiring to participate.  Any person interested in speaking on any item on the agenda must notify the City by 
one of the following methods before 4:00 p.m. on the day of the City Council meeting:   
 

1. Email or call the City Secretary at CSO@missouricitytx.gov or 281-403-8686; or,  
2. Submit a “Public Comment Form” to the City Secretary from the following webpage: 

https://bit.ly/39pw73Q. 
 

The request must include the speaker's name, address, email address, phone number and the agenda 
item number.  
 
To livestream the meeting, the public may access the following link: 
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/780/MCTV. 
 
To access the meeting agenda packet in PDF format, the public may access the following link: 
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/407/City-Council.   
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS  
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

An opportunity for the public to address City Council on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda-
-those wishing to speak must complete the orange comment card, present the comment card to the City 
Secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting, and observe a three-minute time limit. 

mailto:CSO@missouricitytx.gov
https://bit.ly/39pw73Q
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/780/MCTV
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/407/City-Council


 
Page 2 of 4 

September 21, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 

All consent agenda items listed are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a councilmember so requests; in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on 
the agenda.  Information concerning consent agenda items is available for public review. 

 
(a) Consider approving the minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of 

September 8, 2020.  (Proposed presenter: City Secretary Maria Jackson) 
 
(b) Consider an ordinance authorizing the extension of the City of Missouri City, Texas 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) to 2049; and consider the ordinance on the second 
and final reading.  (Proposed presenter: Assistant City Manager Bill Atkinson) 

 
(c) Consider an ordinance authorizing an amendment to the City of Missouri City, Texas 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) Project and Financing Plan; and consider the 
ordinance on the second and final reading.  (Proposed presenter: Assistant City Manager Bill 
Atkinson) 

 
(d) Consider an ordinance amending the City of Missouri City Personnel Policy; amending drug 

testing policies for certain employees; and consider the ordinance on the second and final 
reading.  (Proposed presenter: Director of Human Resources and Organizational 
Development Martin Russell) 

 
(e) Consider an ordinance authorizing the crediting of updated service credits in the Texas 

Municipal Retirement System for certain City of Missouri City employees; providing for 
increased annuities for certain City of Missouri City retirees and beneficiaries of deceased 
retirees; and consider the ordinance on the second and final reading.  (Proposed presenter: 
Director of Financial Services Allena Portis) 

 
(f) Consider authorizing the renewal of a depository contract.  (Proposed presenter: Director of 

Financial Services Allena Portis) 
 
(g) Consider authorizing a request for the waiver of penalty and interest.  (Proposed presenter: 

Director of Financial Services Allena Portis) 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTIONS  
(a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances  

(1) Consider an ordinance for a specific use permit authorizing the use of an approximate 
20-acre tract of land zoned as SD suburban district to provide for the development of 
a place of assembly for a proposed Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) 
elementary school site; and consider a related ordinance on the second and final 
reading. The subject site is located at the northeast corner of Knights Court and 
Thompson Ferry Road, north of Stonebrook at Riverstone, north and west of Elkins 
High School and east of the Creekstone Village at Riverstone residential subdivision.  
(Proposed presenter: Planning Manager Jennifer Thomas Gomez) 

 
(b) Public Hearings and related actions  

(1) Public hearing on the approval and adoption of the budget for the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021; and consider a related ordinance 



 
Page 3 of 4 

September 21, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

on the first and final reading.  (Proposed presenter: Director of Financial Services 
Allena Portis) 
 

(2) Public hearing to receive comments for or against an amendment to the strategic 
partnership agreements between the City of Missouri City, Texas, and Sienna 
Municipal Utility District Numbers 1, 5, 6, and 7, respectively, to provide for fire 
protection services.  (Proposed presenter: City Attorney E. Joyce Iyamu) 

 
(3) Public hearing to receive comments for or against an annexation for the limited 

purpose of providing fire protection services to Sienna Municipal Utility District 
Numbers 1, 5, 6, and 7, respectively.  (Proposed presenter: City Attorney E. Joyce 
Iyamu) 

 
8. APPOINTMENTS  

(a) Consider nominating and casting votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League 
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees.  (Proposed presenter: City 
Secretary Maria Jackson) 

 
9. AUTHORIZATIONS  

(a) Consider authorizing the corridor enhancements monument signs construction contract.  
(Proposed presenter: Director of Public Works Shashi Kumar) 

 
(b) Consider authorizing the purchase of air regulators.  (Proposed presenter: Fire Chief Eugene 

Campbell) 
 
(c) Consider authorizing the negotiation and execution of a bed maintenance contract.  

(Proposed presenters: Director of Parks and Recreation Jason Mangum and City 
Forester/Horticulturist Paul Wierzbicki) 

 
10. ORDINANCES 

(a) Consider an ordinance providing for the assessment, levy, and collection of ad valorem taxes 
for the City of Missouri City, Texas, for the tax year 2020 and for each year thereafter until 
otherwise provided; providing the date on which such taxes shall be due and timely paid; and 
authorizing an additional penalty for the collection of delinquent ad valorem taxes in lieu of 
recovering attorneys’ fees; and consider the ordinance on the first and final reading.  
(Proposed presenter: Director of Financial Services Allena Portis) 

 
11. RESOLUTIONS  

(a) Consider a resolution establishing certain programs to address the COVID-19 pandemic; 
authorizing the use of city funds for such programs.  (Proposed presenter: Assistant City 
Manager Bill Atkinson) 

 
(b) Consider a resolution amending the utility schedule of fees.  (Proposed presenters: Utilities 

Manager Todd Hoover and Director of Public Works Shashi Kumar) 
 
(c) Consider a resolution authorizing the city manager to negotiate and execute licenses for 

locating mobile food units (food trucks) on certain City of Missouri property.  (Proposed 
presenter: Assistant City Manager Glen Martel) 

 
12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Councilmembers, and 
City staff, for which no formal action will be discussed or taken. 

 



 
Page 4 of 4 

September 21, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 

13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The City Council may go into Executive Session regarding any item posted on the Agenda as 

authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
 

14. RECONVENE 
Reconvene into Regular Session and Consider Action, if any, on items discussed in Executive 

Session. 
 
15. ADJOURN 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Missouri City will provide for 
reasonable accommodations for persons attending City Council meetings.  To better serve you, 
requests should be received 24 hours prior to the meetings.  Please contact Maria Jackson, City 
Secretary, at 281.403.8686. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that a copy of the September 21, 2020, agenda of items to be considered by City Council was posted 
in a place convenient to the public in compliance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code on 
September 17, 2020, at 4:00 p.m.  
 
 

         
Maria Jackson, City Secretary 



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 21, 2020 

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS  
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

An opportunity for the public to address City Council on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda--
those wishing to speak must complete the orange comment card, present the comment card to the City Secretary 
prior to the beginning of the meeting, and observe a three-minute time limit. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

 
 

 
 



 
Page 1 of 4 

September 8, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

 
YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor 
 
VASHAUNDRA EDWARDS 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Mayor Pro Tem 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CHERYL STERLING 
Councilmember District A 

  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in special session on Monday, September 8, 2020, 
at the City Hall, Council Chamber, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 5:30 p.m. to 
consider the following.   
 
Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Center for Disease Control's recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the Mayor, City Council, City Staff members, and members of the public were not 
physically present during this meeting.  The meeting was made possible through the cloud-based video 
conferencing platform Zoom.   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ford called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Those also present: Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmembers Edwards, Sterling, Boney, Maroulis, and 
Emery; City Manager Jones, City Attorney Iyamu, City Secretary Jackson, Assistant City Manager Atkinson, 
Assistant City Manager Martel, Director of Financial Services Portis, Director of Communications Walker, 
Director of Public Works Kumar, Fire Chief Campbell, Emergency Management Coordinator Jewett, and 
Utilities Manager Hoover.  Also present:  Spurgeon Robinson of MPACT Strategic Consulting, LLC and John 
Hightower.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to take the closed executive session items out of order.  Councilmember 
Edwards seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
3. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
After proper notice was given pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council went into Executive 
Session at 5:33 p.m. 

 
(a) Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 – Consultation with attorney to seek or receive legal 

advice regarding pending or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or on a matter in which 
the duty of the attorney to the City under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act: Brazoria-Fort Bend 
Counties Municipal Utility District (MUD) No. 3. 

 
(b) Texas Government Code, Section 551.074 – Deliberations concerning the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee: the city attorney.   



 
Page 2 of 4 

September 8, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

4. RECONVENE  
 
At 6:41 p.m., City Council reconvened into open session.    
 
2. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION 

(a) Discuss staff’s recommendation and seek authorization from City Council to negotiate a 
contract for an operator for the Mustang Bayou and Steep Bank Service Areas, respectively.   

 
Director of Public Works Kumar stated the item was to solicit a new operator for the Mustang Bayou and 
Steep Bank Service Areas; and, he provided an overview on the background on the project.  Utilities Manager 
Hoover presented on how they arrived on their recommendations.   
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to authorize the City Manager or his representative to negotiate a revised 
contract with Quail Valley Utility District to continue the operation and maintenance of the Mustang Bayou 
Service Area.  Mayor Pro Tem Preston seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
(b) Presentation on the proposed Interfund Loan Policy.  

 
Director of Financial Services Portis presented on the proposed Interfund Loan Policy.  Mayor Ford asked 
the reason this had not been done before.  Portis stated she did not know; however, when she came onboard, 
she reviewed polices and believed they should have an Interfund Loan Policy to guide them in the future if 
needed.  Ford asked about the $420,000.  Portis stated it pertained to expenditures that exceeded the 
revenue during the last two-three fiscal years.  City Manager Jones explained it was due to the deficit from 
the Missouri City Recreation and Leisure Local Government Corporation (LGC).  He noted he prefers they 
establish an effective policy so that everyone understands the guidelines.  Ford asked why the funds were 
transferred over to close the gap.  Portis stated prior to 2017, the City transferred over funds to the LGC to 
be able to pay costs associated with maintenance.  Ford asked for the balance sheet from 2017 for LGC and 
to email them to City Council.   
 
Councilmember Sterling asked if they had an ethics policy relating to finance.  Jones stated internally they 
did not have a policy and were operating under the statutory guidelines.  City Attorney Iyamu noted the City 
does have a misconduct policy as it related to financial improprieties.  Iyamu stated she would email Sterling 
what the City has.   
 
Councilmember Emery commented on the LGC and noted they were trying to cover 97-98% of the funds 
due to COVID.  He noted there were a number of expenses paid by the LGC as it pertained to property that 
belonged to the City.  Emery noted the intent was to break even in profits.  Portis noted an LGC meeting was 
scheduled for September 21 and they would review the agreement with the LGC.  Ford asked that during 
the meeting they should also define the LGC, look into how it was formed and what was legally associated 
with the LGC.  Jones noted they might want to also discuss the contrasting differences with the LGC and the 
City.   
 
Councilmember Boney asked if by having the policy, would it ensure they address the issues of the LGC or 
were they just stating the policy was needed.  Jones stated the policy would allow them to establish how to 
officially conduct business between the two.  
 
At 7:17 p.m., City Council recessed the special meeting for the regular meeting.    



 
Page 3 of 4 

September 8, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

At 9:04 p.m., City Council reconvened into the special meeting.   
 

(c) Presentation of the Missouri City CARES Act survey.   
 
Fire Chief Campbell presented a CARES Act updated.  Emergency Management Coordinator Jewett 
presented on the Missouri City CARES Act survey results.  Spurgeon Robinson presented on the RMU 
prioritizations and what was needed in order to begin these programs in the City.  Mayor Ford wants them 
to make sure they were targeting Missouri City residents that fall within city limits.   

 
(d) Consider a report relating to the misuse of public, educational, and government (“PEG”) funds 

from the period of October 2018, through February 2019.  
 
City Manager Jones presented a report relating to the misuse of public, educational, and government (“PEG”) 
funds from the period of October 2018, through February 2019.  Jones stated he brought forth this agenda 
item as an item of concern.  Mayor Ford asked how much was spent on travel and to where.  Jones stated 
he would report to City Council once the investigation was complete but it was approximately $20,000, at 
this time, but may be more.   
 
Councilmember Emery asked if the investigation would reveal if the City received services that were paid for 
with the PEG funds.  Jones stated the information he has seen so far were that PEG funds were used for 
travel expenses.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis asked who tipped them to this particular finding.  Jones stated it popped up and 
they started reviewing such documents.   
 
Councilmember Boney asked why the documents could not be reviewed now.  City Attorney Iyamu stated 
records could be turned over to City Council depending on what the records were.  She noted if records had 
been turned over to the district attorney, they could be deemed confidential.   
 
Councilmember Boney asked how they decided on the consultant reviewing the documents and if the 
consultant position went out to bid.  Jones stated he and Director Portis reviewed consultants and decided 
the one chosen was the best fit.   
 
Councilmember Emery stated he would also like to review the documents provided to the district attorney’s 
office.  City Attorney Iyamu stated she would follow up.   
 
Mayor Ford asked if something could be put in place so that if staff was aware of something they were able 
to inform Council anonymously.  City Manager Jones stated he would come back to City Council with the 
measures on how to move funds from the general fund back to the PEG funds to ensure compliance with 
federal law.   
 

(e) Discuss a proposed ordinance relating to the use of City resources by councilmembers.  
 
City Attorney Iyamu stated Councilmember Boney requested the agenda item and she outlined the proposed 
ordinance as followings: 
 

• A prohibition on Councilmembers from granting or influencing the granting of any special 
consideration, advantage or favor to any person when acting in the official’s official capacity; 

• A prohibition on Councilmembers from making or using staff, vehicles, equipment, materials or 
property of the city in a manner that could violate V.T.C.A., Penal Code § 39.02(a)(2); and 

• Establishes an ethics commission to review complaints against Councilmembers. 
 



 
Page 4 of 4 

September 8, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

Councilmember Boney stated he felt the ordinance was needed to make sure the people who elect them into 
office also had a voice.  Councilmember Sterling would like staff to reach out to the Texas Municipal League 
on how other cities were doing this.   
 
Mayor Ford stated the county had an integrity unit to whom you may submit issues to; and she felt such 
services would be duplicated with the ordinance.   
 
Councilmember Sterling asked if anyone in the community could file a complaint.  Iyamu stated the complaint 
would have to be based on the items listed specifically for utilizing or influencing due to the capacity of the 
individual.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston asked if the item could go to the Ordinances, Resolutions, Elections and Council 
Governance Review Committee for discussion so it could be flushed out more and get a better 
understanding.  Councilmember Boney encouraged everyone on City Council to read it and make those 
recommendations known.   
 
Councilmember Sterling stated she would do her due diligence and would do a comparison analysis.  Jones 
noted internal staff was not currently looking into anything dealing with City Council.   
 
Councilmember Emery stated they should look at what they have and do some research on other cities were 
doing.  He believed an external entity was needed to review City operations, Mayor and Council and 
appointed officials.  Iyamu stated she would send out the policies and procedures from other cities to City 
Council.  
 
3. ADJOURN 

The special City Council meeting adjourned at 10:53 p.m.  
 
Minutes PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of September 2020. 
 
 
   
   
                                                                                                                                   
  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 

 



 
Page 1 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor 
 
VASHAUNDRA EDWARDS 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Mayor Pro Tem  
Councilmember at Large Position No. 2 
 

 
                                                    the show me city 

CHERYL STERLING 
Councilmember District A 

  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in regular session on Tuesday, September 8, 2020, 
at the City Hall, Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 7:00 p.m. 
to consider the following: 
 
Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Center for Disease Control's recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the Mayor, City Council, City Staff members, and members of the public were not 
physically present during this meeting.  The meeting was made possible through the cloud-based video 
conferencing platform Zoom.   
 
1. ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ford called the meeting to order at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Those also present: Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmembers Edwards, Sterling, Boney, Maroulis, and 
Emery; City Manager Jones, City Attorney Iyamu, and City Secretary Jackson.   
 
2. The PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Assistant City Manager Atkinson.   
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston proclaimed the month of September as “Cancer Awareness Month” in Missouri City, 
Texas.  Mayor Ford proclaimed the month of September as “National Preparedness Month” in Missouri City, 
Texas.   
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Bruce Zaborowski, 7915 Chancel, welcomed Odis Jones and Todd Hoover to Missouri City.  He addressed 
concerns regarding the MUDs and would like to know what was going on with the bridge in Fonmeadow.   
 
Zelda Dashiell, 1239 Birchstone Drive, addressed concerns regarding the CARES Act funds and how it 
would be distributed to residents.  
 
Traci Garner, 12811 Laleu Lane, discussed cancer awareness month and emergency preparedness.  She 
also discussed concerns with Laleu Lane and requested speed bumps, street lights, and child safety signs.   
 
There were no STAFF REPORTS. 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Consider approving the minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of August 
17, 2020.   

(b) Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 62, Municipal Court, of the Missouri City Code; 
providing duties for the presiding judge; and consider the ordinance on the second and final 
reading.  



 
Page 2 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

(c) Consider authorizing the City Manager to approve a contract for city-wide fire protection 
equipment services.   

(d) Consider authorizing an interlocal agreement with the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments for cooperative purchasing.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston moved to approve the Consent Agenda pursuant to recommendations by City Staff.  
Councilmember Edwards seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTIONS  

(a) Zoning Public Hearings and Ordinances  
(1) Public hearing to receive comments for or against a request for a specific use permit 

authorizing the use of an approximate 20-acre tract of land zoned as SD suburban 
district to provide for the development of a place of assembly for a proposed Fort Bend 
Independent School District (FBISD) elementary school site; and consider a related 
ordinance on the first of two readings. The subject site is located at the northeast 
corner of Knights Court and Thompson Ferry Road, north of Stonebrook at Riverstone, 
north and west of FBISD Elkins High School and east of Creekstone Village at 
Riverstone residential subdivision.  

 
Planning Manager Thomas Gomez presented an overview on the request for a specific use permit 
authorizing the use of an approximate 20-acre tract of land zoned as SD suburban district to provide for the 
development of a place of assembly for a proposed Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) 
elementary school site.  Councilmember Maroulis spoke over parking and traffic concerns on Knights Road. 
He also noted they needed to reach out to the residents nearby.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to open the public hearing at 7:57 p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem Preston seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
Councilmember Emery expressed parking and traffic concerns.  Mayor Ford asked if staff could address 
these concerns.  Director of Public Works Kumar stated they asked for and received a traffic impact analysis 
and staff were reviewing it.  Kumar stated they were also looking at future growth and potential traffic in the 
area.  He added they would also look into the sidewalk issue or the lack thereof.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis asked if they could look into opening up the notification process to expand the 250-
foot radius therefore capturing more residents.  Gomez stated the City does not provide notification outside 
of the city limits and that was what happened with this request.  Councilmember Maroulis would like to see 
the City do something beyond their means.  Gomez stated they would look into how it could be accomplished.   
 
Councilmember Emery stated he noticed architectural samples and asked if these were to blend in well to 
the adjacent properties.  Gomez stated they would not enforce much on materials, and from what was 
presented, the structure should be comparable with what currently exists in the area. 
 
Mayor Ford stated the City received a request to speak before City Council for agenda item 7a1.   



 
Page 3 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Kali Shiller, 4607 Red Hawk Court, spoke about traffic concerns brought up during the August 12, 2020, 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.   
 
Timothy Barnes, the architect of Design Team, addressed the traffic concerns and recognized the 
challenges.  He noted the proposal would make the traffic come in through Thompson Ferry and wrap around 
the school, allowing more stacking to take place onsite and not on the street.  Councilmember Maroulis 
asked if they anticipated stacking on the street during pick-up times.  Barnes stated the design would 
accommodate double stacking along the circular drive with the intent to get them off Thompson Ferry as fast 
as possible.   
 
Mahesh Dutta, the engineer of Design Team, also addressed the double stacking.  He stated the stacking 
length required was 900 feet but the double stacking would double the length.  In addition, Dutta noted they 
would have an exclusive left turn lane on Thompson Ferry.  Maroulis asked what the measurements 
pertained to.  Dutta stated they pertained to the length of the roadway. 
 
Mayor Ford asked how many cars would be able to be double stacked in the winding roadway.  Kiran Ravi, 
with Design Team, stated they count the number of cars they anticipate for the PQ lane and multiply by 15-
20 feet depending on the car storage length.   
 
Director of Public Works Kumar stated staff would research the number of cars that can be stack and provide 
it to City Council in an email later this week.  Maroulis addressed the opportunity to improve the corridor.  
Dutta stated they could accommodate 80 cars double stacked.   
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to close the public hearing at 8:15 p.m.  Councilmember Maroulis 
seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
Councilmember Emery moved to approve the ordinance.  Councilmember Edwards seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
(b) Public Hearings and related actions  

(1) Public hearing to receive comments for or against the extension of the City of Missouri 
City, Texas Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) to 2049; and consider a related 
ordinance on the first of two readings.  

 
Assistant City Manager Atkinson presented on the New Quest Development agreement.  The public hearing 
was to consider extending the life of the term with Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) to 2049. 
 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to open the public hearing at 8:18 p.m.  Councilmember Boney seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  



 
Page 4 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Nays:  None 
 
With no public comments, Councilmember Maroulis moved to close the public hearing at 8:19 p.m.  
Councilmember Edwards seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
Councilmember Boney moved to approve the ordinance.  Councilmember Maroulis seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(2) Public hearing to receive comments for or against an amendment to the City of 
Missouri City, Texas Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) Project and Financing 
Plan; and consider a related ordinance on the first of two readings. 

 
Councilmember Edwards moved to open the public hearing at 8:21 p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem Preston seconded.  
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
With no public comments, Councilmember Edwards moved to close the public hearing at 8:21 p.m.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Preston seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
Councilmember Boney moved to approve the ordinance.  Councilmember Emery seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
There were no APPOINTMENTS.  
 
9. AUTHORIZATIONS  

(a) Consider authorizing the purchase of four new police vehicles.  
 



 
Page 5 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Captain Poulton presented on the purchase of four new police vehicles.  Councilmember Edwards asked 
about the lifespan for a vehicle utilized by the Police Department.  Poulton stated they last about seven years, 
depending on wear and tear. 
 
Councilmember Emery moved authorize to the purchase of four new police vehicles.  Councilmember 
Maroulis.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(b) Consider authorizing the replacement of two totaled patrol vehicles.   
 
Fleet Superintendent Tubbs presented on the replacement of two totaled patrol vehicles.  He noted the 
accidents were not the fault of the city, which were then reimbursed through the Texas Municipal League. 
 
Councilmember Emery moved to authorize the replacement of two totaled patrol vehicles.  Councilmember 
Maroulis seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(c) Consider authorizing the execution of an amendment to the participation agreement with Fort 
Bend County for City of Missouri City, Texas Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2).   

 
Assistant City Manager Atkinson presented on the New Quest Development agreement.   
 
Councilmember Boney moved to authorize the execution of an amendment to the participation agreement 
with Fort Bend County for City of Missouri City, Texas Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2).  
Councilmember Edwards seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(d) Consider authorizing the acceptance of a deed conveying certain land for the construction, 
maintenance and operation of Fire Station No. 6 from Palmetto/WIHA FB107, LP, a Texas 
limited partnership, pursuant to the grantor’s development agreement with the City.   
 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer Kumar stated the deed pertained to Fire Station No. 6 and the 
developer would dedicate land with no cost pursuant to an existing agreement.   
 
Councilmember Emery moved to authorize the acceptance of a deed conveying certain land for the 
construction, maintenance and operation of Fire Station No. 6 from Palmetto/WIHA FB107, LP, a Texas 
limited partnership, pursuant to the grantor’s development agreement with the City.  Councilmember Boney 
seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 



 
Page 6 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(e) Consider authorizing the city manager to execute the CARES Act Interlocal Agreement with 
Harris County.   

 
Fire Chief Campbell presented on the CARES Act Interlocal Agreement with Harris County.  Councilmember 
Emery requested the amount Harris County was allotting to the City.  Campbell stated it was $345,015.  
Councilmember Boney asked if there were any restrictions on the funds.  Campbell stated they could be 
used for PPE, mortgage rental assistance program and a couple more that they would present during the 
survey presentation.   
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to authorize the city manager to execute the CARES Act Interlocal 
Agreement with Harris County.  Councilmember Sterling seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(f) Consider authorizing the city manager to negotiate and execute an agreement for grant 
program services.  

 
Assistant City Manager Atkinson presented on the grant program services.   
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to authorize city manager to negotiate and execute an agreement for grant 
program services.  Councilmember Maroulis seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 

Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
10. ORDINANCES 

(a) Consider an ordinance amending the City of Missouri City Personnel Policy; amending drug 
testing policies for certain employees; and consider the ordinance on the first of two readings.   

 
Director of Human Resources and Organizational Development Russell stated the amendment would 
enhance the program they have. Councilmember Maroulis asked the reason for the amendment.  Russell 
stated the amendment should have been in the policy and by not having it made the policy outdated.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to adopt the ordinance.  Councilmember Sterling seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 

(b) Consider an ordinance authorizing the crediting of updated service credits in the Texas 
Municipal Retirement System for certain City of Missouri City employees; providing for 



 
Page 7 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

increased annuities for certain City of Missouri City retirees and beneficiaries of deceased 
retirees; and consider the ordinance on the first of two readings.   

 
Councilmember Edwards moved to adopt the ordinance.  Councilmember Sterling seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
11. RESOLUTIONS  

(a) Consider a resolution granting consent to Brazoria-Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility 
District No. 3 to annex approximately 96.11 acres of land situated, in part, within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Missouri City.  

 
Councilmember Edwards moved to approve the resolution.  Councilmember Boney seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
(b) Consider a resolution amending the City’s Financial Policy by adding an interfund loan policy.  

 
Director of Financial Services Portis presented on the transferring of funds in an interfund loan policy. 
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to approve the resolution.  Councilmember Emery seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
(c) Consider a resolution authorizing the city manager to execute a contract with Valley View 

Consulting for investment advisory services.   
 
Councilmember Edwards moved to approve the resolution.  Councilmember Sterling seconded.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston thanked City Council for the opportunity to proclaim September as “Cancer 
Awareness Month” and thanked MD Anderson and Dr. Greg Kaufman for participating.  He also thanked the 
City’s frontline workers for their dedication and improving the quality of life for Missouri City’s residents.   
 



 
Page 8 of 8 

September 8, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Councilmember Edwards thanked Mayor Pro Tem Preston for bringing awareness.  She reminded everyone 
to volunteer for Park Clean-up Day at Hunters Glen Park on September 12.   
 
Councilmember Sterling thanked Mayor Pro Tem Preston for bringing awareness.  She thanked Mayor Ford, 
City Manager Jones, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, the Communications Department, and Harvest market for the 
partnership during the market mobile in District A.   
 
Councilmember Boney stated he participated in a prayer walk for peace this past Sunday.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis reminded everyone to remember all those impacted by September 11.   
 
Councilmember Emery sent prayers to the families affected by September 11.   
 
Mayor Ford thanked Harvest Market for responding to the pandemic and issues of availability of food to 
certain areas of the City.  She noted they would resume activities after November 3 and would visit other 
districts in the City.   
 
13. ADJOURN 

The regular City Council meeting adjourned at 9:04 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of September 2020. 
 
   
   
                                                                                                                                   
  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Items:    6(b)  Consider an ordinance authorizing the extension of the City of Missouri City, Texas 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) to 2049; and consider a related ordinance on 
the second and final reading.   

  
Submitted by: Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager  

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Consider an ordinance authorizing the extension of the City of Missouri City, Texas Reinvestment Zone 
Number Two (TIRZ 2) to 2049; and consider a related ordinance on the second and final reading.   
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
• Maintain a financially sound City 
• Grow business investments in Missouri City 
• Have quality development through buildout  

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The City has been working with the NewQuest Properties on the development Fort Bend Town Center II at 
the intersection of Fort Bend Toll Road and Highway 6 for nearly two years.  The city, the TIRZ and developer 
have entered into a number of related incentive agreements in furtherance of this project. As a part of this 
effort, the city and developer anticipated modifying the existing TIRZ project plan and plan of finance as well 
as extending the life of the TIRZ until 2049.  Fort Bend County and the board of TIRZ #2 have already taken 
their necessary actions to approve amendments to the project plan and plan of finance as we extend the life 
of the TIRZ. 
 
The city is required to hold a public hearing as a part of their approval of amending the project plan and plan 
of finance as well as extending the life of the TIRZ.  The purpose of this agenda item is to hold the required 
public hearing relating to the extension of the life of the TIRZ and consider approval of the ordinance.  
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
During FY 2020 (as of September 1, 2020), TIRZ 2 received $2,775,721    in tax increment revenue.  This 
includes $769,201 from Fort Bend County and $2,006,521 from the City of Missouri City.  Assuming assessed 
values and tax rates remain the same throughout the life of the TIRZ, the 20-year period covered by the 
extension will provide at least $55 million in tax increment revenue to be utilized within the zone. 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 



1.  Ordinance 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of ordinance extending the life of TIRZ #2 until 2049. 
 
Director Approval:   Bill Atkinson 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Odis Jones, City Manager  
 



TIRZ 2 Term Extension Ordinance.docx  Page 1 of 2 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY, TEXAS, EXTENDING THE TERM OF REINVESTMENT ZONE 
NUMBER TWO, CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS; CONTAINING 
FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE FOREGOING 
SUBJECT;  AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City ("City") pursuant to the 

provisions of Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code, created Reinvestment Zone Number Two, 
City of Missouri City, Texas (the "Zone") by Ordinance No. O-99-43, adopted on August 
2, 1999; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. O-99-43 provides that the Zone will terminate on 

December 31, 2029; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City may extend the term of the Zone pursuant to Section 311.007 

of the Texas Tax Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2020, the Board of Directors for the Zone met and 

recommended approving agreements that contemplate the extension of the term of the 
Zone; and 

  
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extending the term of the Zone is in the best 

interest of the Zone and will provide sufficient time for the completion and financing of the 
improvements proposed in the Zone’s project plan and financing plan (the “Plan”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, after public notice thereof was given in accordance with the law, on 
September 8, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing, at which property 
owners and other interested persons were allowed to speak, on the extension of the term 
of the Zone; and 
 
 WHEREAS, evidence was received and presented at the public hearing on 
extending the term of the Zone; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council further finds that extending the term of the Zone is in 
accordance with Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code and the Zone’s plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City now desires to extend the term of the Zone; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The findings and recitals contained in the preamble of this Ordinance 

are hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this 
Ordinance for all purposes. 



TIRZ 2 Term Extension Ordinance.docx  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Section 2. The City, acting under and in accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code, including Section 311.007, hereby extends the term of 
Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Missouri City, Texas, to December 31, 2049. 

 
Section 3. The term of the Zone shall be extended as of the effective date of 

this Ordinance. 
 
Section 4.  Repeal. Any ordinance or any part of an ordinance in conflict 

herewith shall be and is hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 5. Severability. If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance, or the application of same to any person or set of 
circumstances is for any reason be held to be unconstitutional, void or invalid, the validity 
of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby, it being the 
intent of the City Council in adopting this Ordinance that no portion hereof or provision or 
regulation contained herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any 
unconstitutionally, voidness or invalidity of any other portion hereof, and all provisions of 
this Ordinance are declared to be severable for that purpose. 

 
Section 6. The City Council officially finds, determines, recites and declares that 

a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of this meeting of the City 
Council was posted at a place convenient to the public for the time required by law 
preceding this meeting, as required by the Open Meetings Law, TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., 
Ch. 551; and that this meeting was open to the public as required by law, during which 
time, this Ordinance and the subject matter thereof was discussed, considered and acted 
upon.  The City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and 
the contents and posting thereof. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 8th day of September, 2020. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 21st day 
of September, 2020. 
       

 __________________________ 
 Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Items: 6(c)  Consider an ordinance authorizing an amendment to the City of Missouri City, Texas 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two (TIRZ 2) Project and Financing Plan; and consider a 
related ordinance on the second and final reading.   

  
Submitted by: Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Consider an ordinance authorizing an amendment to the City of Missouri City, Texas Reinvestment Zone 
Number Two (TIRZ 2) Project and Financing Plan; and consider a related ordinance on the second and final 
reading.   
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
• Maintain a financially sound City 
• Grow business investments in Missouri City 
• Have quality development through buildout  

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The City has been working with the NewQuest Properties on the development Fort Bend Town Center II at 
the intersection of Fort Bend Toll Road and Highway 6 for nearly two years.  The city, the TIRZ and developer 
have entered into a number of related incentive agreements in furtherance of this project. As a part of this 
effort, the city and developer anticipated modifying the existing TIRZ project plan and plan of finance as well 
as extending the life of the TIRZ until 2049.  Fort Bend County and the board of TIRZ #2 have already taken 
their necessary actions to approve amendments to the project plan and plan of finance as we extend the life 
of the TIRZ. 
 
The city is required to hold a public hearing as a part of their approval of amending the project plan and plan 
of finance as well as extending the life of the TIRZ.  The purpose of this agenda item is to hold the required 
public hearing relating to the amendment to the TIRZ project plan and plan of finance and consider approval 
of the associated ordinance. 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
During FY 2020 (as of September 1, 2020), TIRZ 2 received $2,775,721    in tax increment revenue.  This 
includes $769,201 from Fort Bend County and $2,006,521 from the City of Missouri City.  Assuming assessed 
values and tax rates remain the same throughout the life of the TIRZ, the 20-year period covered by the 
extension will provide at least $55 million in tax increment revenue to be utilized for projects included in the 
zone’s project plan. 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services  



 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Ordinance  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approving amendment to the TIRZ #2 project plan and plan of finance. 
 
Director Approval:   Bill Atkinson  
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Odis Jones, City Manager 
 



TIRZ 2 Plan Amendment Ordinance 2020.docx  Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED 
PROJECT PLAN AND REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
FOR REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY; AUTHORIZING THE CITY SECRETARY TO DISTRIBUTE 
SUCH PLAN; CONTAINING FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City (“City”) pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code, created Reinvestment Zone 
Number Three, City of Missouri City (the “Zone”) by Ordinance No. O-99-43, 
adopted on August 2, 1999; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Zone adopted and recommended 
and the City approved the Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
(the “Plan”) for the Zone by Ordinance No. O-99-49, adopted on August 16, 1999; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Zone adopted and recommended 
and the City approved amendments to the Plan for the Zone by Ordinance No. O-
08-47, adopted on August 18, 2008; and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Zone adopted 

the Second Amended and Restated Plan for the Zone (the “Second Amended and 
Restated Plan”) and recommended the approval of the Second Amended and 
Restated Plan by the City Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, after public notice thereof was given in accordance with the 
law, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed Second 
Amended and Restated Plan, at which property owners and other interested 
persons were allowed to speak; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code authorizes amendments 
to the Plan; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to amend the Plan by the adoption of the 
Second Amended and Restated Plan; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 



TIRZ 2 Plan Amendment Ordinance 2020.docx  Page 2 of 2 
 

 Section 1. The findings and recitals contained in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted 
as part of this Ordinance for all purposes. 
 
 Section 2. The Plan is hereby amended to reflect the Second Amended 
and Restated Plan shown as Exhibit “A” attached hereto.  The Second Amended 
and Restated Plan is determined to be feasible and is approved.  The appropriate 
officials of the City are authorized to take all steps reasonably necessary to 
implement the Second Amended and Restated Plan.  
 
 Section 3. The City Secretary is directed to provide copies of the Second 
Amended and Restated Plan to each taxing unit levying ad valorem taxes in 
Reinvestment Zone Number Two.   
 
 Section 4. Repeal. All ordinances and resolutions or parts of ordinances 
and resolutions, if any, in conflict herewith, shall be and are hereby expressly 
repealed to the extent of such conflict only. 
 

Section 5. Severability. If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or the application of same to any person or set 
of circumstances is for any reason be held to be unconstitutional, void or invalid, 
the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall not be affected 
thereby, it being the intent of the City Council in adopting this Ordinance that no 
portion hereof or provision or regulation contained herein shall become inoperative 
or fail by reason of any unconstitutionally, voidness or invalidity of any other portion 
hereof, and all provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable for that 
purpose. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 8th day of September, 2020. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 21st 
day of September, 2020. 
 
       

 __________________________ 
 Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 

 



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  1 

                         REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, 
CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS 

 

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED PROJECT 

PLAN 
AND 

 
REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 10, 2020 
 

1999 Plan Prepared by: 
Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP  

Staff of the City of Missouri City 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  2 

Executive Summary 
 
This Second Amended and Restated Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing 
Plan (the “Plan”) has been prepared to provide for the proposed extension of the duration 
of Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Missouri City, Texas (the “Zone”), and to 
address future development that may be located in the Zone. The Zone includes areas 
slated for future commercial development along State Highway 6 in order to assist those 
areas with public infrastructure costs.  
 

 
 

The plan adopted in 1999 is contained within this amended plan. If an extension of the 
Zone is authorized, the Zone will terminate in 2049. The City of Missouri City currently 
participates at 100% of its tax rate for the full term of the Zone, and Fort Bend County 
participates at 50% of a portion of its tax rate until termination. The Fort Bend Independent 
School District does not currently participate in the Zone, but FBISD has been included 
in the Plan should it desire to participate in the future. 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  3 

 

PROJECT PLAN 
OVERVIEW 
The City of Missouri City created Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Missouri City, 
Texas (Vicksburg Reinvestment Zone - the “Zone”). This document constitutes the Project 
Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan as required by Chapter 311, Texas Tax 
Code. The purpose of the Zone is to provide for the design and construction of regional 
water, wastewater, drainage facilities and other specific public improvement project costs 
in order to facilitate the development of new residential and commercial properties where 
such infrastructure is absent and where residential and commercial development would 
not occur “but for” the creation of such a zone.  
 
Based on the City’s analysis, the Zone meets the criteria for designation as a tax 
increment reinvestment zone, under Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code. Use of a zone for the 
Zone’s projects will help to level the playing field with extraterritorial (“ETJ”) MUDs and 
will encourage in-fill growth within the City’s fringe areas, for the reasons listed below: 
 

 If the City fails to provide alternative infrastructure financing, it will continue to lose 
growth in the tax base it would otherwise enjoy; and 
 

 Parts of the Zone consist of predominantly vacant and open property and are void 
of any substantial supporting infrastructure that would support development in the 
area. 
 

The property in the Zone will not reach its highest and best use because of the above 
prevailing conditions. The City believes that a public/private partnership is necessary 
because development in the Zone will not occur through private investment in the 
reasonably foreseeable future without the funding options afforded by the Zone. 
 
Creation of the Zone accommodates and promotes long-term comprehensive and 
regional infrastructure planning that will affect a much larger area than property located 
within the Zone.  

 
In addition, the Zone can assist the city to promote and affect long-term comprehensive 
regional urban/land planning. This master plan concept would facilitate a higher and 
better use of the land through planned development resulting in higher property values 
and higher tax revenues on an accelerated basis.  
 

ZONE AREA 
The City of Missouri City enlarged the Zone in 2004 by Ordinance No. O-04-46, in 2005 
by Ordinance No. O-05-39, in 2008 by Ordinance No. O-08-47, and in 2011 by Ordinance 
No. O-11-10 in accordance with Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code (the “Enlargement 
Area”).  

 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  4 

OVERVIEW OF NEW PROJECT 
With the proposed extension of the Zone until 2049, the Zone intends to provide 
reimbursement opportunities for the development of public infrastructure for commercial 
developments, such as the Fort Bend Parkway – Highway 6 Theater and Retail Center 
(the “FBP Project”).  
 

EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS 
The Zone includes approximately 2,412 acres. Parts of the Zone are vacant and open 
property and are void of any substantial supporting infrastructure that would support 
development in the area. 
 
The boundaries of the Zone are shown on the attached map. The Zone encompasses the 
north and south sides of Highway 6, with a majority of the land being on the north side. 
The Zone also encompasses the Fort Bend Toll Road.  
 

MAPS 
Map 1 - Initial boundary of the Zone 
Map 2 - Initial existing uses and conditions of the property located within the Zone 
Map 3 - Initial proposed land uses within the Zone 
Map 4 - Initial proposed public improvements to the property within the Zone  
Map 1.A - 2008 boundaries of the Zone 
Map 2.A - Enlargement Area 
Map 3.A - 2008 land use of the property within the Zone 
Map 4.A - Proposed land uses within the Zone in 2008 
Map 1.B - Current 2020 boundary of the Zone 
Map 2.B - Current 2020 existing uses and conditions of the property located within the 
Zone 
Map 3.B - Proposed land uses within the Zone 
Map 4.B - Proposed public improvements to the FBP Project property within the Zone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  5 

I. PROPOSED CHANGES OF ZONING ORDINANCES , THE MASTER PLAN OF 
THE CITY, BUILDING CODES, AND OTHER MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES 

 
All construction shall be done in conformance with existing building code regulations of 
the City of Missouri City. There are no proposed changes of any city ordinance, master 
plan, or building codes.    
 

 
II. LIST OF ESTIMATED NON-PROJECT COST ITEMS  

 
Zone non-project costs include those development items that will be funded by a Public 
Improvement District (PID) and the Developer for which no tax increment reimbursement 
is expected. These non- project development items and their associated costs are shown 
in Table A, A.1, A.2. The FBP Project will not receive PID funding. 
 

Table A  
Non-Project Costs Through 2008 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Non-Project Items         Estimated Cost 
PID COSTS   
Water, Wastewater, Storm Sewer  
Detention 
Public Entryways 
Landscape/Streetscape  
                                   Sub-total PID Costs  

$18,400,000 
2,600,000 

600,000 
750,000 

$22,350,000 
 

Developers 
      Street Paving  
      Development Costs  
      Design & Contingency 
      Fees 
                       Sub-total Developer Costs 
 
 
 
 

 
$7,360,000 

920,000 
1,840,000 

650,000 
$10,770,000  

Total Non- Project Costs $33,120,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  6 

Table A.1  
Enlargement Area Non-Project Costs  

 _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Non-Project Items         Estimated Cost 
PID COSTS   
Water, Wastewater, Storm Sewer  
Detention 
Engineering and Contingency 
Capacity Charges 
 
                                   Sub-total PID Costs  

 
$6,080,000 

1,216,000 
1,920,000 

 
$9,216,000 

Developers 
      Street Paving  
      Landscaping  
      Design & Contingency 
       
                       Sub-total Developer Costs 

 
$5,120,000 

600,000 
1,144,000 

 
$6,864,000  

Total Non- Project Costs $16,080,000 
 

 
Table A.2  

FBP Project Non-Project Costs  
 _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Non-Project Items         Estimated Cost 
PID COSTS   
N/A 
 
                                   Sub-total PID Costs  

 
 

$0 
Developer 
   Civil Design Fees, Geotechnical,        
   Materials Testing, and Engineering 
   Legal   
   Consulting 
   Financial Advising 
   Easements and Right of Way      
   Dedication 
       
                       Sub-total Developer Costs 

 
 

$767,637 
65,000 
75,000 
10,000 

 
400,000 

 
$1,317,617 

Total Non- Project Costs $1,317,617 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  7 

III.  STATEMENT OF METHOD OF RELOCATING PERSONS TO BE DISPLACED 
AS A RESULT OF IMPLEMENTING THE PLAN 

 
The subject property is vacant and there will be no displacement of residents.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  8 

REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 

I. A DETAILED LIST DESCRIBING THE ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS OF 
THE ZONE, INCLUDING ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND A 
STATEMENT LISTING THE KIND, NUMBER, AND LOCATION OF ALL 
PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS OR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN THE ZONE 

 
Table B lists the initial estimated project costs for the Zone. It is anticipated that the 
Developers will advance funds for the public improvements and will be reimbursed as 
provided in separate agreements and other documentation between the Developers, the 
City, the Development Authority and the Zone.  
 
It is anticipated that the total project costs will include financing costs associated with the 
projects. Line item amounts may be adjusted with approval of the Zone Board of Directors, 
as long as total project costs do not exceed the Financing Plan Budget.  
 
It was initially anticipated that the Fort Bend Independent School District (the “District”) 
would expend approximately $106 million for education related project costs.  
 

TABLE B 
Initial Estimated Zone Project Costs  

Non – Education Project Items      Estimated Costs 
Public Works To Support Business Development 
   Water Sewage and Drainage  
   Paving and Sidewalks 
   Street Lighting 
   Landscape/Streetscape 
   Related Improvements 
   Engineering Design & Contingency 
                                               
                                            Sub-total 

 
 

$9,585, 000 
6,390,000 

250,000 
1,200,000 
1,742,000 
2,400,000 

$21,567,000 
Trammel- Fresno (Hillcroft to City Limits)  
     Water Sewer and Drainage 
     Paving and Sidewalks 
     Street Lighting 
    Landscape/ Streetscape 
    Related Improvements 
    Engineering Design & Contingency  
                                             
                                              Sub-total 

 
$1,159,000 

1,357,000 
32,000 

139,000 
63,000 

687,000 
                                                  
                              $3,437,000 
                     

Hillcroft Extension (To Lake Olympia Parkway) 
   Water Sewer and Drainage  
   Paving and Sidewalks 
   Street Lighting 

 
$623,000 
810,000 

17,000 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  9 

   Landscape/Streetscape 
   Related Improvements 
   Engineering Design & Contingency 
                                               Sub-Total 

74,000 
62,000 

476,000 
$2,062,000 

Lake Olympia Parkway Extension (Village Brook to Proposed 
Tollway) 
   Water Sewer and Drainage 
   Paving and Sidewalks  
   Street Lighting 
   Landscape/Streetscape 
   Related Improvements  
   Engineering Design & Contingency  
                                                Sub-Total 

 
 

$775,000 
1,008,000 

22,000 
93,000 
67,000 

732,000 
$2,697,000 

Business Park Road (Hillcroft to Proposed FT. Bend Tollway) 
   Water Sewer and Drainage  
   Paving and Sidewalks  
   Street Lighting 
   Landscape/Streetscape  
   Related Improvements  
   Engineering Design & Contingency  
                                               Sub-Total 

 
 

$643,000 
731,000 

18,000 
77,000 
46,000 

379,000 
$1,894,000 

Connector to Highway 6  
   Water Sewer and Drainage  
   Paving and Sidewalks  
   Street Lighting  
   Landscape/Streetscape  
   Related Improvements  
   Engineering Design & Contingency  
                                               Sub-Total 

 
$367,000 
452,000 

10,000 
41,000 
48,000 

382,000 
$1,300,000 

Other Project Costs  
   Financing Costs  
   Creation and Administration Costs for the Life of the Zone 
                                                
                                               Sub-Total 

 
$37,901,000 

162,000 
 

$38,063,000 
Total $70,858,000 

 
 

Education Project Items       Estimated Costs____ 
Costs associated with the construction, 
reconstruction, repair or renovation of 
educational facilities 

$106,009, 865 

TOTAL $106,009, 865 
 

 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  10 

I.A A DETAILED LIST DESCRIBING THE ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS OF THE 
ZONE, INCLUDING ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND A STATEMENT 
LISTING THE KIND, NUMBER, AND LOCATION OF ALL PROPOSED PUBLIC 
WORKS OR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN THE ENLARGEMENT AREA  

 
Table B.1 lists the estimated project costs for the Enlargement Area. It is anticipated that 
developers will advance funds for the public improvements and will be reimbursed as 
provided in separate agreements and other documentation between the developers, the 
City, the Development Authority and the Zone.  
 
It is anticipated that the total project costs will include financing costs associated with the 
projects. Line item amounts may be adjusted with approval of the Zone Board of Directors, 
as long as total project costs do not exceed the Financing Plan Budget. 
 
It was anticipated that the District would expend approximately $23.7 million for education 
related project costs. The District would retain that portion of its tax rate levied for debt 
service.  
 

TABLE B.1 
Estimated Zone Project Costs for the  Enlargment Area 

 
Non- Education Project Items Estimated Cost  
Public Works To Support Business 
Development  

 
   Water Sewage and Drainage  
   Thoroughfare Paving  
   Landscape/Streetscape 
   Engineering Design & Contingency 
   Capacity Charges 

                                       Sub-Total 
 

 
 
 

$2,355,612 
640,036 
250,000 
649,130 

1,931,338 
$5,826,116 

 
 

Other Project Costs 
   Financing Costs  
   Creation and Administration Costs for the Life of the    
   Zone  
                                                      Sub-Total 
  

 
$6,292,205 

100,000 
$6,392,205 

 

TOTAL $12,218,321 
Education Project Items                  Estimated Cost 
Costs associated with the construction, reconstruction, 
repair or renovation of educational facilities 

$23,729,648 

TOTAL  $23,729,648 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  11 

I.B A DETAILED LIST DESCRIBING THE ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS OF THE 
ZONE, INCLUDING ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND A STATEMENT 
LISTING THE KIND, NUMBER, AND LOCATION OF ALL PROPOSED PUBLIC 
WORKS OR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE FBP PROJECT  

 
Table B.2 lists the estimated project costs for the FBP Project. It is anticipated that 
Developers will advance funds for the public improvements and will be reimbursed as 
provided in separate agreements between the developers, the City, the Development 
Authority and the Zone.  
 
Line item amounts may be adjusted with approval of the Zone Board of Directors, as long 
as total project costs do not exceed the Financing Plan Budget for the FBP Project. 
 
It is anticipated that the District will not expend any funds for education related project 
costs. 
 

TABLE B.2 
Estimated Zone Project Costs for the Fort Bend Parkway – Highway 6 Theater and 

Retail Center Project (“FBP Project”) 
 

Non- Education Project Items                         
Estimated Cost  

Public Works To Support Business Development  
 

   Public Water, Fire Loop for Public Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer,      
   And Drainage Related Items  
   Thoroughfare Paving and Access Drives to Public Facilities  
   Engineering Design, Materials Inspection, & Construction Services    
   Capacity Charges 

                                       Sub-Total 
 

 
 
 

$2,650,547 
                      420,000 

767,637 
800,000 

$4,638,1841 
 

 
 

II. THE INITIAL ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS TO BE 
INCURRED  

  
The initial estimated amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred by the Zone, 
including both principal and interest, was approximately $70.9 million. 

 
 
 

                                                 
1 The estimated public construction costs for the FBP Project exceed the maximum amount authorized by the City for 
reimbursement. Notwithstanding the actual amount of the cost for public construction, the maximum amount that may 
be provided by the City and the Zone shall be the amount set forth in a separate agreement between the developer, the 
City, the Development Authority, and the Zone.   

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  12 

II.A.        THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS TO BE  
INCURRED FOR THE ENLARGEMENT AREA  

 
The estimated amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred by the Zone for the 
Enlargement Area, including both principal and interest, was approximtely $12.2 million.  

 
II.B THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS TO BE  

INCURRED FOR THE FBP PROJECT  
 
The estimated amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred by the Zone for the FBP 
Project, including both principal, and, if applicable, interest, is approximately $0. The Zone 
and the City intend to reimburse the developer utilizing a combination of sales tax revenue 
and the Zone’s net tax increment (the annual collections of the tax increment attributable 
to the Project, less any amount from an existing tenant or anticipated to be required for 
the administration and operation of the Zone, including a reasonable operating reserve) 
attributable to the Project as funds become available. 
       

III. THE TIME WHEN RELATED COSTS OR MONETARY OBLIGATIONS ARE 
TO BE INCURRED 

 
The time when related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred is a function of 
the availability of Zone revenues. Schedule B shows the time when Zone funds are 
expected to be available to pay project costs for initial Zone projects. Schedule B.1 shows 
the time when Zone funds are expected to be available to pay project costs for the 
Enlargement Area. Schedule B.2 shows the time when Zone funds are expected to be 
available to pay project costs for the FBP Project.  
 
 

IV. A DESCRIPTION OF THE METHODS OF FINANCING ALL ESTIMATED 
PROJECT COSTS AND THE EXPECTED SOURCES OF REVENUE TO 
FINANCE OR PAY PROJECT COSTS, INCLUDING THE PERCENTAGE OF 
TAX INCREMENT TO BE DERIVED FROM THE PROPERTY TAXES OF 
EACH TAXING UNIT THAT LEVIES TAXES ON REAL PROPERY IN THE 
ZONE 

 
 

A. Description of the Methods of Financing  
 

In accordance with 311.015 of the Tax Increment Financing Act (the “Act”) , the City 
may issue tax increment bonds or notes, the proceeds of which may be used to pay 
project costs on behalf of the Zone. Upon creation of a Development Authority for the 
Zone, the Authority may be authorized to incur debt and issue debt or obligations to 
satisfy developer reimbursements for eligible project costs outlined in this Plan. When 
appropriate, Developers will advance project-related costs and may be reimbursed 
through the issuance of tax increment bonds or from increment revenues of the Zone.  

 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  13 

No bonds will be issued until adequate tax increment has been created in the Zone to 
support bond debt service. Tax increment revenue will be applied to pay or reimburse 
all debt service on the Zone’s bonds. This approach protects the City and other taxing 
jurisdictions from development financing risks.  

 
 
B. Initial Expected Sources of Revenue to Finance or Pay Project Costs  
 
It is projected that the initial development projects identified in this Plan will increase 
taxable property values in the Zone by approximately $700,000,000. Schedule A lists the 
expected sources of appraised value to finance or pay initial project costs in the Zone. 
 

Table C           
Percentage of Increment Dedicated to the Zone  

 
TAXING UNIT                             CURRENT TAX RATE                         % OF 
PARTICIPATION 
Missouri City                              $0.55238/$100 valuation                           100% 
Fort Bend County                       $0.62410/ $100 valuation                         100%  
Fort Bend I.S.D.                         $1.32700/$100 valuation                           100% of M&O Rate 

 
C. Expected Sources of Revenue to Finance or Pay Projecy Costs For the  

Enlargement Area  
 
It is projected that development projects identified in this Plan located within the 
Enlargement Area will increase taxable property values in the Zone by approximately 
$142,000,000. Schedule A.1 lists the expected sources of appraised value to finance or 
pay project costs in the Enlargement Area. 
 

Table C.1           
Percentage of Increment Dedicated to the Enlargement Area  

 
TAXING UNIT                             CURRENT TAX RATE                         % OF PARTICIPATION 
Missouri City                              $0.49800/$100 valuation                               100 % 
Fort Bend County                       $0.51674/$100 valuation                              100% for 7 years/50% for                        
                                                                                                                         15 years 
Fort Bend I.S.D.                          $1.50000/$100 valuation                              100% of M&O Rate 

 
 
D. Expected Sources of Revenue to Finance or Pay Projecy Costs For the FBP 

Project  
 
It is projected that the FBP Project will increase taxable property values in the Zone by 
approximately $54,385,745 by 2030. Schedule A.2 lists the expected sources of 
appraised value to finance or pay project costs for the FBP Project. 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  14 

Table C.2           
Percentage of Increment Dedicated to the FBP Project  

 
TAXING UNIT                             CURRENT TAX RATE                         % OF PARTICIPATION 
Missouri City                              $0.63000/$100 valuation                                   100% 
Fort Bend County                       $0.18650/ $100 valuation                                  50% 

 

Tax Increment Fund 
 

The City will create and establish a Tax Increment Fund for the Zone, which may be divided 
into sub-accounts as authorized by subsequent ordinances. A separate sub-account may 
be created for the property of each Developer. All tax increments, as described by 
applicable contracts, from a Developer's property will be deposited in the related sub-
account of the Tax lncrement Fund.  The Tax Increment Fund and each account shall 
be maintained at the depository bank of the City of Missouri City and shall be secured 
in the manner prescribed by law for the funds of Texas cities. The annual tax increment 
shall equal the property taxes levied by the City or any other taxing unit participating in the 
Zone for that year on the captured appraised value, as defined by Chapter 311, Texas 
Tax Code, of real property located in the Zone that is taxable by the City or any other 
taxing unit participating in the Zone, less any amounts that are to be allocated from the 
tax increment pursuant to Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code, or applicable agreements. 
 
All revenues from the sale of any tax increment bonds, notes, or other obligations    
hereafter issued by the City for the benefit of the Zone, if any; revenues from the sale 
of property acquired as part of the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan, 
if any; and other revenues to be used in the Zone shall be deposited into the Tax 
Increment Fund. Tax Increment revenues derived from a Developer’s property and 
proceeds of bonds issued to reimburse a Developer will be deposited to the related 
account in the Tax Increment Fund. Prior to termination of the Zone, money shall be 
disbursed from each account within the Tax Increment Fund in accordance with Chapter 
311, Texas Tax Code.  

 
V. THE TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE OF TAXABLE REAL PROPERTY IN THE 

ZONE  
 
A. Total Appraised Value of Initial Taxable Real Property  
 
The total appraised value of taxable real property in the Zone at the Zone’s inception was 
$2,474,190. 
 
B. Total Appraised Value of Taxable Real Property in the Enlargement Area 
 
The total appraised value of taxable real property in the Enlargement Area was 
$3,875,220 when such land was added to the Zone. 
 
 

Exhibit "A"



 

Reinvestment Zone Number Two Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 
Hawes Hill & Associates, ILP 
August 9, 1999 
Amended May 16, 2006; August 18, 2008; and August 10, 2020 
  15 

C. Total Appraised Value of Taxable Real Property for the FBP Project 
 
The current total appraised value of taxable real property for the FBP Project is 
$5,086,670.  
 
 

VI. THE ESTIMATED CAPTURED APPRAISED VALUE OF THE ZONE 
DURING EACH YEAR OF ITS EXISTENCE 

 
Schedules A and B show the estimated initial annual captured appraised value of the 
Zone and the expected revenue during each year of its existence. Schedules A.1 and B.1 
show the estimated annual captured appraised value of the Enlargement Area and the 
expected revenue during each year of its existence. Schedules A.2 and B.2 show the 
estimated annual captured appraised value of the FBP Project in the Zone and the 
expected revenue during each year of its existence.   
 

VII. DURATION OF THE ZONE 
 
The Zone took effect upon creation by City Council on August 2, 1999, and termination 
of the operation of the Zone shall occur on December 31, 2029, or, if extended, 2049. 
The Zone may terminate at an earlier time designated by subsequent ordinance, or at 
such time, susequent to the issuance of proposed revenue bonds, notes, or other 
obligations, if any, that all project costs, bonds, and interest on bonds have been paid in 
full.  
 
 

SCHEDULES  
 

 
Initial Plan Schedules  
SCHEDULE A            BUILDOUT AND ASSESSED VALUATION 
SCHEDULE B            REVENUE SCHEDULE 
SCHEDULE C            FBISD PRESENT VALUE OF SCHOOL TIRZ CASH FLOW  
 
 
Schedule for Enlargement Area 
Schedule A.1     BUILDOUT SCHEDULE  
Schedule B.1              ASSESSED VALUATIONS 
Schedule C.1             REVENUE SCHEDULE 
 
Schedule for FBP Project 
Schedule A.2 and B.2 BUILDOUT AND ASSESSED VALUATION 
Schedule C.2  REVENUE SCHEDULE 
 

Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Project Description Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Land  0 $5,890,479 $6,067,193 $6,249,209 $6,436,685 $6,629,786 $6,828,679 $7,033,540 $7,244,546 $7,461,882 $7,685,739
Improvements  0 $2,495,216 $9,980,864 $19,832,233 $32,346,567 $35,502,716 $36,606,138 $36,611,897 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636
Personal Property 0 $0 $2,958,180 $4,533,560 $6,748,760 $7,396,500 $7,635,630 $7,755,630 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370

Total Property Tax Value 0 $8,385,695 $19,006,237 $30,615,002 $45,532,012 $49,529,002 $51,070,447 $51,401,067 $53,944,552 $54,161,888 $54,385,745
* Years Shown based on Original Termination of TIRZ.  A 20‐Year TIRZ Extension is Planned

SCHEDULE A.2 and B.2
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO

BUILDOUT SCHEDULE AND ASSESSED VALUATIONS
THE FORT BEND PARKWAY ‐ HWY 6 THEATER AND RETAIL CENTER

7/29/2020

Exhibit "A"



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Project Description Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Land  0 $5,890,479 $6,067,193 $6,249,209 $6,436,685 $6,629,786 $6,828,679 $7,033,540 $7,244,546 $7,461,882 $7,685,739
Improvements  0 $2,495,216 $9,980,864 $19,832,233 $32,346,567 $35,502,716 $36,606,138 $36,611,897 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636
Personal Property 0 $0 $2,958,180 $4,533,560 $6,748,760 $7,396,500 $7,635,630 $7,755,630 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370

Total Property Tax Value 0 $8,385,695 $19,006,237 $30,615,002 $45,532,012 $49,529,002 $51,070,447 $51,401,067 $53,944,552 $54,161,888 $54,385,745

2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041

Project Description Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Land  $7,909,394 $8,139,557 $8,376,418 $8,620,172 $8,871,019 $9,129,166 $9,394,825 $9,668,214 $9,949,559 $10,239,091 $10,537,049
Improvements  $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636
Personal Property $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370

Total Property Tax Value $54,609,400 $54,839,563 $55,076,424 $55,320,178 $55,571,025 $55,829,172 $56,094,831 $56,368,220 $56,649,565 $56,939,097 $57,237,055

2042 2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050

Project Description Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Ca
pt
ur
ed

 v
al
ue

Land  $10,843,677 $11,159,228 $11,483,961 $11,818,145 $12,162,053 $12,515,969 $12,880,183 $13,254,997 $13,640,717
Improvements  $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636 $38,621,636
Personal Property $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370 $8,078,370

Total Property Tax Value $57,543,683 $57,859,234 $58,183,967 $58,518,151 $58,862,059 $59,215,975 $59,580,189 $59,955,003 $60,340,723

SCHEDULE A.2 and B.2 (MODIFIED WITH 20‐YR TIRZ EXTENSION)
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO

THE FORT BEND PARKWAY ‐ HWY 6 THEATER AND RETAIL CENTER
BUILDOUT SCHEDULE AND ASSESSED VALUATIONS

20 Year TIRZ Extension ‐ 2031‐2050

7/29/2020

Exhibit "A"



Tax 
Year

Coff. 
Year

Taxable Valuation 
(City/County 

100%)

Non‐Ed 
City Tax 
Rate

Non‐Ed 
County 
Tax Rate

Non‐Ed 
City Zone 
Revenue

Non‐Ed FB 
County 
Revenue

Total Non‐Ed 
Rev Available

Cumulative Rev. 
Available for 

Non‐Ed Projects
2020 2021 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
2021 2022 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
2022 2023 $8,385,695 $0.63000 $0.18650 $52,830 $15,639 $68,469 $68,469
2023 2024 $19,006,237 $0.63000 $0.18650 $119,739 $35,447 $155,186 $223,655
2024 2025 $30,615,002 $0.63000 $0.18650 $192,875 $57,097 $249,971 $473,627
2025 2026 $45,532,012 $0.63000 $0.18650 $286,852 $84,917 $371,769 $845,395
2026 2027 $49,529,002 $0.63000 $0.18650 $312,033 $92,372 $404,404 $1,249,800
2027 2028 $51,070,447 $0.63000 $0.18650 $321,744 $95,246 $416,990 $1,666,790
2028 2029 $51,401,067 $0.63000 $0.18650 $323,827 $95,863 $419,690 $2,086,480
2029 2030 $53,944,552 $0.63000 $0.18650 $339,851 $100,607 $440,457 $2,526,937

$2,526,937TOTAL AVAILABLE REVENUE

4. Tax rate based on Current Missouri City Rate and Fort Bend County at 50% 
3. Revenue Schedule based on TIRZ Termination ‐ YR 2030.  TIRZ Planned to Extend 20‐YR

1.  Non‐Ed  refers to revenue available for non education projects
2. Commercial Value captured in following taxable calendar year

SCHEDULE C.2
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO

THE FORT BEND PARKWAY ‐ HWY 6 THEATER AND RETAIL CENTER
REVENUE SCHEDULE

FBISD NOT 
INCLUDED 

FBISD NOT 
INCLUDED

7/29/2020

Exhibit "A"



Tax 
Year

Coff. 
Year

Taxable Valuation 
(City/County 

100%)

Non‐Ed 
City Tax 
Rate

Non‐Ed 
County 
Tax Rate

Non‐Ed City 
Zone 

Revenue

Non‐Ed FB 
County 
Revenue

Total Non‐Ed 
Rev Available

Cumulative Rev. 
Available for 

Non‐Ed Projects
2020 2021 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
2021 2022 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
2022 2023 $8,385,695 $0.63000 $0.18650 $52,830 $15,639 $68,469 $68,469
2023 2024 $19,006,237 $0.63000 $0.18650 $119,739 $35,447 $155,186 $223,655
2024 2025 $30,615,002 $0.63000 $0.18650 $192,875 $57,097 $249,971 $473,627
2025 2026 $45,532,012 $0.63000 $0.18650 $286,852 $84,917 $371,769 $845,395
2026 2027 $49,529,002 $0.63000 $0.18650 $312,033 $92,372 $404,404 $1,249,800
2027 2028 $51,070,447 $0.63000 $0.18650 $321,744 $95,246 $416,990 $1,666,790
2028 2029 $51,401,067 $0.63000 $0.18650 $323,827 $95,863 $419,690 $2,086,480
2029 2030 $53,944,552 $0.63000 $0.18650 $339,851 $100,607 $440,457 $2,526,937
2030 2031 $54,161,888 $0.63000 $0.18650 $341,220 $101,012 $442,232 $2,969,169
2031 2032 $54,385,745 $0.63000 $0.18650 $342,630 $101,429 $444,060 $3,413,228
2032 2033 $54,609,400 $0.63000 $0.18650 $344,039 $101,847 $445,886 $3,859,114
2033 2034 $54,839,563 $0.63000 $0.18650 $345,489 $102,276 $447,765 $4,306,879
2034 2035 $55,076,424 $0.63000 $0.18650 $346,981 $102,718 $449,699 $4,756,578
2035 2036 $55,320,178 $0.63000 $0.18650 $348,517 $103,172 $451,689 $5,208,267
2036 2037 $55,571,025 $0.63000 $0.18650 $350,097 $103,640 $453,737 $5,662,005
2037 2038 $55,829,172 $0.63000 $0.18650 $351,724 $104,121 $455,845 $6,117,850
2038 2039 $56,094,831 $0.63000 $0.18650 $353,397 $104,617 $458,014 $6,575,864
2039 2040 $56,368,220 $0.63000 $0.18650 $355,120 $105,127 $460,247 $7,036,111
2040 2041 $56,649,565 $0.63000 $0.18650 $356,892 $105,651 $462,544 $7,498,655
2041 2042 $56,939,097 $0.63000 $0.18650 $358,716 $106,191 $464,908 $7,963,562
2042 2043 $57,237,055 $0.63000 $0.18650 $360,593 $106,747 $467,341 $8,430,903
2043 2044 $57,543,683 $0.63000 $0.18650 $362,525 $107,319 $469,844 $8,900,747
2044 2045 $57,859,234 $0.63000 $0.18650 $364,513 $107,907 $472,421 $9,373,168
2045 2046 $58,183,967 $0.63000 $0.18650 $366,559 $108,513 $475,072 $9,848,240
2046 2047 $58,518,151 $0.63000 $0.18650 $368,664 $109,136 $477,801 $10,326,040
2047 2048 $58,862,059 $0.63000 $0.18650 $370,831 $109,778 $480,609 $10,806,649
2048 2049 $59,215,975 $0.63000 $0.18650 $373,061 $110,438 $483,498 $11,290,148
2049 2050 $59,955,003 $0.63000 $0.18650 $377,717 $111,816 $489,533 $11,779,680

$11,779,680TOTAL AVAILABLE REVENUE

1. Non‐Ed  refers to revenue available for non education projects
2. Commercial Value captured in following taxable calendar year
3. Original TIRZ Termination ‐ 2030; 20‐Yr Extension, Revised Termination 2050
4. Tax rate based on Current Missouri City Rate and Fort Bend County at 50%

IN
IT
IA
L 
TI
RZ

 T
ER

M
IN
AT

IO
N
‐Y
R 

20
30

20
‐Y
R 
TI
RZ

 E
XT
EN

SI
O
N
 2
03

1‐
20

50

SCHEDULE C.2 (MOD WITH 20‐YR TIRZ EXTENSION)
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO

THE FORT BEND PARKWAY ‐ HWY 6 THEATER AND RETAIL CENTER
REVENUE SCHEDULE

FBISD NOT 
INCLUDED 

FBISD NOT 
INCLUDED

7/29/2020

Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



TRAMMELFRESNORD

VI
CK
SB
UR
G
BL
VD

GLENNLAKESLN

KN
IG
H
T RD

LAK
ESH

OREHARBOURBLVD

MCKEEVERRD

SIENNA
PKW

Y

FORT BEND PKWY

SH6

LAKEOLYMPIAPKWY

HU
RR
IC
AN
E
LN

SIENN
ARANCHRD

M
IS
TY

HO
LL
O
W
D
R

M
ISSIO

N

VALLEY
DR

WATTS PLANTATION RD

Map By:
GIS Division
July 2020

Geographic Coordinate System North American Datum 1983 (NAD83)

0 0.5 1
Miles

Legend

TIRZ 2

City Limits

ETJTIRZ 2 The information on this map is provided and maintained by various agencies, including county departments, municipal
governments, state and federal agencies. The map is designed to serve as a secondary representation of real property
found within this jurisdiction, and is compiled from the recorded deeds, plats, and other public records, which are
primary sources for this public information. The data layers do not take the place of a legal survey or other primary
source documentation. The City and its vendors assume no legal responsibility for the information on this map.

Map 1.B

Exhibit "A"



TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

LA
KE SHORE HARBO UR B LVD

VICKSBU
R

G
BLVD

SH 6

TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

M
ISSIO

N
VALLE

Y
D

R
WATTS PLANTATION RD

KN
IG

H
T

R
D

KN
IG

H
T

R
D

SH 6
S

IE
N

N
A

PKW
Y

HU
RR

IC
AN

E
LN

SIENNA RANCH RD

FO
RT

BEN
D

PKW
Y

W AT TS
PL

A
N

TA
TI

O
N

RD

Zone Existing Uses 
and Condition Map in TIRZ 2

Map By:
GIS Division
July 2020 The information on this map is provided and maintained by various agencies, including county departments, municipal governments,

state and federal agencies.  No guarantee is given as to the accuracy or currency of any of the data.  The map is designed to serve
as a secondary representation of real property found within this jurisdiction, and is compiled from the recorded deeds, plats, and
other public records, which are primary sources for this public information.  Users of this map are hereby notified that these primary
sources should be consulted for verification of the information presented here. The data layers do not take the place of a legal survey 
or other primary source documentation. The city and its vendors assume no legal responsibility for the information on this map.

Geographic Coordinate System North American Datum 1983 (NAD83)
0 3,400 6,8001,700

Feet

» D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 X

:\G
IS

 T
ea

m
\J

ia
n\

G
IS

\2
02

0\
M

ap
 D

oc
um

en
ts

\E
 J

oy
ce

\8
.5

x1
1 

TI
R

Z2
 W

ith
 Z

on
in

g.
m

xd

Legend
BP

CF

I

LC-1

LC-2

LC-3

LC-4

MF-1

MF-2

MH

PD

R

R-1

R-1A

R-2

R-3

R-4

R-5

R-6

SD

SUP

TIRZ 2

City Limits

Map 2.B
Exhibit "A"



TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

LA
KE SHORE HARBOUR B LVD

VICKSBU
R

G
BLVD

SH 6

TRAMMEL FRESNO RD

M
ISSIO

N
VALLE

Y
D

R
WATTS PLANTATION RD

KN
IG

H
T

R
D

KN
IG

H
T

R
D

SH 6

S
IE

N
N

A
PKW

Y

HU
RR

IC
AN

E
LN

FO
RT

BEN
D

PK
W

Y

W AT TS
PL

A
N

TA
TI

O
N

RD

Zone Proposed Land Use 
Map in TIRZ 2

Map By:
GIS Division
July 2020 The information on this map is provided and maintained by various agencies, including county departments, municipal governments,

state and federal agencies.  No guarantee is given as to the accuracy or currency of any of the data.  The map is designed to serve
as a secondary representation of real property found within this jurisdiction, and is compiled from the recorded deeds, plats, and
other public records, which are primary sources for this public information.  Users of this map are hereby notified that these primary
sources should be consulted for verification of the information presented here. The data layers do not take the place of a legal survey 
or other primary source documentation. The city and its vendors assume no legal responsibility for the information on this map.

Geographic Coordinate System North American Datum 1983 (NAD83)
0 3,400 6,8001,700

Feet

» D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 X

:\G
IS

 T
ea

m
\J

ia
n\

G
IS

\2
02

0\
M

ap
 D

oc
um

en
ts

\E
 J

oy
ce

\8
.5

x1
1 

TI
R

Z2
 Z

on
e 

Pr
op

os
ed

 L
an

d 
U

se
 M

ap
.m

xd

Legend
Business Park

Commercial

Community Facility

Estate

High Density Residential

Park and Recreation

Rural

Single Family Residential

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Urban

Water

TIRZ 2

City Limits

Map 3.B

Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(d) Consider an ordinance amending the City’s Drug-Free Workplace Policy testing 

procedures. 
  
Submitted by: Martin Russell, Director of Human Resources 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This ordinance will allow the City to randomly, and post-accident drug test employees, in safety impact 
positions for the presence of drugs or alcohol on an annual basis. 
  

STRATEGIC PLAN 2020 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Develop a high performing City team. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Under the current Missouri City Personnel Policy, which was adopted in 2017 and amended thereafter, 
Random Drug tests were administered to departmental divisions that were subjected to the Omnibus 
Transportation Act of 1991 ( the “Transportation Act”) for the presence of drugs or alcohol. Such random 
testing will be conducted in accordance with the applicable federal rules and regulations pertaining to the 
Transportation Act. However, nothing in this Section is intended to affect the City’s ability to implement other 
sections of this Policy, except in the case of a direct conflict, in which case the Transportation Act and any 
rules and regulations relating thereto shall prevail, and then only to the extent of such conflict. The City will 
require 100% of employees in safety impact positions to be randomly tested for the presence of drugs or 
alcohol on an annual basis. An employee in a safety impact position shall be notified in writing that the 
employee is in such a position and is subject to random drug testing. The employee shall acknowledge such 
notification. The selection of employees for drug testing shall be made by a random computer selection 
process performed by an outside contractor. Each month the pool shall consist of 100% of all employees 
eligible for random testing. Thus, an employee may be randomly selected multiple times during any given 
testing period. Employees selected for random testing shall be notified by the employee’s department director 
or designee to submit to a drug or alcohol test. A selected employee must undergo the City’s random testing 
immediately following such notification. Employees selected for random testing, but who are absent due to 
vacation, sick leave, other leave, or urgent City business previously approved by their department director, 
shall not be notified to test until the first day the employee returns to work after random selection, even if the 
first day back occurs in a subsequent month. Once an employee has been notified to take a test, unless 
hospitalized, no sick leave, vacation, emergency vacation or other leave may be authorized until the 
collection process is completed. For the purposes of this section, a “safety impact position” means an 
employment position involving safety-sensitive job duties, which, if performed with inattentiveness, errors in 
judgment, or diminished coordination, dexterity, or composure, may result in conduct that could present a 
threat to the personal health or safety of the employee, other employees, or the public, including the following 
positions:  
 
9.3.3.1 All peace officers in the Police Department that are issued one or more firearms; 
9.3.3.2 The following positions in the Fire Department: Assistant Fire Chief, Battalion Chief, Division Chief,           
Fire Chief, Fire Inspector, Fire Lieutenant, Fire Marshal, Fire Apparatus Operator or driver, and Firefighter; 



9.3.3.3 All employees who operate City vehicles; 
9.3.3.4 All employees who operate motor-drive equipment.  
 
In addition an employee in a safety impact position, as described in subsection 9.3.3 shall be required to 
submit to drug or alcohol testing, or both, when he or she is involved in a work-related accident.  
 
9.8 An employee who voluntarily identifies him or herself to the City as having a drug or alcohol abuse 
problem, shall be subject to random follow-up alcohol, drug, or alcohol and drug testing for a minimum of 24 
months and a maximum of 60 months from the date the employee is released by the health care provider or 
an EAP professional overseeing the employee’s rehabilitation to return to work. The actual time and 
frequency will be determined by an EAP professional and monitored by the Human Resources and 
Organizational Development Department.  
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the ordinance.  
 
Director Approval:           Martin Russell, Director of Human Resources & O/D 
 
City Manager Approval:           Odis Jones, City Manager 
 
 



Personnel Policy Ordinance - Drug Testing.doc  Page 1 of 5 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS; 
AMENDING THE PERSONNEL POLICY OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY; AMENDING DRUG TESTING POLICIES FOR CERTAIN 
EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED 
THERETO. 

*  *  *  *  * 

 WHEREAS, Section 4.06.E of the City of Missouri City Charter (“Charter”)  
provides that the City Manager shall prepare personnel rules and the City Council of the 
City of Missouri City (“City Council”) will, by ordinance, adopt such rules with or without 
amendment; and 
    
 WHEREAS, certain employees represent a significantly greater threat to the 
health and safety of themselves and the public than do other employees because they 
may be required to react to unusual or dangerous circumstances because of their 
positions and duties; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that, as demonstrated in International Union v. 
Winters, 385 F.3d 1003 (6th Cir. 2004), safety impact positions should be subject to 
random drug and alcohol testing because there is a substantial risk of serious harm to 
the public, should designated safety impact employees be working under the influence 
of drugs or alcohol; and 
 

WHEREAS, as found in International Union v. Winters, certain public employees 
who work in safety impact positions have a diminished expectation of privacy; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has proposed certain revisions to the rules 

regarding drug testing for such employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that any random testing is not intended to be 

overly intrusive and shall be administered in a normal medical setting; and  
  
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that, as demonstrated in Nat'l Treasury 

Employees Union v. Von Raab, 489 U.S. 656 (1989), and Bailey v. City of Baytown, 781 
F. Supp, 1210 (S.D. Tex. 1991), drug testing employees employed in paramilitary 
positions, who carry firearms in the course of their work for the City, including police 
officers, detectives, police lieutenants, police captains, assistant police chiefs, and 
police chiefs, for the public safety of the employee, the public, and other officers to 
ensure that they are not under the influence of drugs and alcohol serves a compelling 
interest of the City and is in the best interest of the City’s residents; and   

 



Personnel Policy Ordinance - Drug Testing.doc  Page 2 of 5 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that, as demonstrated in Nat'l Treasury 
Employees Union v. Von Raab and Piroglu v. Coleman, 25 F.3d 1098 (D.C. Cir. 1994), 
drug testing firefighters, who are charged with protecting public health and safety and 
whose work “depends uniquely on their judgment and dexterity,” to ensure that they are 
not under the influence of drugs and alcohol serves a compelling interest of the City and 
is in the best interest of the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that, as demonstrated in Bryant v. City of 

Monroe, 593 Fed. Appx. 291 (5th Cir. 2014), the random drug testing of motor vehicle 
and motorized equipment operators to ensure public safety on City roads to ensure that 
they are not under the influence of drugs and alcohol serves a compelling interest of the 
City and is in the best interest of the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City now deems it 

appropriate to consider the City Manager’s proposed revisions and amend the 
personnel policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, such action furthers Strategic Plan 2019 Goal No. 4 by developing a 

high performance city team; now therefore, 
  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct. 
 

Section 2.  Policy amendment, Chapter 9. Ordinance No. O-17-24, adopted on 
July 17, 2017, as amended, is hereby amended by amending subsections 9.3.2 and 
9.3.3 of Section 9.3 of Chapter 9 of Exhibit “A” thereof, and substituting, therefore, new 
subsections 9.3.2 and 9.3.3 of Section 9.3 of Chapter 9 to provide as follows: 

 
“Missouri City Personnel Policy 

.  .  .  . 
CHAPTER 9: DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
.  .  .  .  
9.3 Drug and Alcohol Screening for Current Employees 
.  .  .  .  
 
9.3.2 Post-Accident Testing 
 
An employee, other than an employee in a safety impact position, as described in 
subsection 9.3.3, shall be required to submit to drug or alcohol testing, or both, when he 
is involved in a work-related accident and there is a reasonable possibility that drug use 
was a contributing factor or when he receives a citation under state or local law for a 
moving traffic violation committed while working. An employee in a safety impact 
position, as described in subsection 9.3.3, shall be required to submit to drug or alcohol 



Personnel Policy Ordinance - Drug Testing.doc  Page 3 of 5 
 

testing, or both, when he or she is involved in a work-related accident. A work-related 
accident is not limited to a vehicular accident, but may include any occurrence that 
results in lost time, personal injury or property damage, even if allegedly caused by 
another employee or contractor. An employee who refuses to consent to a drug and/or 
alcohol test when required under this Section is subject to disciplinary action up to, and 
including, dismissal. The reasons for the refusal shall be considered in determining the 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
 
9.3.3 Random Testing 
 
The City may require all of its employees in those departmental divisions that are 
subject to the Omnibus Transportation Act of 1991 (the “Transportation Act”) to be 
randomly tested for the presence of drugs or alcohol. Such random testing will be 
conducted in accordance with the applicable federal rules and regulations pertaining to 
the Transportation Act. However, nothing in this Section is intended to affect the City’s 
ability to implement other sections of this Policy, except in the case of a direct conflict, in 
which case the Transportation Act and any rules and regulations relating thereto shall 
prevail, and then, only to the extent of such conflict. The City will require 100% of 
employees in safety impact positions to be randomly tested for the presence of drugs or 
alcohol on an annual basis. An employee in a safety impact position shall be notified in 
writing that the employee is in such a position and is subject to random drug testing. 
Such notification shall be acknowledged by the employee. The selection of employees 
for drug testing shall be made by a random computer selection process performed by 
an outside contractor. Each month the pool shall consist of 100% of all employees 
eligible for random testing. Thus, an employee may be randomly selected multiple times 
during any given testing period. Employees selected for random testing shall be notified 
by the employee’s department director or designee to submit to a drug or alcohol test. A 
selected employee must undergo the City’s random testing immediately following such 
notification. Employees selected for random testing, but who are absent due to 
vacation, sick leave, other leave, or urgent City business previously approved by their 
department director, shall not be notified to test until the first day the employee returns 
to work after random selection, even if the first day back occurs in a subsequent month. 
Once an employee has been notified to take a test, unless hospitalized, no sick leave, 
vacation, emergency vacation or other leave may be authorized until the collection 
process is completed. For the purposes of this section a “safety impact position” means 
an employment position involving safety-sensitive job duties which, if performed with 
inattentiveness, errors in judgment, or diminished coordination, dexterity, or composure, 
may result in conduct that could present a threat to the personal health or safety of the 
employee, other employees, or the public, including the following positions:  
 

9.3.3.1 All peace officer positions in the Police Department that are 
required by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement to 
demonstrate weapons proficiency for firearms at least annually; 

9.3.3.2 The following positions in the Fire Department: assistant fire chief, 
battalion chief, division chief, fire chief, fire inspector, fire lieutenant, 
fire marshal, fire apparatus operator or driver, and firefighter;   



Personnel Policy Ordinance - Drug Testing.doc  Page 4 of 5 
 

9.3.3.3 All positions that operate City vehicles; and 
9.3.3.4 All positions that operate motor-driven equipment.” 

 
Section 3.  Policy amendment, Chapter 9. Ordinance No. O-17-24, adopted on 

July 17, 2017, as amended, is hereby amended by amending Section 9.8 of Chapter 9 
of Exhibit “A” thereof, and substituting, therefore, a new Section 9.8 of Chapter 9 to 
provide as follows: 

 
“Missouri City Personnel Policy 

.  .  .  . 
CHAPTER 9: DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
.  .  .  .  
9.8 Consequences of a Confirmed Positive Test Result 
If an employee’s positive test result has been confirmed, the employee is subject to 
disciplinary action, up to, and including, dismissal. Factors to be considered in 
determining the appropriate disciplinary response include the employee’s work history, 
length of employment, current job performance, and the existence of past disciplinary 
actions. 
 
No disciplinary action will be taken against an employee solely for his voluntarily 
identifying himself as a drug user or alcohol abuser, if such voluntary identification is 
made prior to and apart from an incident giving rise to a circumstance that would 
constitute a basis for administration of a drug test, the employee obtains counseling and 
rehabilitation through an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) approved by the City 
Manager, consents to a program of random drug and/or alcohol testing, and after such 
voluntary identification refrains from violating the City’s policy on drug and alcohol 
abuse. Disciplinary action may, however, be taken against such employee for other 
reasons. In addition to other testing requirements, an employee who voluntarily 
identifies him or herself to the City as having a drug or alcohol abuse problem, shall be 
subject to random follow-up alcohol, drug, or alcohol and drug testing for a minimum of 
24 months and a maximum of 60 months from the date the employee is released by the 
health care provider or an EAP professional overseeing the employee’s rehabilitation to 
return to work. The actual time period and frequency will be determined by an EAP 
professional and monitored by the Human Resources and Organizational Department.” 

 
Section 6.  Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, if 

any, shall be and are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict.  
 
Section 7. Administrative procedures authorized. The City Manager is hereby 

authorized to prepare and administer procedures and take such actions as are 
consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance and the Personnel Policy of the City of 
Missouri City, Texas.  

Section 8. Severability. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or 
part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 



Personnel Policy Ordinance - Drug Testing.doc  Page 5 of 5 
 

or provision hereof, other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.  
 
 PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 8th day of September, 2020.  
 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 21st day 
of September, 2020. 
 
 
 __________________________ 
 Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(e) Consider an ordinance authorizing the crediting of updated service credits in the 

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) for certain City of Missouri City employees 
who have membership in such system; providing for increased annuities for certain City 
of Missouri City employees. 

   
Submitted by: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
As part of management’s evaluation of benefits and how the structuring of the retirement benefits may affect 
the costs, staff is presenting an ordinance that maintains our costs for retirement benefits at the same levels 
as last year.  This strategy will allow us to continue to effectively evaluate our long-term plan. 
  

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Since 2012, the City has elected the Ad Hoc TMRS structure for Updated Service Credits (USC) and Cost 
Of Living Adjustment (COLA) benefits. This election plays a part in calculating the benefit employees receive 
after retirement.  
 
The 2011 plan design included the provision to automatically repeat these benefits without annual adoption 
by City Council. However, an option to annually adopt these provisions was approved by City Council in 
order to give us the flexibility to set our rate at an affordable level. The rate we are proposing considers the 
future costs associated with the Ad Hoc TMRS method.  
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the City to present the underfunded liability 
incurred by electing the Ad Hoc funding method in the financial statements as a liability.  The City is 
recommending opting to continue the plan that includes the Ad Hoc structure, updated Service Credits at 
100% and a 70% annuity increase.  The minimum contribution rate for this plan is currently 9.07%.  However, 
staff is proposing we fund the Ad Hoc plan at a rate of 10% to ensure sufficient contributions if the rate 
changes upon TMRS’ receipt of the resolution with any extra funds being used to close the gap for any 
potential unfunded liability, while maintaining sufficient reserves to meet unanticipated obligations or 
stakeholder reserve requirements.   
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 

Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

Proposed 
FY2021 

Funds Budgeted 

Proposed 
FY2021 

Funds Available 
Amount 
Requested 

Various Various Retirement $2,443,739 $2,443,739 $2,443,739 
 



The FY 2021 Budget was prepared using a 10% rate for TMRS benefits.   
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. TMRS Rate Letter 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt the Ordinance Electing Annual Updated Service Credits and 
COLAs and that this decision be reviewed on an annual basis. This action will not affect city employee current 
retirement benefits. 
 
Director Approval:  Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services  
 
Assistant City Manager/   
City Manager Approval:  Bill Atkinson 
 



TMRS Service Credit Ordinance 2020.doc  Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE CREDITING OF UPDATED SERVICE 
CREDITS IN THE TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
FOR CERTAIN CITY OF MISSOURI CITY EMPLOYEES WHO 
HAVE MEMBERSHIP IN SUCH SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR 
INCREASED ANNUITIES FOR CERTAIN CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES OF DECEASED 
RETIREES; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
 WHEREAS,  pursuant to Section 853.403 and Section 854.203 of Subtitle G of 
Title 8, Government Code, as such sections may be amended, this Ordinance may not 
take effect unless the board of trustees of the Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(“System”) approves this Ordinance as meeting the requirements of such sections; and 
 

WHEREAS, the board of trustees of the System may not approve this Ordinance 
unless the actuary of the System first determines, and the board of trustees concurs in 
the determination, that all obligations charged against the City of Missouri City’s account 
in the benefit accumulation fund, including obligations proposed in this Ordinance, can 
be funded by the City of Missouri City within its maximum total contribution rate and 
within its amortization period as in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City has determined that the 

adoption of this ordinance is in the best interest of the City of Missouri City; now 
therefore,    
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby declared true and correct.  
 
 Section 2.  Updated Service Credits.  (a)  Pursuant to Section 853.401 through 
853.403 of Subtitle G of Title 8, Government Code, as such sections may be amended, 
the City of Missouri City hereby authorizes each member of the System who has current 
service credit or prior service credit in the System in force and effect on the first day of 
January of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance by reason of 
service in the employment of the City of Missouri City, and on such date has at least 36 
months of credited service with the System, to receive updated service credit in an 
amount that is 100 percent (100%) of the base updated service credit of the member.  
Base updated service credit and updated service credit shall be determined by the 
System pursuant to Section 853.402 of Subtitle G of Title 8, Government Code, as such 



TMRS Service Credit Ordinance 2020.doc  Page 2 of 3 
 

section may be amended.  The updated service credit hereby authorized shall replace 
any updated service credit, prior service credit, special prior service credit, or 
antecedent service credit previously authorized for part of the same service. 
 
(b) Pursuant to Section 853.601 of Subtitle G of Title 8, Government Code, as such 
section may be amended, any member of the System who is eligible for updated service 
credits on the basis of service with the City of Missouri City, and who has unforfeited 
credit for prior service or current service with another participating municipality or 
municipalities by reason of previous employment and was a contributing member on the 
first day of January of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance, 
shall be credited in the System with updated service credits calculated in accordance 
with and subject to adjustment as set forth in Section 853.601 of Subtitle G of Title 8, 
Government Code, as such section may be amended. 
 

Section 3.   Increase in Retirement Annuities.  (a)  Pursuant to Section 854.203 
of Subtitle G of Title 8, Government Code, as such section may be amended, the City of 
Missouri City authorizes and provides for increased annuities to be paid by the System 
to retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees of the City of Missouri City under 
current service annuities and prior service annuities.  An annuity increased pursuant to 
this Ordinance replaces any annuity or increased annuity previously granted to the 
same person. 
 
(b) The amount of annuity increase authorized by this Ordinance is computed as the 
sum of the prior and current service annuities on the effective date of retirement of the 
person on whose service the annuities are based, multiplied by seventy percent (70%) 
of the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, 
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor, 
from December of the year immediately preceding the effective date of the person's 
retirement to the December that is 13 months before the effective date of this 
Ordinance. 
 
(c) An increase in an annuity that was reduced because of an option selection is 
reducible in the same proportion and in the same manner that the original annuity was 
reduced. 
 
(d) If a computation pursuant to Section 3(b) of this Ordinance does not result in an 
increase in the amount of an annuity, the amount of the annuity shall not be changed by 
this Ordinance. 
 
(e) The amount by which an increase under this Ordinance exceeds all previously 
granted increases to an annuitant is payable as a prior service annuity, is an obligation 
of the City of Missouri City’s account in the benefit accumulation fund of the System, 
and is subject to reduction by the System at any time pursuant to Section 855.308(f) of 
Subtitle G of Title 8, Government Code, as such sections may be amended. 
 



TMRS Service Credit Ordinance 2020.doc  Page 3 of 3 
 

 Section 4.   Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
shall be and are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  Subject to approval by the Board of Trustees of Texas 

Municipal Retirement System, the updated service credits and increased annuities shall 
become effective January 1, 2021.   
 

Section 6.  Severability.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or 
part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
or provision hereof, other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this 8th day of September, 2020. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 21st day 

of September, 2020. 
 
 
           ________________________________ 
           Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:          APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________      ________________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary       E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 
 



7056 ������������
3�2� %2;������� 72//�)5((�������������
$867,1� 7(;$6������������ :::�7056�&20 )$;��������������

-XQH��������
�ŝƚǇ�η ϬϬϴϳϱ

&LW\�2IILFLDO

&LW\�RI�0LVVRXUL�&LW\

�����7H[DV�3DUNZD\

0LVVRXUL�&LW\��7;������

6XEMHFW������� 0XQLFLSDO�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH

'HDU &LW\�2IILFLDO�

3UHVHQWHG�EHORZ�DUH�\RXU�FLW\¶V�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�WR�WKH�7H[DV�0XQLFLSDO�5HWLUHPHQW�6\VWHP��7056��IRU�
3ODQ�<HDU����� �&DOHQGDU�<HDU�������3<������DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�'HFHPEHU��������� DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ��7KH�
DFWXDULDOO\�GHWHUPLQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV�IRU�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILWV�DQG 6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILWV��6'%���LI�DQ\�
DUH�EDVHG�RQ�\RXU�FLW\¶V�SODQ�SURYLVLRQV�LQ�HIIHFW�DV�RI�$SULO ������� DQG WKH�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV DQG�PHWKRGV
DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�7056�%RDUG��(IIHFWLYH�-DQXDU\����������\RXU�FLW\¶V�PRQWKO\�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV�ZLOO�EH�

1RUPDO�&RVW �����

3ULRU�6HUYLFH �����

7RWDO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH �����

6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILW� �����

7RWDO�&RPELQHG�&RQWULEXWLRQ �����

)XOO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ \RXU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�FKDQJHV DQG�DYDLODEOH�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�
WHFKQLTXHV��LV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�DWWDFKHG�UHSRUW���7KH�7RWDO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH�VKRZQ�DERYH�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�
$FWXDULDOO\�'HWHUPLQHG�(PSOR\HU�&RQWULEXWLRQ��$'(&��IRU�3<���� EDVHG�RQ�FXUUHQW�7056�IXQGLQJ�SROLF\��

7KH�DFWXDULDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV�GHWHUPLQHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�'HFHPEHU��������� DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�
UHIOHFW�D�FKDQJH�LQ�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH����� H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�HQGLQJ�
'HFHPEHU������������3OHDVH�VHH�WKH�³$FWXDULDO�&KDQJHV´�VHFWLRQ�IRU�PRUH�GHWDLOHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ���)XOO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
RQ�\RXU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�FKDQJHV��LV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�DWWDFKHG�UHSRUW�

,03257$17�127(��7KH�SHQVLRQ�GLVFORVXUH�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�QHFHVVDU\�WR�DVVLVW�\RXU�
FLW\�ZLWK�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�*RYHUQPHQWDO�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG��*$6%��
ZLOO�EH�SURYLGHG�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH�GRFXPHQW�DYDLODEOH�ODWHU�WKLV�VXPPHU�

,I�\RX�KDYH�TXHVWLRQV�DERXW�\RXU�UDWH�RU�LI�\RX�ZLVK�WR�HYDOXDWH�SRWHQWLDO�FKDQJHV�LQ�\RXU�7056�SODQ��FRQWDFW�
7056�DW��������������

6LQFHUHO\�

/HVOHH�6��+DUG\��$6$��($��)&$��0$$$
'LUHFWRU�RI�$FWXDULDO�6HUYLFHV



Ϯ

7DEOH�RI�&RQWHQWV

$FWXDULDO�&KDQJHV $�VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�DQG�PHWKRGV�DGRSWHG�E\�
WKH�%RDUG�DQG�HIIHFWLYH�ZLWK�WKH�'HFHPEHU����������DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�EDVHG�
RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH������H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�

5DWH�6WDELOL]DWLRQ�
7HFKQLTXHV

$�VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�WHFKQLTXHV�FXUUHQWO\�DYDLODEOH�WR�DVVLVW�FLWLHV�LQ�VWDELOL]LQJ�
WKHLU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�LQFOXGLQJ�PDQDJLQJ�D�IXQGLQJ�VXUSOXV�

([HFXWLYH�6XPPDU\ $�FRPSDULVRQ�RI�WKH�KLJKOLJKWV�RI�WKH�'HFHPEHU��������� DQG 'HFHPEHU�����
���� DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQV�IRU�\RXU�FLW\��,QFOXGHG�DUH�PHPEHUVKLS�FRXQWV��DVVHW�
LQIRUPDWLRQ��DFWXDULDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ��DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�

&DOFXODWLRQ�RI�
&RQWULEXWLRQ�
5HTXLUHPHQWV

'HWDLOV�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�WKH�)XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH��7056�3ODQ�<HDU��
$'(&� DQG�WKH�6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�5DWH��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��IRU�\RXU�FLW\��
&RPSDULVRQV EHIRUH�DQG�DIWHU�WKH�DFWXDULDO�FKDQJHV�DQG WR�WKH����� DFWXDULDO�
YDOXDWLRQ�UHVXOWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�

6XPPDU\�RI�%HQHILW�
3URYLVLRQV

$�VXPPDU\�RI�SODQ�SURYLVLRQV LQ�HIIHFW�DV�RI�$SULO���������

$PRUWL]DWLRQ�%DVHV�DQG�
3D\PHQWV

,QIRUPDWLRQ�RQ WKH�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�EDVHV�DQG�SD\PHQWV�IRU�\RXU�FLW\�

+LVWRULFDO�DQG�3URMHFWHG�
$FFXPXODWLRQ�RI�WKH�%$)�
%DODQFH

7KLV�VFKHGXOH�SURYLGHV�\RXU�FLW\�ZLWK�KLVWRULFDO�FDVK�IORZV� LQWHUHVW�FUHGLWV
DQG�WKH�\HDU�HQG�EDODQFH�RI�LWV�%HQHILW�$FFXPXODWLRQ�)XQG��%$)���DV�ZHOO�DV�
SURMHFWHG�YDOXHV�IRU�FDOHQGDU�SODQ�\HDUV����� DQG �����

5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�)XOO�
5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH�IURP�
3ULRU�$FWXDULDO�9DOXDWLRQ�
5HSRUW

$�GHWDLOHG�UHFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�\RXU�FLW\¶V�)XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH�
�$'(&��VLQFH�WKH�SULRU�YDOXDWLRQ�

5LVNV�$VVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�
0HDVXULQJ�WKH�$FFUXHG�
/LDELOLW\�DQG�$FWXDULDOO\�
'HWHUPLQHG�&RQWULEXWLRQ

$Q�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�ULVN�PHDVXUHPHQWV DQG�KRZ�D�����GHFOLQH�LQ�DVVHWV�ZLOO
LPSDFW�\RXU�FLW\¶V�)XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH��$'(&���



ϯ

$FWXDULDO�&KDQJHV

$V�SDUW�RI�WKHLU�FRQWLQXHG�HIIRUW�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�7056�LV�ZHOO�IXQGHG�DQG�WKDW�PHPEHUV¶�EHQHILWV�UHPDLQ�VHFXUH�
DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�RYHU�JHQHUDWLRQV��WKH�7056�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV�DGRSWHG�WKH�DFWXDULDO�FKDQJHV�VXPPDUL]HG�EHORZ�
DW�LWV�2FWREHU������%RDUG�PHHWLQJ��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH������H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�DQG�WKH�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�RI�
WKH�6\VWHP¶V�FRQVXOWLQJ�DFWXDU\��*DEULHO�5RHGHU�6PLWK�	�&RPSDQ\��*56���7KH�FRPELQHG�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�DFWXDULDO�FKDQJHV�LV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�³5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�)XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH�IURP�3ULRU�$FWXDULDO�
9DOXDWLRQ�5HSRUW´�VHFWLRQ�RI�WKLV�OHWWHU�

$FWXDULDO�$VVXPSWLRQ�&KDQJHV

7KH�7056�$FW�UHTXLUHV�WKDW�DW�OHDVW�RQFH�HYHU\���\HDUV��WKH�6\VWHP¶V�FRQVXOWLQJ�DFWXDU\�SHUIRUP�DQ�DFWXDULDO�
H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�DQG�PDNH�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�WR�WKH�%RDUG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKDW�VWXG\��&XUUHQW�%RDUG�
SROLF\�LV�WR�FRQGXFW�DQ�DFWXDULDO�H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�HYHU\�IRXU�\HDUV��$FFRUGLQJO\��GXULQJ�������7056¶�FRQVXOWLQJ�
DFWXDU\��*56��FRQGXFWHG�DQ�H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�HQGLQJ�'HFHPEHU�����������$�VLQJOH�VHW�RI�
DVVXPSWLRQV�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�VXLWDEOH�IRUHYHU��$V�WKH�DFWXDO�H[SHULHQFH�RI�D�SODQ�XQIROGV�RU�WKH�IXWXUH�
H[SHFWDWLRQV�FKDQJH��WKH�DVVXPSWLRQV�VKRXOG�EH�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DGMXVWHG�DFFRUGLQJO\��7KH�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�
XVHG�LQ�WKH�DQQXDO�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQV�DQG�UHYLHZHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�H[SHULHQFH�VWXG\�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�JURXSHG�LQWR�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�WZR�PDMRU�FDWHJRULHV�

�� (FRQRPLF�DVVXPSWLRQV�± LQYHVWPHQW�UHWXUQ��VDODU\�LQFUHDVHV��RYHUDOO�SD\UROO�JURZWK� LQIODWLRQ
�� 'HPRJUDSKLF�DVVXPSWLRQV�± UDWHV�RI�WHUPLQDWLRQ��IRUIHLWXUH��VHUYLFH�UHWLUHPHQW��GLVDELOLW\�UHWLUHPHQW��SUH�

UHWLUHPHQW�PRUWDOLW\��SRVW�UHWLUHPHQW PRUWDOLW\

7KH�%RDUG�DGRSWHG�VHYHUDO�FKDQJHV�LQ�DFWXDULDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�LQFOXGLQJ� EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�
x 6OLJKWO\�PRGLILHG�WKH�VWHS�UDWH�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�VDODU\�VFDOH�DVVXPSWLRQ�EDVHG�RQ�UHFHQW�WUHQGV�

DQG�H[SHULHQFH�ZKLOH�NHHSLQJ�WKH�XOWLPDWH�VDODU\�LQFUHDVH�DW������
x ,QWURGXFHG�D�ORDG�RQ�WKH�8SGDWHG�6HUYLFH�&UHGLW�FDOFXODWLRQ�HTXDO�WR������SHU�\HDU�LQWR�WKH�IXWXUH�WR�

UHIOHFW�WKH�DV\PPHWULF�DFFUXDO�SDWWHUQ�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKLV�EHQHILW�IRUPXOD�
x 'HFUHDVHG�WKH�FXUUHQW�PD[LPXP�SD\UROO�JURZWK�UDWH�DVVXPSWLRQ�IURP�������WR�������WR�UHFRJQL]H�

VRPH�UHYHQXH�SUHVVXUH�IURP�D�PDWXULQJ�SRSXODWLRQ�DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�SURSHUW\�WD[�SURYLVLRQV�ZKLOH�
FRQWLQXLQJ�WR�LQFOXGH�D�IXUWKHU�UHGXFWLRQ�IRU�VRPH�FLWLHV�EDVHG�RQ�SDWWHUQV�RI�SRSXODWLRQ�GHFOLQH�

x 8SGDWHG�WKH�EDVH�PRUWDOLW\�WDEOHV�IRU�KHDOWK\�UHWLUHHV�WR�WKH�FOLHQW�VSHFLILF������0XQLFLSDO�5HWLUHHV�RI�
7H[DV�PRUWDOLW\�WDEOHV�XVLQJ�WKH�DFWXDO�PRUWDOLW\�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�7056�GDWD�WKURXJK�'HFHPEHU������������
&RQWLQXHG�XVLQJ�D�IXOO\�JHQHUDWLRQDO�DSSURDFK�LQ�SURMHFWLQJ�IXWXUH�PRUWDOLW\�UDWHV��EXW�XSGDWHG�WKH�
SURMHFWLRQ�VFDOH�WR�WKH�XOWLPDWH�UDWHV�RI�WKH�03�6FDOHV��6FDOH�803��

x 8SGDWHG�WKH�SUH�UHWLUHPHQW�PRUWDOLW\�WDEOHV�WR�WKH�38%������PRUWDOLW\�WDEOHV�
x 6OLJKWO\�LQFUHDVHG�WKH�UDWHV�RI�WHUPLQDWLRQ�DQG�PDGH�VPDOO�DGMXVWPHQWV�WR�WKH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�DQG�

LQGLYLGXDO�FLW\�PXOWLSOLHUV�
x 6LPSOLILHG�DQG�XSGDWHG�WKH�VHUYLFH�UHWLUHPHQW�UDWH�WDEOHV�
x 6OLJKWO\�GHFUHDVHG�WKH�IRUIHLWXUH�UDWHV��ZLWKGUDZDO�RI�PHPEHU�GHSRVLWV��IRU�YHVWHG�PHPEHUV�QRW�HOLJLEOH�

IRU�UHWLUHPHQW�



ϰ

$VVHW�9DOXDWLRQ��6PRRWKLQJ��0HWKRG�0RGLILFDWLRQ

,Q�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�$FWXDULDO�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV��$9$���GHFUHDVHG�WKH�³VRIW´�FRUULGRU�OLPLW�DURXQG�WKH�0DUNHW�9DOXH�
RI�$VVHWV��09$��IURP�����WR����� 7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�RWKHU�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�FXUUHQW����\HDU�DVVHW�VPRRWKLQJ�PHWKRG�

$PRUWL]DWLRQ�3ROLF\�0RGLILFDWLRQV

,Q�7056��IRU�XQGHUIXQGHG�SODQV��DPRUWL]DWLRQ�RI�WKH�8QIXQGHG�$FWXDULDO�$FFUXHG�/LDELOLW\��8$$/��LV�D�OHYHO�
SHUFHQWDJH�RI�SD\UROO�RYHU�D�FORVHG�SHULRG�XVLQJ�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�³ODGGHULQJ´�ZKLFK�VHSDUDWHO\�WUDFNV�GLIIHUHQW�
DPRUWL]DWLRQ�FRPSRQHQWV�RU�EDVHV��)RU�DOO�QHZ�ORVVHV�RFFXUULQJ�DIWHU�'HFHPEHU����������DQG�EHQHILW�
HQKDQFHPHQWV�RQ�RU�DIWHU�-DQXDU\����������WKH�PD[LPXP�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�SHULRG�LV�GHFUHDVHG�IURP����\HDUV�WR����
\HDUV�IRU�DOO�FLWLHV���$OO�SULRU�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�EDVHV�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�DPRUWL]HG�RQ�WKHLU�RULJLQDO�VFKHGXOH��7KLV�
FKDQJH�ZLOO�KDYH�QR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�'HFHPEHU����������DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ��EXW�ZLOO�DIIHFW�IXWXUH�YDOXDWLRQV�

'HFUHDVHG�WKH�OHYHO�GROODU�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�SHULRG�IRU�DG�KRF�EHQHILW�HQKDQFHPHQWV�HIIHFWLYH�RQ�RU�DIWHU�-DQXDU\����
�����IURP����\HDUV�WR����\HDUV���

%HJLQQLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�'HFHPEHU��������� YDOXDWLRQ��RQFH�D�&LW\�UHDFKHV�DQ�³RYHUIXQGHG´�VWDWXV��DOO�SULRU�
DPRUWL]DWLRQ�EDVHV��DG�KRF�DQG�QRQ�DG�KRF��DUH�HUDVHG�DQG�DQ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�VXUSOXV�LV�FUHGLWHG�DJDLQVW�WKH�
FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�WR�NHHS�WKH�IXQGHG�UDWLR�FRQVWDQW�DW�WKH�FXUUHQW�OHYHO��3UHYLRXVO\��WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�FUHGLW�ZDV�
EDVHG�RQ�D����\HDU�RSHQ�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�SROLF\�

6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILW�)XQG�3UHPLXPV

7KH�SUHPLXP�IRU�UHWLUHHV�ZLOO�QRZ�EH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�IXOO��������EHQHILW�YHUVXV�WKH��������EHQHILW�SUHYLRXVO\�XVHG���
7KHUH�ZLOO�QRZ�EH D�FUHGLW�DJDLQVW�SUHPLXPV�IRU�DFWLYH�HPSOR\HHV�HTXDO�WR����RI�WKH�IXQG�EDODQFH�DV�RI�WKH�
YDOXDWLRQ�GDWH�H[SUHVVHG�DV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�FRYHUHG�SD\UROO�IRU�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�FLWLHV���



ϱ

5DWH�6WDELOL]DWLRQ�7HFKQLTXHV

&RQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�LV�D�VWUDWHJLF�JRDO�RI�WKH�7056�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV���6LQFH�������WKH�%RDUG�KDV�
DSSURYHG�PDQ\�DFWXDULDO�FKDQJHV�WR�PLQLPL]H�VKRUW�WHUP�YRODWLOLW\�LQ�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV�ZKLOH�PD[LPL]LQJ�ORQJ�
WHUP�6\VWHP�VXVWDLQDELOLW\���(YHQ�VR��VRPH�FLWLHV�FRQWLQXH�WR�H[SHULHQFH�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKHLU�DQQXDO�
FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV� 8QGHU�WKH�FXUUHQW�IXQGLQJ�SROLF\�LQ�ZKLFK�UDWHV�DUH�DFWXDULDOO\�GHWHUPLQHG�HDFK�\HDU��
FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�LV�IXOO\�RSWLPL]HG�DW�WKH�6\VWHP�OHYHO��WKHUHIRUH��DQ\�IXUWKHU�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�PXVW�
EH�DFKLHYHG�DW�WKH�FLW\�OHYHO���

7KH�PRVW�HIIHFWLYH�ZD\�IRU�D�FLW\�WR�VWDELOL]H�LWV�7056�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�LV�WR�GHWHUPLQH��GXULQJ�LWV�EXGJHW�SURFHVV��
DQ�DIIRUGDEOH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�WKDW�H[FHHGV�WKH�UHTXLUHG��FDOFXODWHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DQG�FRQWLQXH�WR�SD\�WKDW�
VDPH�UDWH��HYHQ�ZKHQ�WKH�FDOFXODWHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�JRHV�GRZQ���7KLV�LV�SDUWLFXODUO\�WUXH�IRU�FLWLHV�ZLWK�DQ�
8QIXQGHG�$FWXDULDO�$FFUXHG�/LDELOLW\��8$$/�����7KHVH�DGGLWLRQDO�PRQWKO\�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DW�D�SUHGHWHUPLQHG�
IL[HG�UDWH�DFFRPSOLVK�WKH�IROORZLQJ��

x SURYLGHV�D�VWDEOH�DQQXDO�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�IRU�EXGJHWLQJ�SXUSRVHV�

x GLUHFWO\�UHGXFHV�WKH�8$$/�

x DFFHOHUDWHV�WKH�\HDUV�QHHGHG�WR�DWWDLQ�IXOO�IXQGLQJ��L�H��SD\V�RII�WKH�8$$/�TXLFNHU��

x SURGXFHV�FRVW�VDYLQJV�RYHU�WKH�ORQJ�UXQ��DQG�

x SURYLGHV�D�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�FXVKLRQ�IRU�IXWXUH�DGYHUVH�SODQ�H[SHULHQFH����

$�FLW\�FDQ�DOVR�PDNH�RQH�RU�PRUH�OXPS�VXP�FRQWULEXWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZKLFK�KDV�D�VLPLODU�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�
SODQ¶V�IXQGLQJ�VWDWXV��EXW�LV�OHVV�HIIHFWLYH�IURP�D�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�SHUVSHFWLYH����

)RU�FLWLHV�ZLWK�DQ�2YHUIXQGHG�$FWXDULDO�$FFUXHG�/LDELOLW\��2$$/�RU�VXUSOXV���WKH�FDOFXODWHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�LV�
GHWHUPLQHG�E\�GHFUHDVLQJ�WKH�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH��WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�DFFUXDOV�IRU�DFWLYH�HPSOR\HHV��E\�D
UDWH�FDOFXODWHG�WR�NHHS�WKH�IXQGHG�UDWLR�FRQVWDQW�DW�WKH�FXUUHQW�OHYHO���,Q�PRVW�FDVHV��WKH UHVXOW�LV�D�UHTXLUHG�
FRQWULEXWLRQ�OHVV�WKDQ�WKH�QRUPDO�FRVW���,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WR�QRWH�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�VWLOO�D�FKDQFH�WKDW�DGYHUVH�H[SHULHQFH�
FRXOG�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�IXQGHG�UDWLR�GURSSLQJ�EHORZ��������,Q�RUGHU�WR�GDPSHQ�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�YRODWLOLW\�DQG�WR�
LQFUHDVH�WKH�OLNHOLKRRG�RI�PDLQWDLQLQJ�D�IXQGHG�UDWLR�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�������7056�HQFRXUDJHV�FLWLHV�LQ�D�VXUSOXV�
SRVLWLRQ�WR�FRQVLGHU�SD\LQJ�WKH�IXOO�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH��RU�DV�PXFK�DV�SRVVLEOH�WRZDUG�WKH�IXOO�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH��XQWLO�
WKH�IXQGHG�UDWLR�LV�DW�OHDVW��������

$V�QRWHG�DERYH��DGGLWLRQDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�HQWLUHO\�YROXQWDU\���$�FLW\�FDQ�DOZD\V�UHYHUW�WR�SD\LQJ�RQO\�WKH�
UHTXLUHG�FDOFXODWHG�UDWH�HDFK�PRQWK�LI�ILQDQFLDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�FKDQJH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU���7KHUH�LV�QR�IRUPDO�DFWLRQ�
WKDW�QHHGV�WR�EH�WDNHQ�E\�D�FLW\�WR�FRQWULEXWH�DW�D�KLJKHU�OHYHO�WKDQ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�PRQWKO\�PLQLPXP���$GGLWLRQDO�
PRQWKO\�FRQWULEXWLRQV�PD\�EH�PDGH�GXULQJ�WKH�QRUPDO�SD\UROO�UHSRUWLQJ�SURFHVV�E\�VLPSO\�ILOOLQJ�RXW�OLQH����$��RI�
)RUP�7056���ZLWK�WKH�LQFUHDVHG�HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH���/XPS�VXP�FRQWULEXWLRQV�VKRXOG�EH�UHSRUWHG�
VHSDUDWHO\�IURP�WKH�UHJXODU�SD\UROO�UHSRUWLQJ�SURFHVV�DQG�VXEPLWWHG�ZLWK�)RUP�7056��$''���

,I�\RXU�FLW\�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�H[SORUH�WKH�LPSDFW�RI�DQ\�RI�WKHVH�UDWH�VWDELOL]DWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�RQ�\RXU�7056�SODQ��
SOHDVH�FRQWDFW�/HVOHH�+DUG\��'LUHFWRU�RI�$FWXDULDO�6HUYLFHV��DW�OKDUG\#WPUV�FRP͘



ϲ

([HFXWLYH�6XPPDU\

���������� ����������

� 1XPEHU�RI

��$FWLYH�PHPEHUV ��� ���

��5HWLUHHV�DQG�EHQHILFLDULHV ��� ���

��,QDFWLYH�PHPEHUV ��� ���

��7RWDO ��� ���

� 3ULRU�\HDU¶V�SD\UROO�SURYLGHG�E\�7056 � ���������� � ����������

� 9DOXDWLRQ�3D\UROO � ���������� � ����������

� 0DUNHW�%$)�%DODQFH� � ����������� � ����������

� %$)�FUHGLWLQJ�UDWH�IRU�3< ������ �������

� ,QWHUHVW�FUHGLWHG�RQ�EHJLQQLQJ�%$)�EDODQFH � ���������� � �����������

� 0XQLFLSDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV�A ��������� ���������

� 0HPEHU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�GXULQJ�\HDU ��������� ���������

� %HQHILW�DQG�UHIXQG�SD\PHQWV�A ��������� ���������

� 0DUNHW�%$)�%DODQFH� � ����������� � ����������

� $FWXDULDO�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV��$9$� ����������� �����������

� $9$�DV�D�3HUFHQWDJH�RI�%$) ����� ������

� 5HWXUQ�RQ�$9$ ����� �����

� $FWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\��$$/�� � ����������� � �����������

� $FWXDULDO�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV��$9$� ����������� �����������

� 8QIXQGHG�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\��8$$/� ��������� ���������

� 8$$/�DV���RI�SD\ ����� �����

� )XQGHG�UDWLR��$9$�$$/� ����� �����

� (PSOR\HU�QRUPDO�FRVW�� ����� �����

� 3ULRU�6HUYLFH�5DWH ����� �����

���� ����

� 0HPEHU ����� �����

� )XOO�UHWLUHPHQW�UDWH��$'(&� ����� �����

� 6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�UDWH ����� �����

���� ����

� 3URMHFWHG�SD\UROO � ���������� � ����������

� &RPELQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH ����� �����

� (VWLPDWHG�HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQ� � ��������� � ���������

1RWH��7056�3ODQ�<HDU�FRLQFLGHV�ZLWK�&DOHQGDU�<HDU

5HVXOWV�IURP�SULRU�\HDU�UHIOHFW�WKH�SODQ�SURYLVLRQV�XVHG�LQ�WKH������������YDOXDWLRQ�UHSRUW�

A�([FOXGHV�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�EHQHILW�SD\PHQWV�IURP�WKH�,5&������P��)XOO�%HQHILW�$UUDQJHPHQW�IXQG�

7RWDO�(PSOR\HU�&RQWULEXWLRQ�(VWLPDWHV�IRU�3<

9DOXDWLRQ�DV�RI�7056�3ODQ�<HDU��3<��(QGLQJ

0HPEHUVKLS�DV�RI�WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�'DWH

%HQHILW�$FFXPXODWLRQ�)XQG��%$)��$VVHWV

$FWXDULDO�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV��$9$�

$FWXDULDO�,QIRUPDWLRQ�

&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWHV�IRU�7056�3ODQ�<HDU��3<�



ϳ

&DOFXODWLRQ�RI�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5HTXLUHPHQWV

'HFHPEHU���������

�� 3ULRU�\HDU¶V�SD\UROO�UHSRUWHG�WR�7056 � ���������� � ���������� � ����������

�� 9DOXDWLRQ�SD\UROO ���������� ���������� ����������

�� (PSOR\HU�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH� ����� ����� �����

�� $FWXDULDO�OLDELOLWLHV

D� $FWLYH�PHPEHUV � ���������� � ���������� � ����������

E� ,QDFWLYH�PHPEHUV ���������� ���������� ����������

F� $QQXLWDQWV ���������� ���������� ����������

G� 7RWDO�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\ � ����������� � ����������� � �����������

�� $FWXDULDO�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV ����������� ����������� �����������

�� 8QIXQGHG�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\��8$$/����G����� � ��������� � ��������� � ���������

�� )XQGHG�UDWLR�������G� ����� ����� �����

�� (TXLYDOHQW�6LQJOH�$PRUWL]DWLRQ�3HULRG ����<HDUV ����<HDUV �����<HDUV

�� $VVXPHG�SD\UROO�JURZWK�UDWH ����� ����� �����

&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH�IRU�7056�3ODQ�<HDU� ����

��� )XOO�UHWLUHPHQW�UDWH

D� 1RUPDO�FRVW ����� ����� �����

E� 3ULRU�VHUYLFH ����� ����� �����

F� )XOO�UHWLUHPHQW�UDWH ����� ����� �����

��� 6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�UDWH ����� ����� �����

��� &RPELQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWHV����F���� ����� ����� �����

�1HZ�/RVVHV�DUH�ODGGHUHG�RQ����\HDU�SHULRG��

��������������������������)URP�9DOXDWLRQ�5HSRUW�DV�RI

'HFHPEHU���������

1HZ�$VVXPSWLRQV 2OG�$VVXPSWLRQV

����



ϴ

6XPPDU\�RI�%HQHILW�3URYLVLRQV

7KH�SODQ�SURYLVLRQV�DUH�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�JRYHUQLQJ�ERG\�RI�WKH�&LW\��ZLWKLQ�WKH�RSWLRQV�DYDLODEOH�LQ�WKH�VWDWH�
VWDWXWHV�JRYHUQLQJ�7056��3ODQ�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�WKH�&LW\�LQ�HIIHFW�DV�RI�$SULO�������� ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

(PSOR\HH�GHSRVLW�UDWH ��

0DWFKLQJ�UDWLR��FLW\�WR�HPSOR\HH� ��WR��

<HDUV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�YHVWLQJ �

5HWLUHPHQW�(OLJLELOLW\��$JH�6HUYLFH� ����������

8SGDWHG�6HUYLFH�&UHGLW ������7UDQVIHUV

$QQXLW\�,QFUHDVH��WR�UHWLUHHV� ����RI�&3,�

6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILW�WR�$FWLYH�(PSOR\HHV <HV

6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILW�WR�5HWLUHHV <HV



ϵ

$PRUWL]DWLRQ�%DVHV�DQG�3D\PHQWV

<HDU <HDUV
(VWDEOLVKHG 'HVFULSWLRQ 5HPDLQLQJ %DVH 3D\PHQW

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH � ���������������� ����������������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH � ������� ������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH � ������� ������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH � ������� ������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH �� ������� ������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH �� ��������� �������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH �� ��������� �������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH �� ��������� �������

���� �����$G�+RF�%HQHILW�&KDQJH �� ��������� �������

���� �����2YHUIXQGHG�1RQ�$G�+RF �� ������ �����

7RWDO ��������� �������



ϭϬ

+LVWRULFDO�DQG�3URMHFWHG�$FFXPXODWLRQ�RI�WKH�%$) %DODQFH

(IIHFWLYH

5HWLUHPHQW (PSOR\HU 0HPEHU ([WHUQDO�&DVK

<HDU�(QGLQJ 3D\UROO� &RQWULEXWLRQ &RQWULEXWLRQV &RQWULEXWLRQV %HQHILW )ORZ�IRU�WKH ,QWHUHVW %$)

'HFHPEHU���� IRU��WKH�<HDU 5DWH�D IRU�WKH�<HDU�F IRU�WKH�<HDU 3D\PHQWV�F <HDU &UHGLW� %DODQFH�E

��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���

��������� ���������������

���� � ����������� ����� � ���������� � ���������� � ����������� � ��������� � ����������� � ������������

���� ����������� ����� ���������� ���������� ����������� ����������� ����������� �����������

���� ����������� ����� ���������� ���������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ������������

���� ����������� ����� ���������� ���������� ����������� ����������� ���������� ������������

���� ����������� ����� ���������� ���������� ����������� ����������� ���������� ������������

D� (IIHFWLYH�UHWLUHPHQW FRQWULEXWLRQ UDWH�LV�WKH DFWXDO�UDWH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�WKH�HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UHFHLYHG�E\�WKH�SD\UROO�SDLG�
E��%$)�%DODQFH�PD\�QRW�VXP GXH�WR�URXQGLQJ�
F� ([FOXGHV�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�EHQHILW�SD\PHQWV�IURP�WKH�,5&������P��)XOO�%HQHILW�$UUDQJHPHQW�IXQG�



ϭϭ

5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ RI )XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH�IURP
3ULRU�$FWXDULDO�9DOXDWLRQ�5HSRUW

$FWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�ORQJ�WHUP�DVVXPSWLRQV� DQG�DFWXDO�UHVXOWV�LQ�D�VSHFLILF�\HDU�FDQ��
DQG�DOPRVW�FHUWDLQO\�ZLOO��GLIIHU�DV�DFWXDO�H[SHULHQFH�GHYLDWHV�IURP�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQV��7KH�IROORZLQJ�
WDEOH�SURYLGHV�D�GHWDLOHG�EUHDNGRZQ�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�UHWLUHPHQW�SRUWLRQ�RI�\RXU�FLW\¶V�FRQWULEXWLRQ�
UDWH� 7KLV�DQDO\VLV�UHFRQFLOHV�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�UHWLUHPHQW�SRUWLRQ��$'(&��RI�\RXU�FLW\¶V�FRQWULEXWLRQ�
UDWH�IURP����� WR�������EXW�ZLOO�QRW�UHIOHFW�DQ\�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�6XSSOHPHQWDO�'HDWK�%HQHILW�
�6'%���LI�\RXU�FLW\�FXUUHQWO\�KDV�WKLV�SURYLVLRQ����$Q\�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�6'%�DUH�SULPDULO\�
GXH�WR�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�DYHUDJH�DJH�RI�\RXU�FLW\¶V�HPSOR\HH�JURXS�DQG�RU�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�FRYHUHG�
UHWLUHHV���)ROORZLQJ�WKH�WDEOH�EHORZ�LV�D�EULHI�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRPPRQ�VRXUFHV�IRU�GHYLDWLRQ�IURP�
WKH�H[SHFWHG�

)XOO�5DWH�IURP������������9DOXDWLRQ��3<������5DWH� ���� �

�������%HQHILW�FKDQJHV ���� �

�������5HWXUQ�RQ�$FWXDULDO�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV ������

�������&RQWULEXWLRQ�ODJ�IXOO\�DPRUWL]HG�SULRU�EDVHV ������

�������3D\UROO�JURZWK ������

�������1RUPDO�FRVW ����

�������/LDELOLW\�JURZWK ������

��6XEWRWDO�([SHULHQFH�&KDQJH ���� �

�������$FWXDULDO�&KDQJHV ������

��7RWDO�FKDQJH� ���� �

)XOO�5DWH�IURP������������9DOXDWLRQ��3<������5DWH� ���� �

&KDQJH�LQ�)XOO�5HWLUHPHQW�5DWH

%HQHILW�&KDQJHV � 6KRZV�WKH�LQFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�DQ\�
PRGLILFDWLRQV�PDGH�WR�WKH�PHPEHU�FLW\¶V�7056�SODQ�SURYLVLRQV� 7KLV�ZLOO�DOVR�LQFOXGH�DQ\�FKDQJHV�
WR�WKH�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�SHULRG�DGRSWHG�E\ RUGLQDQFH�

5HWXUQ�RQ�$FWXDULDO�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV��$9$� � 6KRZV�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�
ZLWK�WKH�UHWXUQ�RQ�WKH�$9$�EHLQJ�GLIIHUHQW�WKDQ�WKH�DVVXPHG��������)RU�WKH�\HDU�HQGLQJ�'HFHPEHU�
����������WKH�UHWXUQ�RQ�DQ�$9$�EDVLV�ZDV ������ 7KH�LPSDFW PD\�VKRZ�DV�������GXH�WR�URXQGLQJ�

&RQWULEXWLRQ�/DJ�)XOO\�$PRUWL]HG�3ULRU�%DVHV � 6KRZV WKH WRWDO�LQFUHDVH RU�GHFUHDVH LQ�WKH
FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�SKDVH LQ�RI FRQWULEXWLRQV�DQG�RU�DQ\�DGGLWLRQDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV�
DERYH�WKH�IXOO�UDWH����7KH HIIHFW�RI�WKH�³&RQWULEXWLRQ�/DJ´ LV�DOVR�LQFOXGHG�KHUH�DQG�UHIHUV WR�WKH WLPH
GHOD\�EHWZHHQ�WKH DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�GDWH DQG WKH GDWH WKH FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH EHFRPHV HIIHFWLYH��)RU�



ϭϮ

7056�PHPEHU�FLWLHV��WKH�³&RQWULEXWLRQ�/DJ´�LV�RQH�\HDU��L�H�� WKH�$FWXDULDO�9DOXDWLRQ�DV�RI�
'HFHPEHU��������� VHWV WKH�UDWH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�&DOHQGDU�<HDU��������7KH�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�
³&RQWULEXWLRQ�/DJ´�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EHFRPH�LPPDWHULDO�RQFH�D�FLW\�LV�FRQWULEXWLQJ�WKH�)XOO�5DWH
DQG�WKH�)XOO�5DWH�VWDELOL]HV�

,Q�DGGLWLRQ��LW�VKRZV�WKH LPSDFW�RI�WKH�EDVHV��LI�DQ\� ZKLFK�EHFDPH�IXOO\�DPRUWL]HG�DV�RI�WKLV�
YDOXDWLRQ�VLQFH�SD\PHQWV�IRU�WKRVH�EDVHV�DUH�QR�ORQJHU�SDUW�RI�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�WKH�SULRU�VHUYLFH�UDWH�

3D\UROO�*URZWK � 6KRZV�WKH�LQFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�KLJKHU RU�
ORZHU�WKDQ�H[SHFWHG�JURZWK�LQ�WKH�PHPEHU�FLW\¶V�RYHUDOO�SD\UROO��7KH�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�SD\PHQWV�ZHUH�
FDOFXODWHG�DVVXPLQJ�SD\UROO�JURZV�DW������ SHU�\HDU��2YHUDOO�SD\UROO�JURZWK�JUHDWHU �OHVV��WKDQ �����
ZLOO�W\SLFDOO\�FDXVH�D�GHFUHDVH �LQFUHDVH� LQ�WKH�SULRU�VHUYLFH�UDWH�

1RUPDO�&RVW � 6KRZV�WKH�LQFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�
DYHUDJH�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH�IRU�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�FLW\¶V�SRSXODWLRQ��7KH�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH IRU�DQ�HPSOR\HH LV�
WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�ZKLFK��LI�DSSOLHG�WR�D�PHPEHU¶V�FRPSHQVDWLRQ WKURXJKRXW�WKHLU�SHULRG�RI�
DQWLFLSDWHG�FRYHUHG�VHUYLFH�ZLWK�WKH�PXQLFLSDOLW\��ZRXOG�EH�VXIILFLHQW�WR�PHHW�DOO�EHQHILWV�SD\DEOH�RQ�
WKHLU�EHKDOI��7KH�VDODU\�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�RI�WKH LQGLYLGXDO UDWHV�LV�WKH�WRWDO�QRUPDO�FRVW�UDWH�

/LDELOLW\�*URZWK � 6KRZV�WKH�LQFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�ODUJHU�RU�
ORZHU�WKDQ�H[SHFWHG�JURZWK�LQ�WKH�PHPEHU�FLW\¶V�RYHUDOO�SODQ�OLDELOLWLHV��7KH�PRVW�VLJQLILFDQW�VRXUFHV�
IRU�YDULDQFH�ZLOO�EH�LQGLYLGXDO�VDODU\�LQFUHDVHV�FRPSDUHG�WR�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQ�DQG�WXUQRYHU��



ϭϯ

5LVNV�$VVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�0HDVXULQJ�WKH�$FFUXHG�/LDELOLW\�DQG�
$FWXDULDOO\�'HWHUPLQHG�&RQWULEXWLRQ

5LVNV�IDFLQJ�D�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�HYROYH�RYHU�WLPH���$�\RXQJ�SODQ�ZLWK�YLUWXDOO\�QR�LQYHVWPHQWV�DQG�
SD\LQJ�IHZ�EHQHILWV�PD\�H[SHULHQFH�OLWWOH�LQYHVWPHQW�ULVN���$Q�ROGHU�SODQ�ZLWK�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�
PHPEHUV�LQ�SD\�VWDWXV�DQG�D�VLJQLILFDQW�WUXVW�PD\�EH�PXFK�PRUH�H[SRVHG�WR�LQYHVWPHQW�ULVN���
*HQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�SODQ�PDWXULW\�PHDVXUHV�LQFOXGH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

5DWLR�RI�WKH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�WR�SD\UROO ���
5DWLR�RI�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\�WR�SD\UROO ���
5DWLR�RI�DFWLYHV�WR�UHWLUHHV�DQG�EHQHILFLDULHV ���
1HW�FDVK�IORZ�DV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�RI��PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV ������
'XUDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLWLHV ����
&KDQJH�LQ�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH�ZLWK�����GHFOLQH�LQ�DVVHWV��VPRRWKHG� �����
&KDQJH�LQ�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH�ZLWK�����GHFOLQH�LQ�DVVHWV��XQVPRRWKHG� �����

5DWLR�RI�0DUNHW�9DOXH�RI�$VVHWV�WR�3D\UROO � 7KH�UHODWLRQVKLS�EHWZHHQ�DVVHWV�DQG�SD\UROO�LV�D�XVHIXO�
LQGLFDWRU�RI�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�YRODWLOLW\�RI�FRQWULEXWLRQV���)RU�H[DPSOH��LI�WKH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�LV�����
WLPHV�WKH�SD\UROO��D�UHWXUQ�RQ�DVVHWV����GLIIHUHQW�WKDQ�DVVXPHG�ZRXOG�HTXDO�����RI�SD\UROO���$�
KLJKHU��ORZHU��RU�LQFUHDVLQJ��GHFUHDVLQJ��OHYHO�RI�WKLV�PDWXULW\�PHDVXUH�JHQHUDOO\�LQGLFDWHV�D�KLJKHU�
�ORZHU��RU�LQFUHDVLQJ��GHFUHDVLQJ��YRODWLOLW\�LQ�SODQ�VSRQVRU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�SD\UROO��

5DWLR�RI�$FWXDULDO�$FFUXHG�/LDELOLW\ WR�3D\UROO � 7KH�UDWLR�RI�OLDELOLW\�WR�SD\UROO�PD\�DOVR�EH�XVHG�
DV�D�PHDVXUH�RI�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�WKH�OLDELOLW\�LWVHOI���)RU�H[DPSOH��LI�WKH�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\�LV�����
WLPHV�WKH�SD\UROO��D�FKDQJH�LQ�OLDELOLW\����RWKHU�WKDQ�DVVXPHG�ZRXOG�HTXDO�����RI�SD\UROO����$�KLJKHU�
�ORZHU��RU�LQFUHDVLQJ��GHFUHDVLQJ��OHYHO�RI�WKLV�PDWXULW\�PHDVXUH�JHQHUDOO\�LQGLFDWHV�D�KLJKHU��ORZHU��
RU�LQFUHDVLQJ��GHFUHDVLQJ��YRODWLOLW\�LQ�OLDELOLW\��DQG�DOVR�SODQ�VSRQVRU�FRQWULEXWLRQV��DV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�
RI�SD\UROO�

7KH�UHODWLRQVKLS�EHWZHHQ�WKH�DFWXDULDO�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLW\�DQG�SD\UROO�LV�D�XVHIXO�LQGLFDWRU�RI�WKH�
SRWHQWLDO�ORQJHU�WHUP�DVVHW�UHODWHG�YRODWLOLW\�RQFH�WKH�FXUUHQW�8$$/�LV�IXOO\�DPRUWL]HG���$�IXQGLQJ�
SROLF\�WKDW�WDUJHWV�D�IXQGHG�UDWLR�RI������LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�UDWLR�RI�DVVHWV�WR�SD\UROO�DQG�WKH�
UDWLR�RI�OLDELOLW\�WR�SD\UROO�FRQYHUJLQJ�RYHU�WLPH���

5DWLR�RI�$FWLYHV�WR�5HWLUHHV�DQG�%HQHILFLDULHV � $�\RXQJ�SODQ�ZLWK�PDQ\�DFWLYH�PHPEHUV�DQG�IHZ�
UHWLUHHV�ZLOO�KDYH�D�KLJK�UDWLR�RI�DFWLYH�WR�UHWLUHHV���$�PDWXUH�RSHQ�SODQ�PD\�KDYH�FORVH�WR�WKH�VDPH�
QXPEHU�RI�DFWLYHV�WR�UHWLUHHV�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�D�UDWLR�QHDU�������$�VXSHU�PDWXUH�RU�FORVHG�SODQ�PD\�KDYH�
VLJQLILFDQWO\�PRUH�UHWLUHHV�WKDQ�DFWLYHV�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�D�UDWLR�EHORZ�������

1HW�&DVK�)ORZ�DV�D�3HUFHQWDJH�RI�0DUNHW�9DOXH � $�SRVLWLYH�QHW�FDVK�IORZ�PHDQV�FRQWULEXWLRQV�
H[FHHG�EHQHILWV�DQG�H[SHQVHV��$�QHJDWLYH�FDVK�IORZ�PHDQV�H[LVWLQJ�IXQGV�DUH�EHLQJ�XVHG�WR�PDNH�
SD\PHQWV���$�FHUWDLQ�DPRXQW�RI�QHJDWLYH�QHW�FDVK�IORZ�LV�JHQHUDOO\�H[SHFWHG�WR�RFFXU�ZKHQ�EHQHILWV�



ϭϰ

DUH�SUHIXQGHG�WKURXJK�D�TXDOLILHG�WUXVW���/DUJH�QHJDWLYH�QHW�FDVK�IORZV�DV�D�SHUFHQW�RI�DVVHWV�PD\�
LQGLFDWH�D�VXSHU�PDWXUH�SODQ�RU�D�QHHG�IRU�DGGLWLRQDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV�

'XUDWLRQ�RI�/LDELOLWLHV � 7KH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�IXWXUH�EHQHILWV�PD\�EH�XVHG�WR�
DSSUR[LPDWH�WKH�VHQVLWLYLW\�WR�D����FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�DVVXPHG�UDWH�RI�UHWXUQ���)RU�H[DPSOH��GXUDWLRQ�RI�
���LQGLFDWHV�WKDW�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�IXWXUH�EHQHILWV�ZRXOG�LQFUHDVH�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����LI�WKH�
DVVXPHG�UDWH�RI�UHWXUQ�ZHUH�ORZHUHG��������7KLV�DOVR�LV�DQ�DSSUR[LPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�GLVFRXQW�ZHLJKWHG�
DYHUDJH�WLPH�KRUL]RQ�RI�WKH�OLDELOLW\��

&KDQJH�LQ�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH�ZLWK�����'HFOLQH�LQ�$VVHWV��6PRRWKHG� � 7KLV�VKRZV�WKH�UDWH�
LPSDFW�LQ�RQH�\HDU�LI�WKH�DFWXDULDO�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV��$9$��ZDV�����ORZHU�WKDQ�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�DFWXDULDO�
YDOXDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DVVHW�ORVV�VPRRWKHG�RYHU�D����\HDU�SHULRG�DV�LV�GRQH�LQ�WKH�V\VWHP�ZLGH�
FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�WKH�$9$�

&KDQJH�LQ�&RQWULEXWLRQ�5DWH�ZLWK�����'HFOLQH�LQ�$VVHWV��8QVPRRWKHG���7KLV�VKRZV�WKH�UDWH�
LPSDFW�LI�WKH�DFWXDULDO�YDOXH�RI�DVVHWV�ZDV�����ORZHU�WKDQ�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�
IXOO�DVVHW�ORVV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�YDOXDWLRQ�



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 6(f) Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a one (1) year contract extension with 

Wells Fargo Bank for depository services.  
  
Submitted by: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Resolution 17-20 authorized a contract with Wells Fargo bank for depository services.  The contract was issued 
for an initial two-year period with three one-year renewal options for a contract term not to exceed five years.  
The initial two-year period expired on September 30, 2019. The first renewal was exercised on September 19, 
2019.  Staff is requesting to exercise the second renewal option. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The current depository agreement between the City and Wells Fargo Bank was issued for two-year period with 
the option to renew on an annual basis for a maximum contract term of five years as allowed by Texas Local 
Government Code, Title 4, Subtitle A, Chapter 105, Subchapter A, Section 105.017.  The initial two-year period 
expired on September 30, 2019 and the first extension will expire on September 30, 2020.   Wells Fargo Bank 
and the City Staff wish to exercise the second of three one-year renewal options and extend the contract for one 
(1) year from October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021.  
  

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
Funding 
Source Account Numbers 

Project 
Number/Name 

Proposed 
FY2021 Funds 

Budgeted 

Proposed  
FY2021 Funds 

Available 

Amount 
Requested 

General 
Fund 101-53519-12-114- Bank Fees $23,400 $23,400 $23,400 

 
 
Purchasing Review:    Shannon Pleasant, CTPM - Procurement & Risk Manager  
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Extension to Depository Contract 
2. Original Depository Contract 
 
 
 
 
 



 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to execute a one (1) year contract extension with Wells Fargo 
Bank for depository services. 
 
Director Approval:   Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 
Assistant City Manager Approval: Bill Atkinson 



Extension to Depository Contract 

This agreement to extend depository services originally offered pursuant to RFA #17-165 dated April 20, 
2017. In effect as of October 1, 2017 and in accordance with the existing depository pledge agreement 
dated August 21, 2017 between City of Missouri City, Texas (“Customer”) and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
(“Wells Fargo”). 

RECITALS 

A. In 2017, Customer and Wells Fargo entered into an agreement to provide deposit and cash 
management services (“Contract”).  Such services were offered pursuant to RFP dated April 
20, 2017 and went into effect on October 1, 2017.  The Contract expires on September 30, 
2019 with an allowance of three 1- year extensions.  
 

B.  The parties agreed to exercise the first of these extensions, beginning October 1, 2019 
through September 30,, 2020.   

 
C. The parties now desire to exercise the second of these extensions for another one- year 

term, such extension to end on September 30, 2021.  

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The parties agree that the Contract will remain in effect until September 30, 2021 unless further 
extended by written notification of the Customer and Wells Fargo. 
 

2. All provisions of the Contract, except as modified by this Extension shall remain in full force and 
effect and are reaffirmed.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any provision of 
this Extension and any provision within the Contract, the provisions of this Extension shall 
govern and control. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Customer and Wells Fargo have caused this Extension to be executed as of the 
date first written above. 

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 

By: ________________________ 
Name: Orlando. A. Saenz, VP-CTP 
Title: GIB Relationship Manager 

Date: ______________________ 

CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _______________________ 
Title: ________________________ 

Date: _______________________ 

9/14/2020











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item:  6(g) Consider and take action a taxpayer request for wavier of penalty and interest on 

property taxes for the 2019 tax year.  
  
Submitted by: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services  

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Property Tax Code 33.011(h) provides for waiver of penalties and interest if the taxpayer submits evidence 
showing that: 

1. The tax is payable be electronic funds transfer under an agreement entered into under Section 31.06 
(a); and 

2. The taxpayer submits evidence sufficient showing that: 
a. The taxpayer attempted to pay the tax by electronic funds transfer in the proper manner before 

the delinquency date;  
b. The taxpayer’s failure to pay the tax before the delinquency date was caused by an error in 

the transmission of funds; and 
c. The tax was properly paid by electronic funds transfer or otherwise not later than the 21st day 

after the date the taxpayer knew or should have known of the delinquency. 
 

Taxpayer, Felix Onwukwe, is requesting waiver of penalty and interest for the 2019 tax year in the amount 
of $118.97 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The taxpayer’s basis for the waiver request is an electronic payment error as outlined in Section 33.011 (h) 
of the Property Tax Code. The taxpayer made an effort to pay the amount due prior to delinquency date, but 
sent the payment to Harris County instead of Fort Bend County as documented in the attached packet.  The 
taxpayer was notified by Fort Bend County of the delinquency on February 4, 2020 and payment of the 
delinquent tax was made on May 11, 2020, after the 21st day of notification of delinquency. 
 
The Tax Assessor-Collector does not recommend waiver of penalty and interest for the 2019 Tax Year for 
Felix Onwukwe due to the taxpayer not providing sufficient evidence to support the claim.   
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
The total penalty and interest requested to be waived by the taxpayer is $118.97. 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Request packet from County Tax Assessor-Collector 



 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends Council make a determination regarding waiver of penalties and interest. 
 
Director Approval: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services   
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 
 



























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(a)(1) FBISD Elementary School site #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP, Specific Use Permit  
  
Submitted by: Jennifer Thomas Gomez, AICP, Planning Manager 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This is the final reading of an ordinance for a SUP, Specific Use Permit to allow for the location of a place 
of assembly for a proposed Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) elementary school site; and to 
the extent such zoning deviates from the Future Land Use and Character map of the Comprehensive Plan, 
to provide for an amendment therefrom. 
 
The subject site is located at the northeast corner of Knights Court and Thompson Ferry Road, 
north of Stonebrook at Riverstone, north and west of FBISD Elkins High School and east of 
Creekstone Village at Riverstone. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Have quality development through buildout  
 

BACKGROUND 
 
As part of its 2018 approved bond referendum, Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) identified 
elementary school site #53 to serve a growing population in the Riverstone area. This elementary school 
site is one of several new schools planned to be constructed throughout the district. 
 
This proposed Riverstone school site is similar in design to two other school sites; a proposed site, 
Elementary #52, which would be located near the Fort Bend Parkway in the Parks Edge subdivision  and 
the existing Neill Elementary School located in Richmond within the Harvest Green subdivision. The model 
school sites are designed as two-story buildings of approximately 127,544 square feet to accommodate 
1,000 students.  
 
Staff recommended approval for the SUP. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
application at its August 12, 2020 meeting and expressed concern regarding traffic circulation and roadway 
design resulting in congestion along Thompson Ferry Road and Knights Court. The Commission discussed 
the current situation being driven primarily by traffic flowing to and from Elkins High School and what 
implications placing a second school site in this area would have on this situation. A Commissioner asked 
about any planned or proposed improvements in the area to address this concern. Ultimately, the P&Z 
Commission forwards a positive recommendation to approve the SUP. 
 
City Council first considered the ordinance on the September 8, 2020 regular meeting agenda. 
Councilmembers emphasized concern on traffic safety including taking into account the design efforts of a 
proposed Montessori school recently approved for zoning nearby; ingress and egress/drop off and pick up 
design to ensure that traffic is not stacked up onto Knights Court or Thompson Ferry Road; and the 
provision of sidewalks along both roadways. In addition, Councilmembers raised continued concern with 



the limited provision of public notice that only extends 200 feet from a subject site and only to property 
owners within the incorporated city limits.    
 
City Council approved the ordinance on the first reading and requested that staff provide an update on the 
issues and concerns discussed for the 2nd and final reading of the ordinance. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name FY__ 

Funds Budgeted 

FY__  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

N/A 

 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Ordinance 
2. Planning and Zoning Commission final report 
3. Ortho map 
4. Ortho map with site plan overlay 
5. Conceptual building perspective, material and color designation  
6. Notice of public hearing 
7. Notice of public hearing to adjoining property owners 
8. Protest-support letter 
9. Mailing labels for adjoining property owners 
10. Rezoning application protest letters analysis  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance on the final reading. 
 
Director Approval:   Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Development Services Director 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Glen A. Martel, Assistant City Manager 
 



SUP  208 FBISD Ordinance.docx  Page 1 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, GRANTING 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. 208 FOR THE USE OF A 20-ACRE TRACT 
OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY AS A SPECIFIC USE--
PLACES OF ASSEMBLY; DESCRIBING SAID 20-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND; PROVIDING LIMITATIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND CONDITIONS 
ON SUCH SPECIFIC USE; AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; PROVIDING 
A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND CONTAINING 
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

 
  *           *   *   *  
   
 WHEREAS, Fort Bend Independent School District is the owner of a 20-acre tract 
of land within the corporate limits of the City of Missouri City, Texas; and 

 WHEREAS, said 20-acre tract of land presently has a zoning classification of SD 
suburban district, pursuant to Ordinance No. O-81-1, adopted on January 19, 1981; and 

WHEREAS, the owner’s agent, Austan Lupher, RPLS of Pape Dawson Engineers, 
has made an application to the City of Missouri City to authorize a specific use permit for 
a places of assembly use; and    
   

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City 
of Missouri City have each conducted, in the time and manner and after the notice 
required by law and the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance, a public hearing on such 
request for a specific use permit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has issued its final report and 
the City Council now deems it appropriate to grant such request for Specific Use Permit 
No. 208-places of assembly; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this use will complement or be compatible 

with the surrounding uses and community facilities, contribute to, enhance, or promote 
the welfare of the area of request and adjacent properties, not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety, or general welfare; and conform in all other respects to all applicable zoning 
regulations and standards; now, therefore,  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct. 

Section 2. That as required by law, the City Council conducted the public hearing 
on the request for Specific Use Permit No. 208-places of assembly use and closed the 
public hearing prior to the final adoption of this Ordinance. 

 
 



SUP  208 FBISD Ordinance.docx  Page 2 of 4 
 

Section 3. The property is more fully described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto 
and made a part hereof for all purposes (the “Property”), and is depicted in Exhibit “A-
1” for reference purposes only. In the event Exhibit “A-1” conflicts with Exhibit “A,” 
Exhibit “A” shall prevail. 

Section 4. The specific use of the Property authorized and permitted by this 
Ordinance is Specific Use Permit No. 208-places of assembly. 

Section 5. Presently, the Property has a zoning classification of SD suburban 
district. The specific use authorized and permitted by this Ordinance shall be developed 
in accordance with the Missouri City Code and the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance and shall be developed subject to the following limitations, restrictions, and 
conditions: 

I. Use Permitted. Only the following use shall be permitted: 
 
- Places of assembly. 

 
II. Site Plan. Use of the Property shall generally comply with the attached site 

plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 
 

III. Lighting. Lighting illumination in excess of 0.25 foot-candle or 0.50 foot-
candle of average general light overflow at any boundary line of the Property 
adjacent to a residential use is prohibited. 
 

IV. Architectural Standards. Portable buildings shall be located on the 
Property as indicated in Exhibit B. Except as prohibited by Title 10 of Subtitle 
Z of Chapter 3000 of the Texas Government Code, development of the 
Property shall comply with Section 7A of the City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

V. Trash disposal. The Property owner shall maintain the trash enclosure area 
in compliance with rules and regulations for nonresidential uses contained in 
Section 9.14 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.  
 

VI. Signs. The Property owner shall maintain the signs on the Property in 
compliance with rules and regulations for nonresidential uses contained in 
Section 13 of the City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.  
 

VII. Landscape.  Landscaping on the Property shall be maintained in 
accordance with Section 11 of the Missouri City Zoning Ordinance.  
 

Section 6.  The Zoning District Map of the City of Missouri City shall be revised 
and amended to show the specific use permitted on the 20-acre tract of land, as granted 
by this Ordinance, with the appropriate reference thereon to the number and effective 
date of this Ordinance and a brief description of the nature of this change.   

   



SUP  208 FBISD Ordinance.docx  Page 3 of 4 
 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall in no manner amend, change, supplement, or 
revise any provision of any ordinance of the City of Missouri City, Texas, save and except 
the change in the specific use of the 20-acre tract of land described in Section 3 hereof 
authorizing the specific use-places of assembly use, and the imposition of the limitations, 
restrictions, and conditions contained herein. 

 
Section 8. Comprehensive plan deviation. To the extent that this Ordinance 

represents any deviation from the Future Land Use and Character map of the City of 
Missouri City Comprehensive Plan, such map is hereby amended to conform with this 
Ordinance. 

 
Section 8. The building official shall not issue a building permit or a certificate 

of occupancy for a use authorized by this specific use permit on the Property until there 
has been full compliance with this Ordinance, the Missouri City Code of Ordinances, and 
all other ordinances, rules and regulations of the City of Missouri City.  
 

Section 9.   Repeal. Any other ordinance or any part of any other ordinance in 
conflict herewith shall be and is hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 10. Penalty. Any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, 

company, or organization of any kind who or which violates any provision of this Zoning 
Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall 
be fined in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day during 
which said violation shall exist or occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The owner or 
owners of any property or of premises where any violation of this zoning ordinance shall 
occur, and any agent, contractor, builder, architect, person, or corporation who shall 
assist in the commission of such offense shall be guilty of a separate offense unless 
otherwise prohibited by law and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as above 
provided.  

 
Section 11. Severability.  In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, 

clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance or the application of the 
same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate 
this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to 
be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, 
declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 
omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there 
be one or more parts. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on first reading this 8th day of September, 2020. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on second and final reading this 21st day 
of September, 2020. 

 
 



SUP  208 FBISD Ordinance.docx  Page 4 of 4 
 

      __________________________________ 
      Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ __________________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary  E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
 



jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit APage 1 of 2



jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit APage 2 of 2



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

P
IG

E
O

N

COLONY BEND LN

KNIGHTS CT

K
N

IG

H
T
S

C
T

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

O
IL

F
IE

L
D

 R
D

B
E

T
H

A
N

Y
B

A
Y

D
R

S
H

A
D

Y
S

ID
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

F
O

Y
E

R
 C

IR

M
O

O
N

B
E

A
M

 C
IR

C
O

L
O

N
Y

 V
IE

W
 L

N

C
O

L
O

N
Y

PLY
M

O
U

T
H

P
O

IN
T
E

L
N

SHADY BAY LN

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

R
A

V
E
L
 C

T

S
 G

O
L

D
 R

IV
E

R
 C

IR

O
A

K
 B

A
Y

 C
IR

A
D

IS
E

R
IV

E
R

D
R

OILFIELD RD
B
E
N

D
 C

IR
RO C

K

JA DE
COVE LN

A
U

T
U

M
N

R
O

S
E

L
N

WEATHERFIELD CT

PE B
B

L
E

B
L

U
F

F
L

N

CTFALLSBROOK

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

TURTLE
SPRIN

G
S

LN

WALDEN

PARK LN

H
E

A
T

H
R

IV
E

R
L

N

FIEL

D
B

R
IA

R
L

N

BLUFFST
O

N
E

C
T

WOLF

SPRINGS

CT
B

R
O

K
EN

PIN
E

C
T

J
A

D
E

C
O

V
E

C
T

DOVER 

BLUFF LNSWEET GLEN

CT

B
R

A
N

T

H
A

R
B

O
R

 L
N

H
E

A

T
H

RIVER LN

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

T
W

IN
R

I
V

E
R

S
L

N

ORCHARD SPRINGS CT

B
E

A
C

O
N

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

 L
N

SAWYER BEND LN

HUNTERS GATE CT

PEACH 

CREEK LN

SUMMIT 

SPRINGS LN

C
A

N
D

L
E

C
O

V
ER CT

LINDEN ROSE LN

L
IN

D
E

N
R

O
S

E
L

N

KENDALL 

HILL CT

K
E

N
D

A
L

L REEKSTONE C SS ING
DR

SERRANO 

VALLEY LN

G
R

A
N

IT
E

F
A

L
L

S
L

N

R
IS

I
N

G
W

A
L

K
L

N

S
L

A
T

E
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

T

S
T

A
G

E
 S

T
O

N
E

 L
N

BENDING KEY CT

SENIOR RD

T
W

I
N

R
IV

E
R

S
LN

T
O

N
E

L
N

O

N
E

Y

R
O

O
K

C
T

M
E
R

R
Y

 

M
E
A

D
O

W
 C

T PLUM
POINT CT

TWIN
RIVERSCT

C
R

E
E

K
S
T

O
N

E

V
IL

L
A

G

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

F
E

R
R

Y
R

DMAY RIDGE LN

CREEK
STONE

CROSSIN
G

DRP
IP

E
R

G
L

E
N

L
N

ROCK

RIVER CT

M
A

V
E

R
I
C

K

B
E

N
D

L
N

ANDOVER TRACE LNH
O

R
IZ

O
N

S

E
D

G
E

L
N

HIDDEN

BOUGH LN

PEBBL

PASSCT

Subject site

FBISD
Elkins 

High School

RPC
Missouri City

CREEKSTONE VILLAGE 
AT RIVERSTONE

STONEBROOK 
AT RIVERSTONE

COLONY LAKES

Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

Proposed FBISD school site

0 800 1,600400
Feet

1 inch = 800 feet

jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit A-1Page 1 of 1



0

1

R

R

16
8 10

10

1010

10

10

10

10

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

100011099

777L
1

PRE-K PLAYGROUND

1ST-5TH PLAYGROUND

FUTURE PORTABLES

SWING SET

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

4' FENCE LINE

6' HIGH CHAIN LINK
FENCE LINE

COVERED COURT

PLAYFIELD

EG0.1

EG0.2

EG0.3

AS1.02
1

AS1.03
1

AS1.02
2

AS1.04
2

AS1.04
3AS1.04

4

AS1.04
5

AS1.04
6

AS1.04
1

DIGITAL
MARQUEE
SIGNAGE

PARENT DROP-OFF /
PICK-UP

BU
S 

DR
OP

-O
FF

 / P
IC

K-
UP

VISITOR / STAFF PARKING
(56 STANDARD STALLS / 4 ADA STALLS)

VIS
ITO

R PA
RKIN

G (11
9 S

TA
NDAR

D ST
AL

LS
 / 4

 AD
A S

TA
LLS

)

DETENTION POND, REF CIVIL

DETENTION POND, REF CIVIL

PARENT DROP-OFF /
PICK-UP ENTRANCE

PARENT DROP-OFF /
PICK-UP EXIT

MECHANICAL YARD

THOMPSON FERRY ROAD

KN
IGHTS

 COURT

SERVICE GATE

SERVICE GATE

ACCESS GATE
OUTDOOR LEARNING

ENVIRONMENT

AS2.01
1

TRANSFORMER , REF ELEC.

4' HIGH CHAIN LINK
FENCE LINE

4' HIGH CHAIN LINK
FENCE LINE

EXTEDNDED DAY
TEMPORARY PARKING

LOADING ZONE

AS2.01
17

ADA RAMP

AS2.02
2

PLANTERS, REF CIVIL

EG0.5

EG0.4
EG0.10
EG0.9

ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

KNOX BOX

KNOX BOX

2.21

EXISTING 6' HIGH CHAIN
LINK FENCE LINE TO BE
MODIFIED AS REQUIRED
WITH FINISH GRADE,
FINISHED GRADE TO BE
COORDINATED WITH CIVIL

EG0.11

SERVICE GATE
RETROFIT EXISTING
CHAINLINK FENCE

EG0.13

EG0.12

KNOX BOX

AS1.01
1

FLAG POLE, REF
DETAIL                  .

PROPERTY LINE

/12 AS2.01

6' - 0" 7' 
- 0

"
8' - 0"

EG0.8
EG0.7
EG0.6

AS1.01
5

AS1.01
3

AS1.01
4

PASSENGER LOADING ZONE

jthomas
Text Box
Exhibit BPage 1 of 1

jthomas
Callout
Future Portable (Temporary) Building Location



 

 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

FINAL REPORT 
 
 
AGENDA DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) 

Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) 
 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  7.a.(1)  
   
PROJECT PLANNER: Jennifer Thomas Gomez, AICP, Planning 

Manager    
 
APPROVAL: Otis T. Spriggs, AICP, Director, Development 

Services  
 
 Sonya Brown-Marshall, Planning and Zoning 

Commission Chair 
 
 
      
 
PERMIT NUMBER:   SUP2000010 
 
PROPERTY ID:  0077-00-000-1411-907 
 
LOCATION: The subject site is located at the northeast corner 

of Knights Court and Thompson Ferry Road, north 
of Stonebrook at Riverstone, north and west of 
FBISD Elkins High School and east of Creekstone 
Village at Riverstone. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The proposal complies with the provisions of the 2017 Comprehensive Plan and the 
policies contained in the Future Land Use Plan. The Future Land Use Plan designation 
should be revised to reflect community facilities if the proposed SUP is approved.    

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission adopts this as its Final Report and forwards it to 
City Council with a positive recommendation for consideration and adoption thereof. 
 
 

 

jthomas
Snapshot



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 2 

 

 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
As part of its 2018 approved bond referendum, Fort Bend Independent School District 
(FBISD) identified elementary school site #53 to serve a growing population in the 
Riverstone area. This elementary school site is one of several new schools planned to 
be constructed throughout the district.  
 
The applicant has described this proposed Riverstone area school site to be similar in 
design to another proposed site, Elementary #52, which would be located near the Fort 
Bend Parkway; as well as the design of the existing Neill Elementary School located in 
Richmond within the Harvest Green subdivision. The model school sites are designed as 
two-story buildings of approximately 127,544 square feet to accommodate 1,000 
students. 
 
A site plan of the proposed elementary school site #53 has been provided and shows 
the overall building layout; associated recreational and educational uses; parking 
facilities; driveway access off of Thompson Ferry Road; driveway design into the 
campus for the queuing of cars that are loading and unloading students; and potential 
locations for on-site detention. The site would be adjacent to Elkins High School but is 
not proposed to provide direct access between the two campuses.  
   
 
GENERAL SITE INFORMATION: 
 

A. Legal Description: 
The subject site can be described as being a 20 acre tract of land, being a 
portion of a called 41.052 acre tract of land conveyed to FPL Real Estate LTD, as 
described in a deed recorded in Clerk’s File No. 2000014020 in the Official Public 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, also being a portion of Restricted Reserve 
“A” of Frost Ranch Site Subdivision as recorded in Slide No. 1987A and 1988A in 
the Plat Records of Fort Bend County, situated in the Elijah Roark Survey, A-77, 
Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 
B. Size:        20 acres 

 
C. Existing Land Use and Zoning Designation:  Unimproved / SD,  

         suburban district 
 

D. Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Designations:  
 
North: Drainage, utility facilities / CF, community facilities 

  
 South: Drainage, utility facilities; Stonebrook at Riverstone subdivision / ETJ, 

extraterritorial jurisdiction 
 

 East:  FBISD Elkins High School / SUP, Specific Use Permit No. 112 
(Ordinance O-90-37)  

 



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 3 

 

 

 West:  Creekstone Village at Riverstone subdivision / ETJ, extraterritorial 
jurisdiction 

   
E. Zoning History:   

 
 11-17-1980: Subject site annexed by the City of Missouri City 

(Ordinance O-80-28) 
 
 01-19-1981: Subject site zoned SD, suburban district (Ordinance O-81-

01) 
 
 
ANALYSIS OF SUBJECT SITE: 
  

A. Development Potential 
 
As part of its 2018 approved bond referendum, Fort Bend Independent School 
District (FBISD) identified elementary school site #53 to serve a growing 
population in the Riverstone area. This elementary school site is one of several 
new schools planned to be constructed throughout the district.  

 
The applicant has described this proposed Riverstone area school site to be 
similar in design to another proposed site, Elementary #52, which would be 
located near the Fort Bend Parkway; as well as the design of the existing Neill 
Elementary School located in Richmond within the Harvest Green subdivision. 
The model school sites are designed as two-story buildings of approximately 
127,544 square feet to accommodate 1,000 students. 

 
Conformance with the 2017 Comprehensive Plan:  The proposed amendment 
is in conformance with the following portions of the 2017 Comprehensive Plan 
Overall Goal Statement: 

 
 Goal 1.3: A more cohesive city. Build upon public and private, 

intergovernmental and institutional, private sector and non-profit 
partnerships.  

 
Conformance with the Future Land Use Plan:  The Future Land Use Plan 
identifies the subject tract as suburban residential reflecting the suburban 
character. 
 
Suburban character is summarized as follows: 
 

This designation is for areas where both residential and 
commercial development forms result in a more green, open feel 
compared to more intensively developed areas where buildings, 
parking areas, and other improvements cover more of their sites.  
In Suburban Residential areas, there is more separation 
between homes (whether through larger minimum lot sizes or 
setbacks), and the intervening spaces are devoted more to trees 
and vegetation than paved surfaces. ….The predominance of 
“green” versus “gray” is also necessary for commercial 



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 4 

 

 

development to achieve a Suburban character (usually through 
application of site and building design standards). Suburban 
commercial development is appropriate for office, retail and 
service uses abutting residential neighborhoods (subject to scale 
limitations and “residential in appearance” design standards) and 
in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value 
is to be promoted, such as at gateways and along high profile 
corridors. 

 
Staff recommended: Approve the SUP to allow for a places of assembly and 
the location of the proposed FBISD elementary school. As the city and overall 
community have continued to experience sustained growth, FBISD has worked 
with developers and the city to anticipate possible school site locations in high 
growth areas. This proposed site is along a corridor that has developed with 
other civic and religious based uses and a school site would serve as a 
compatible transition from the more intense Highway 6 retail uses into the 
residential uses surrounding the subject site.  
 
An update to the Future Land Use Plan should change the site’s designation to 
CF, community facilities to reflect the educational use, if the SUP is approved. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: To approve as staff 
recommended. 
 

B. Height and area requirements.  The height and area regulations for SD, 
suburban district, contained in Section 7.1, City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance should apply. 
 
This proposed school site is modeled after 2 other school site designs and is 
proposed to be a two-story building of approximately 127,544 square feet to 
accommodate 1,000 students. 
 
A site plan of the proposed elementary school site #53 has been provided and 
shows the overall building layout; associated recreational and educational uses. 
 
Based on the proposed building design and layout, the height and area 
regulations of the SD district would be suitable. The SD district allows for a 
maximum height not to exceed 3½ stories; a front and rear yard of not less than 
25 feet; and side yards of not less than 10 feet or 15 feet where abutting a street.  

 
C. Exterior lighting regulations.  

 
Staff recommended: Exterior lighting should be shielded to prohibit 
illumination at the boundary of an adjacent residential use in excess of 0.25 
foot-candle of average general light overflow or 0.50 foot-candle at any point on 
such boundary. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: To approve as staff 
recommended.  
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 5 

 

 

D. Architectural standards. Except as provided herein, all buildings and structures 
should be constructed in accordance with Section 7A, Architectural design 
standards, City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance, except as prohibited by Title 
10, of Subtitle Z, of Chapter 3000, of the Texas Government Code.  
 
The applicant has submitted proposed material and colors for the main school 
building. The design is similar to the proposed Elementary #52, which would be 
located near the Fort Bend Parkway as well as the existing Neill Elementary 
School. The design includes the incorporation of brick and stone veneers in 
muted, earth tone colors.  
 
The submitted site plan shows the possible future location of portable buildings. 
Most of the FBISD school sites incorporate this design into a campus layout.  
 
Section 7A.3.7. prohibits temporary buildings, other than construction trailers. 
 
Staff recommended: To approve the location of portable buildings, as shown on 
the site plan. The proposed location is to the rear of the main building and would 
generally not be visible from the public right-of-way. The location would be similar 
to the placement of portable buildings on the adjacent Elkins High School 
campus.  
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: To approve as staff 
recommended.  
 

E. Ingress and egress.  All driveways and off-street parking areas, including 
locations, should comply with the Infrastructure Design Manual.   
 
A Traffic Impact worksheet and a Level 3 Traffic Impact Analysis has been 
received by the city. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission expressed concern regarding traffic 
circulation and roadway design resulting in congestion along Thompson Ferry 
Road and Knights Court. The Commission discussed the current situation as 
being driven primarily by traffic flowing to and from Elkins High School and what 
implications placing a second school site in this area would have on this 
situation. A Commissioner asked about any planned or proposed improvements 
in the area to address this concern.  
 

F. Parking regulations. The parking regulations contained in Section 12, City of 
Missouri City Zoning Ordinance should apply. 
 
The originally submitted site plan stated that parking requirements would be 
obtained from the applicable city ordinance.  
 
Section 12.2. requires 1.25 parking spaces per classroom plus 0.25 per student 
of driving age, as applicable for elementary and secondary schools.  
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 6 

 

 

G. Trash disposal regulations. The trash disposal regulations contained in Section 
9.14 and pertaining to nonresidential zones, City of Missouri City Zoning 
Ordinance should apply. 
 
The submitted site plan shows a dumpster enclosure location to the side of the 
building, northeast of the visitor parking area. The applicant has provided details 
for the enclosure. The enclosure is proposed to be at a height of 7’4” and consist 
of brick to match the main building. The gates are proposed to be opaque, 
consisting of lumber pickets. 
 
Section 9.14 requires that an enclosure have opaque metal gates in a color 
either matching that of the enclosure or the trim color. 
 
Staff recommended: The requirements of Section 9.14 should apply. The 
applicant should revise this detail prior to the issuance of building permits.  
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: To approve as staff 
recommended.  
 

H. Utilities.  All utilities shall comply with the Infrastructure Design Manual.  
 
The subject site is not located within a municipal utility district however is in 
proximity to infrastructure and services provided by Fort Bend County MUD #46. 
Annexation or a service agreement with a municipal utility district will be required 
prior to final plat approval.  
 
The subject site is located within the Flat Bank Creek watershed. On-site 
drainage facilities are being proposed.  
 
City staff has discussed with the applicant timing on the approval of a LOMR-F 
prior to the issuance of building permits.  
 

I. Sign regulations. The sign regulations contained in Section 13 and pertaining to 
a nonresidential zoning district, City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance should 
apply. 
 
The applicant has not submitted proposed signage for the school site. However, 
other school sites have consisted of one or more monument signs with 
changeable messages, wall signs, and periodic temporary signs and 
conditionally exempt signs.  
 
Staff recommended: The sign allowance for nonresidential zoning districts 
should apply to the subject school site instead of the SD regulations to allow the 
school site flexibility to provide messaging as needed with appropriate standards 
that would lessen possible intrusive impacts on surrounding uses.   
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: To approve as staff 
recommended.  
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Final Report 
Re:  FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP 
September 8, 2020 - Page 7 

 

 

J. Landscaping requirements.  The landscaping regulations contained in Section 
11, City of Missouri City Zoning Ordinance should apply.  
 
At the time of the Commission’s consideration, the applicant had not submitted a 
proposed landscape plan but had submitted a tree preservation plan showing the 
possible maintenance of a few existing, mature trees along the rear of the 
property. 
 
The applicant has since provided a conceptual landscape plan to show the 
considerations for screening and buffering areas on the site including the off-
street parking areas as well as the detention areas.  
 

K. Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be constructed in compliance with the Infrastructure 
Design Manual.  
 

L. Platting.  The site is required to be platted in conformance with Chapter 82, City 
Subdivision Ordinance, Missouri City Code of Ordinances.  
 

M. Development Schedule.  The applicant has provided a development schedule 
indicating that the anticipated completion of the school site is March 2022. The 
applicant and District representatives have further provided to city staff that this 
date is expected to be pushed back a year, into 2023.  
 

---------------------------------------------END OF REPORT-------------------------------------  
 

 
 

 



S
A

IL
O

R
'S

 W
A

Y

S
T
A

T
E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

P
IG

E
O

N

PORTUGUESE

COLONY BEND LN

KNIGHTS CT

K
N

IG

H
T
S

C
T

COLONY PT

BREAKER CT

P
O

R
T

U
G

U
E

S
E

B
E

N

D
DR

BEND CT

ABALONE

COVE

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

L
A

K
E

O
L
Y

M
PIA

PK
W

Y

P
A

L
M

E
R

P
L

A

S
T
A

T
E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

P
T

A
IN

S
 C

T

C
O

V
E

FOUR WINDS DR

O
IL

F
IE

L
D

 R
D

B
E
T

H
A

N
Y

B
A

Y
D

R

S
H

A
D

Y
S

ID
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

F
O

Y
E

R
 C

IR

M
O

O
N

B
E

A
M

 C
IR

C
O

L
O

N
Y

 V
IE

W
 L

N

C
O

L
O

N
Y

PLY
M

O
U

T
H

P
O

IN
T
E

L
N

HARBOUR COVE CIR

LAKE VISTA CIR

SHADY BAY LN

BELMONT

SHORE CT

LAGUNA
PO

INT LN

CARAVEL CIR

ALEXIS TATE
CIR

R
H

O
D

E
S

 C
T

C
A

R
A

V
E

L
 L

N

H
A

R
B

O
U

R
S

ID
E

 L
N

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 6

C
A

R
A

V
E
L
 C

T

S
 G

O
L

D
 R

IV
E

R
 C

IR

O
A

K
 B

A
Y

 C
IR

P
A

R

A
D

IS
E

R
I
V

E
R

D
R

S
A

B
L

E
R

I
V

E
R

D
R

OILFIELD RD

B
E

L
M

O
N

T
S

H
O

R
E

L
N

LOUPE
LN

LOUPE

CT

C
A

R
A

V
E

L
 L

N

B
E
N

D
 C

IR
RO C

K
Y

C
R

E
E
K

D
R

S
IE

N
N

A
R
A

N
C

H
R

D

JA DE
COVE LN

A
U

T
U

M
N

R
O

S
E

L
N

WEATHERFIELD CT

PE B
B

L
E

B
L

U
F

F
L

N

CTFALLSBROOK

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

TURTLE
SPRIN

G
S

LN

WALDEN

PARK LN

H
E
A

T
H

R
IV

E
R

L
N

FIEL

D
B

R
IA

R
L

N

BLUFFST
O

N
E

C
T

WOLF

SPRINGS

CT
B

R
O

K
E

N

PIN
E

C
T

J
A

D
E

C
O

V
E

C
T

DOVER 

BLUFF LNSWEET GLEN

CT

B
R

A
N

T

H
A

R
B

O
R

 L
N

H
E

A

T
H

RIVER LN

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

T
W

IN
R

I
V

E
R

S
L

N

ORCHARD SPRINGS CT

B
E

A
C

O
N

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

 L
N

SAWYER BEND LN

HUNTERS GATE CT

PEACH 

CREEK LN

SUMMIT 

SPRINGS LN

C
A

N
D

L
E

C
O

V
ER CT

LINDEN ROSE LN

L
IN

D
E

N
R

O
S

E
L

N

KENDALL 

HILL CT

K
E

N
D

A
L

L
H

IL
L

LN

CREEKSTONE CROSS ING
DR

SERRANO 

VALLEY LN

G
R

A
N

IT
E

F
A

L
L

S
L

N

R
IS

I
N

G
W

A
L

K
L

N

S
L

A
T

E
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

T

S
T

A
G

E
 S

T
O

N
E

 L
N

A
U

B
R

E
Y

 

O
A

K
S

 L
N

F
A

IR
W

I N
D

L
N

CANTON HILLS LN

BENDING KEY CT

W
A
V

E
R
L
Y

 

C
A

N
Y

O
N

 C
T

STEVENSON DRSTEVENSON DR

BAITLAND DR BAITLAND DR

P
A

C
E

 D
R

T
H

O
R

N
T

O
N

 D
R

M
E
R

C
E

R
 C

T

B
A

IN
D

R

DISCOVERY
LN

PATTERSON DR

L
E
D

G
E
R
 L

N

M
C

A
L

L
IS

T
E

R

D
R

A
Y

T
O

N
 H

A
L
L

SENIOR RD

T
W

IN
R

IV

E
R

S
LN

IS
C

O

V
E
R
Y

LN

C
O

P
IN

 L
A

K
E

 L
N

GOLDLEAF CT

SHOREVIEW LN

SH
O

R
E
V

IE
W

 L
N

S
H

O REVIE
W

LN

N

GOLD

RIVER CIR

SPANISH

BAY

CT

SHOREVIEW 

CT

W
A

T
E
R
 S

H
O

A
L
 L

N

F
ID

D
L

E
R

S

G
R

E
E

N
D

R

H
A

M
L
E
T

L
N

MORELEIGH

BRANCH DR

PENHALLOW

LN

T
O

N
E

L
N

LN

WTHER
ANDING

CT

L
A

R
A

L
E

D

G
E

LN

L
O

S
T

F
A

L
L

S
C

T

G
E

N
T

L
E

W
O

O
D

L
N

O

N
E

Y

R
O

O
K

C
T

RPON BA
Y

C
T

M
E
R

R
Y

 

M
E
A

D
O

W
 C

T

PEARL PASS LN

PLUM
POINT CT

TWIN
RIVERSCT

S
Y

D
N

E
Y

PA
R

K LN

LONE ROCK LN

C
R

E
E

K
S
T

O
N

E

V
IL

L
A

GE DR

PEARL

PASS CT

J
O

R
D

O
N

F
A

L
L

S
D

R

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

F
E

R
R

Y
R

D

Q
U

IE
T

P
O

IN
T

L
N

CLOVER

RID
GE LN

PEBBLE HEIG
H

T
S

L
N

H

V
A

LE LN

MAY RIDGE LN

CREEKSTO
NE

CROSSING
DRP

IP
E

R

G
L

E
N

L
N

PERALTA

HILLS LN

SKY RUN
C

T

ROCK

RIVER CT

CHANDLER

HOLLOW LN

SHADOW VIEW LN

M
A

V
E

R
I
C

K

B
E

N
D

L
N

ANDOVER TRACE LNH
O

R
IZ

O
N

S

E
D

G
E

L
N

HIDDEN

BOUGH LN

P
E
B

B
L
E

V
IE

W
C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
D

R

PEBBLE

PASSCT

P

E
B

B
L

E

PA
S

S
L

N

P
E
B

B
L
E

R
ID

G
E

T
R

L

PEBBLE
WAY LN

Subject site

FBISD
Elkins 

High School

RPC
Missouri City

CREEKSTONE VILLAGE 
AT RIVERSTONE

STONEBROOK 
AT RIVERSTONE

COLONY LAKES

Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

Proposed FBISD school site

0 800 1,600400
Feet

1 inch = 800 feet



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

P
IG

E
O

N

COLONY BEND

KNIGHTS CT

K
N

IG

H
TS

C

B
E

T
H

A
N

Y
B

A
Y

D
R

S
H

A
D

Y
S

ID
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

C
O

V
E

 C
IR

F
O

Y
E

R
 C

IR

M
O

O
N

B
E

A
M

 C
I R

C
O

L
O

N
Y

 V
IE

W
 L

N

PLYM
O

U
TH

S
 G

O
L

D
 R

IV
E

R
 C

IR

O
A

K
 B

A
Y

 C
IR

V
E

R
D

R

OILFIELD RD
B
EN

D
 C

IR

VE LN

CT
LLSBROOK

C
R

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
IL

L
A

G
E

D
R

TURTLERINGS
LN

WALDEN

PARK LN

H
E

A
T

H
R

IV
E

R
L

N

FIELD
B

R
IA

R
L

N

BLUFFST
O

N
E

C
T

BROKEN
PINE

CT

DOVER 

BLUFF LNSWEET GLEN
CT

B
R

A
N

T

H
A

R
B

O
R

 L
N

H
E

A

T
H

RIVER LN

T
W

IN
R

IV
E

R
S

L
N

ORCHARD SPRINGS CT

B
E

A
C

O
N

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

 L
N

SAWYER BEND LN

HUNTERS GATE CT

SUMMIT 

SPRINGS LN

CREEKSTONE CROSS ING DR

SERRANO 

VALLEY LN

G
R

A
N

IT
E

F
A

L
L

S
L

N

R
IS

IN
G

W
A

L
K

L
N

S
L

A
T

E
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

T

S
T

A
G

E
 S

T
O

N
E

 L
N

A
U

B
R

E
Y

 

O
A

K
S

 L
N

F
A

IR
W

IN
D

L
N

CANTON HILLS LN

BENDING KEY CT

W
AV

E
R
LY

 

C
A

N
Y

O
N

 C
T

STEVENSON DRSTEVENSON DR P
A

C
E

 D
R

T
H

O
R

N
T

O
N

 D
R

M
E

R
C

E
R

 C
T

T
W

IN
R

IV

ERS LN

F
ID

G
R

MORELEIGH

BRANCH DR

M
E
A

D
O

W
 C

T

PEARL PASS LN

PLUM
POINT CT

TWIN
RIVERSCT

S
Y

D
N

E
Y

PA
RK LN

LONE ROCK LN

E
E

K
S

T
O

N
E

V
ILLAGE DR

PEARL

PASS CT

JO
R

D
O

N
F

A
L

L
S

D
R

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

F
E

R
R

Y
R

D

Q
U

IE
T

P
O

IN
T

L
N

MAY RIDGE LN

CREEKSTONE

CROSSINGDRP
IP

E
R

G
L

E
N

L
N

PERALTA
HILLS LN

SKY RUN CT

ROCK
RIVER CT

CHANDLER
HOLLOW LN

SHADOW

M
A

V
E

R
IC

K

B
E

N
D

L
N

ANDOVER TRACE LNH
O

R
IZ

O
N

S

E
D

G
E

L
N

HIDDEN
BOUGH LN

FBISD
Elkins 

High School

RPC
Missouri City

STONEBROOK 
AT RIVERSTONE

COLONY LAKES

Legend

City Limits Line.lyr

0 500 1,000250
Feet

1 inch = 500 feet

jthomas
Snapshot





jthomas
Snapshot

jthomas
Text Box
August 19, 2020 - FB Independent



 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  - PLANNING DIVISION  
 

 

1522 TEXAS PARKWAY MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS  77489  

   
 

  

   
WEBSITE   www.missouricitytx.gov  PHONE   281.403.8600 EMAIL   planning@missouricitytx.gov  
  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
TO ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS 

WITHIN 200 FEET OF PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ZONING 
 

DATE OF NOTICE: July 31, 2020 
 
 

LOCATION/DATE:  The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Missouri City will hold a 
public hearing on Wednesday, August 12, 2020, at the City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor, City Hall 
Building, 1522 Texas Parkway (FM-2234), Missouri City, Texas at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Centers for Disease Control recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the City Council and the public may not be allowed to be physically present at 
this hearing. 
 
The city may be using a telephone/video conferencing tool to make the hearing available to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the public. On the date and at the time provided, the public 
may access the livestream of the meeting by the following link: 
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/780/MCTV. A telephone number for the public will be made available 
on the posted meeting agenda prior to the hearing date and available on the City’s website.  

 
PURPOSE: To receive comments for or against a request by Bryan Sheppard, Pape-Dawson 
Engineers, seeking a SUP, Specific Use Permit to allow for the location of a place of assembly for a 
proposed Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) elementary school site; and to the extent 
such zoning deviates from the Future Land Use and Character map of the Comprehensive Plan, to 
provide for an amendment therefrom. 

 
SITE LOCATION: The subject site is located at the northeast corner of Knights Court and 
Thompson Ferry Road, north of Stonebrook at Riverstone, north and west of FBISD Elkins 
High School and east of Creekstone Village at Riverstone. 

 
SITE LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The subject site can be described as being a 20 acre tract of land, 
being a portion of a called 41.052 acre tract of land conveyed to FPL Real Estate LTD, as described 
in a deed recorded in Clerk’s File No. 2000014020 in the Official Public Records of Fort Bend 
County, Texas, also being a portion of Restricted Reserve “A” of Frost Ranch Site Subdivision as 
recorded in Slide No. 1987A and 1988A in the Plat Records of Fort Bend County, situated in the 
Elijah Roark Survey, A-77, Fort Bend County, Texas. 

 
FOR MORE INFORMATION: Additional information and a map of the subject site are available 
for review.  You may call 281-403-8600 or email the Development Services Department-Planning 
Division at planning@missouricitytx.gov for further information.  

 
 



 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – PLANNING DIVISION  
 

 

1522 TEXAS PARKWAY MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS  77489  

   
 

 
July 31, 2020 

CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Missouri City will hold a public hearing on 
Wednesday, August 12, 2020, at the City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor, City Hall Building, 
1522 Texas Parkway (FM-2234), Missouri City, Texas at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Centers for Disease Control recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the City Council and the public may not be allowed to be physically present at this 
hearing. 

 
The city may be using a telephone/video conferencing tool to make the hearing available to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and the public. On the date and at the time provided, the public may access the 
livestream of the meeting by the following link: https://www.missouricitytx.gov/780/MCTV. A telephone 
number for the public will be made available on the posted meeting agenda prior to the hearing date and 
available on the City’s website.  

 

To receive comments for or against a request by Bryan Sheppard, Pape-Dawson Engineers, 
seeking a SUP, Specific Use Permit to allow for the location of a place of assembly for a 
proposed Fort Bend Independent School District (FBISD) elementary school site; and to the 
extent such zoning deviates from the Future Land Use and Character map of the 
Comprehensive Plan, to provide for an amendment therefrom. 

 
This letter is being sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property as required by law.  It is also 
sent to others on request. 
 

   ************************************* 
Dear City Representatives: 

 
____ I/We protest this proposed rezoning because 
 

 
 

___ I/We support this proposed rezoning because 
 
 

 

 

Sincerely, 

_________________________________ ______________________________________ 

Signature     Print Name 

_________________________________ ______________________________________ 

Street Address     Subdivision 

_________________________ Return to: Development Services Department 
Phone Number     1522 Texas Parkway 
      Missouri City, TX 77489    
      Email: planning@missouricitytx.gov  

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Texas Public Information Act provides the right of the public to access information that governmental bodies produce 
and how governmental bodies should respond. By submitting this letter to the City, the personal information included can 
be accessed by the public subject to this Act. Please print and sign your name below if you do not consent to the release 
of your personal information to the public. 

 

Print Name      Signature 



FPL Real Estate Ltd 

2930 Revere ST  STE 300 

Houston, TX 77098-5607 

 

 
FT Bend ISD 

c/o  Tax Office PO Box 1004 

Sugar Land, TX 77487-1004 

 

 
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility 

District # 46 

c/o Coats, Rose, Yale, Ryman & Lee PC 

3 Greenway PLZ 

STE 2000 
Ft Bend MUD #46 

3 E GREENWAY PLZ  STE 2000 

HOUSTON, TX 77046-0307 

 

 
Riverstone Homeowners Association 

Inc 

18353 University BLVD 

Sugar Land, TX 77479-3724 

 

  

FBISD 

c/o Max Cleland 

16431 Lexington Blvd 

Sugar Land, TX 77479 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

jthomas
Text Box
Mailing labels for adjoining property owners

jthomas
Text Box
Page 1 of 1



Application:

City Council First Reading: September 8, 2020

Name

Property Address

OR

Fort Bend County Account 

Number

Land Area (Square Feet) 

Within 200 Feet

None

                                                   -   

                               2,133,935.79 

                                  871,200.00 

                               1,262,735.79 

0%

Total Area Represented by Protest(s):

Total Land Area Including  Subject Site:

Subject Site Only  Land Area:

Total Land Area Only Within 200 Feet  of Subject Site:

Protest(s) Percentage of Land Area Within 200 Feet:

Note:  A total of 0 letters of support and 0 letters of protest has been received for the 

application request as of September 2, 2020.

City of Missouri City, Texas

Development Services Department – Planning Division

Rezoning Application Protest Letters Analysis

FBISD Elementary School #53 (20-acre tract)

Protest Letters Received

jthomas
Snapshot



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7(b)(1) Approval and adoption of the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, and 

ending September 30, 2021. 
 
Submitted by: Bertha Alexander, Budget & Financial Planning Manager 
 

SYNOPSIS 
 
Section 9.03 of the City Charter requires the City Council to adopt an annual budget prior to the beginning of the 
fiscal year.  The proposed FY 2021 budget covering the period from October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021 
was filed with the City Secretary on or before September 1, 2020, as prescribed by the City’s charter. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Missouri City’s annual budget process began in early January of this year with a budget retreat with City 
Council and staff.  Council provided staff with their top priorities for the coming year for incorporation into the budget.  
This proposed budget has been discussed in various council meetings and a public hearing was held in order to 
solicit public input prior to adoption. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

The FY 2021 Proposed Budget can be accessed from the City of Missouri City website at 
http://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020. 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review:  Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. FY 2021 Consolidated All Funds Summary 
3. General Fund Revenue, Expenditures & Fund Balances 
4. Budget Comparison by Fund 
5. City Manager Budget Transmittal Letter 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends the adoption of the proposed Fiscal Year 2021 City Budget as presented by record vote.  
 
Director Approval: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services 
 
City Manager Approval: Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 

http://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020


1 Budget Ordinance FY 2021.doc Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
GENERAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 
1, 2020, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY FOR SUCH FISCAL YEAR AS 
REFLECTED IN SAID BUDGET; ADOPTING A PROJECTION FOR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM SPENDING BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2021, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; MAKING 
CERTAIN FINDINGS; AND CONTAINING CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

*  *  *  *  * 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Charter of the City of Missouri City, on or 
before September 1, 2020, the City Manager of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the 
“City”) filed with the City Secretary a proposed Budget of the City for the fiscal year 
period beginning October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021 (“Fiscal Year 
2021”); and 

WHEREAS, on or before September 1, 2020, the City Manager submitted to the 
City Council a proposed Budget of the City for Fiscal Year 2021 that includes a 
projection for Capital Improvement Program spending beginning on October 1, 2021, 
and ending September 30, 2025, and an accompanying message; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held, after notice, as required by law, a public 
hearing on such Budget on the 21st day of September, 2020, at which hearing all 
citizens and taxpayers of the City had the right to be present and to be heard and those 
who requested to be heard were heard; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed Budget and has made 
such changes therein as in the City Council’s judgment were warranted by law and were 
in the best interest of the citizens and taxpayers of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof 
for all purposes; and 

WHEREAS the proposed Budget of the City can be accessed from the City of 
Missouri City website at 
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-
Document--992020, and the City Council desires to adopt the same; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 

https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020


1 Budget Ordinance FY 2021.doc Page 2 of 2 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 
are hereby found to be true and correct.  

Section 2. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 102 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, the City Council hereby approves and adopts the Budget, 
which can be accessed from the City of Missouri City website at 
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-
Document--992020, a copy of same being on file with the City Secretary. The City 
Secretary is hereby directed to place on said Budget and to sign an endorsement 
reading as follows: “The Original Budget of the City of Missouri City, Texas, for the 
Fiscal Year 2021”, and to keep such Budget on file in her office as a public record and 
on the City’s Internet website. 

Section 3. In support of said Budget and by virtue of the adoption thereof, 
there are hereby appropriated out of available cash funds and out of the general and 
special revenues of the City which will be received in the treasury during Fiscal Year 
2021 the amount set forth in said approved Budget for the various purposes stated 
therein. 

Section 4. Severability. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or 
part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
or provision hereof, other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this the 21st day 
of September, 2020. 

 
 _______________________________ 
 Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________       _______________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary                     E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 

https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020
https://www.missouricitytx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12570/FY2021-Proposed-Budget-Document--992020


OBJECT CLASS & DESCRIPTION GENERAL FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE 

FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS 

FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE 

FUND UTILITY FUNDS

OTHER 
ENTERPRISE 

FUNDS

EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT 

FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUE

40 - PROP.TAX/ASSESSMENTS 33,906,684$           3,685,462$              -$                              10,910,822$           -$                              -$                              -$                              48,502,968$     
41 - SALES & OTHER TAXES 9,811,750                163,132                   4,193,262                -                                -                                -                                -                                14,168,144       
42 - FRANCHISE REVENUE 3,850,000                185,000                   -                                -                                -                                25,800                     -                                4,060,800         
43 - LICENSES AND PERMITS 3,249,938                14,000                     -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                3,263,938         
44 - FINES/FEES & FORFEIT 718,600                   63,535                     -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                782,135            
45 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES 297,650                   -                                -                                -                                16,516,728              7,524,584                -                                24,338,962       
46 - INTERGOV REV/GRANTS 6,918,684                1,341,541                -                                -                                -                                27,000                     -                                8,287,225         
47 - INVESTMENT EARNINGS 203,836                   167,541                   159,081                   137,141                   221,735                   -                                16,326                     905,660            
48 - OTHER SOURCES/DONATN 440,150                   817,000                   5,706,628                -                                4,654,220                -                                70,000                     11,687,998       

TOTAL REVENUE 59,397,292$           6,437,211$             10,058,971$           11,047,963$           21,392,683$           7,577,384$             86,326$                   115,997,830$  

TRANSFERS-IN
49 - TRANSFERS FROM & ADM 1,740,961$              7,878,780$              1,800,000$              -$                              7,142,536$              -$                              1,987,990$              20,550,267$     

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN 1,740,961$             7,878,780$             1,800,000$             -$                              7,142,536$             -$                              1,987,990$             20,550,267$     

TOTAL REVENUE & TRANSFERS-IN 61,138,253$           14,315,991$           11,858,971$           11,047,963$           28,535,219$           7,577,384$             2,074,316$             136,548,097$  

EXPENDITURES
51 - PERSONNEL COSTS 36,397,282$           330,203$                 -$                              -$                              -$                              1,000,896$              -$                              37,728,380$     
52 - SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 2,453,977                339,685                   -                                -                                2,812,983                664,283                   200,000                   6,470,928         
53 - PROF/CONTRACT SERVIC 11,645,677              7,483,300                4,751,261                2,030                       5,551,882                5,285,401                167,429                   34,886,980       
54 - REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,146,683                -                                72,000                     -                                1,449,000                107,760                   -                                2,775,443         
55 - UTILITIES 2,142,591                20,895                     -                                -                                931,152                   163,669                   -                                3,258,307         
56 - OTHER EXPENDITURES 3,476,177                244,904                   -                                -                                98,252                     261,542                   -                                4,080,876         
57 - DEBT EXPENDITURES -                                2,720,993                -                                10,317,409              6,240,686                -                                -                                19,279,088       
58 - CAPITAL OUTLAY 57,000                     823,589                   18,891,777              -                                1,900,000                12,000                     841,935                   22,526,301       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 57,319,387$           11,963,569$           23,715,038$           10,319,439$           18,983,955$           7,495,551$             1,209,364$             131,006,303$  

TRANSFERS-OUT
59 - TRANSFERS TO FUNDS 7,415,249$              448,271$                 3,800,000$              1,151,521$              7,719,226$              16,000$                   -$                              20,550,267$     

TOTAL TRANSFERS-OUT 7,415,249$             448,271$                 3,800,000$             1,151,521$             7,719,226$             16,000$                   -$                              20,550,267$     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-IN 64,734,636$           12,411,840$           27,515,038$           11,470,960$           26,703,181$           7,511,551$             1,209,364$             151,556,570$  

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (3,596,383)$            1,904,151$             (15,656,067)$          (422,997)$               1,832,038$             65,833$                   864,952$                 (15,008,474)$   

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 19,477,578$           20,127,560$           28,205,168$           6,283,534$             62,702,455$           37,209$                   1,953,300$             138,786,804$  

ENDING FUND BALANCE 15,881,195$           22,031,711$           12,549,101$           5,860,537$             64,534,493$           103,042$                 2,818,252$             123,778,331$  

CONSOLIDATED ALL FUNDS SUMMARY - FY 2021 BUDGET



DEPARTMENT:  ALL FUNDING SOURCE:  GENERAL FUND
DIVISION:  ALL FUND NUMBER: 101 & 800

OBJECT CLASS & DESCRIPTION
FY 2019 
ACTUAL

FY 2020 
BUDGET

FY 2020 
ESTIMATES

FY 2021 
BUDGET

REVENUE
40 - PROP.TAX/ASSESSMENTS 30,673,349$            32,944,648$            32,503,374$            33,906,684$            
41 - SALES & OTHER TAXES 9,546,249                 9,437,800                 9,817,200                 9,811,750                 
42 - FRANCHISE REVENUE 4,204,568                 3,961,000                 3,961,000                 3,850,000                 
43 - LICENSES AND PERMITS 3,238,909                 2,786,737                 2,954,849                 3,249,938                 
44 - FINES/FEES & FORFEIT 1,023,180                 872,100                    522,051                    718,600                    
45 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES 451,696                    414,900                    200,430                    297,650                    
46 - INTERGOV REV/GRANTS 2,630,729                 2,413,279                 3,179,344                 6,918,684                 
47 - INVESTMENT EARNINGS 416,185                    195,902                    340,035                    203,836                    
48 - OTHER SOURCES/DONATN 649,279                    478,750                    458,932                    440,150                    

TOTAL REVENUE 52,834,144$            53,505,117$            53,937,216$            59,397,292$            

TRANSFERS-IN
49 - TRANSFERS FROM & ADM 1,706,012$              1,736,057$              1,719,390$              1,740,961$              

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN 1,706,012$              1,736,057$              1,719,390$              1,740,961$              

TOTAL REVENUE & TRANSFERS-IN 54,540,156$            55,241,174$            55,656,606$            61,138,253$            

EXPENDITURES
51 - PERSONNEL COSTS 32,624,072$            35,231,802$            34,202,631$            36,397,282$            
52 - SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 2,361,696                 2,931,591                 2,583,748                 2,453,977                 
53 - PROF/CONTRACT SERVIC 5,379,704                 6,455,888                 5,314,727                 11,645,677              
54 - REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,018,812                 1,184,033                 1,217,518                 1,146,683                 
55 - UTILITIES 1,694,141                 1,967,846                 1,968,116                 2,142,591                 
56 - OTHER EXPENDITURES 1,451,720                 1,965,289                 1,480,970                 3,476,177                 
58 - CAPITAL OUTLAY 73,418                      92,970                      92,970                      57,000                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 44,603,564$            49,829,420$            46,860,680$            57,319,387$            

TRANSFERS-OUT
59 - TRANSFERS TO FUNDS 3,894,700$              4,953,319$              5,491,723$              7,415,249$              

TOTAL TRANSFERS-OUT 3,894,700$              4,953,319$              5,491,723$              7,415,249$              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT 48,498,265$            54,782,739$            52,352,403$            64,734,636$            

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 6,041,891$              458,435$                  3,304,202$              (3,596,383)$             

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 10,131,485$            16,173,376$            16,173,376$            19,477,578$            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,173,376$            16,631,810$            19,477,578$            15,881,195$            



Description of Fund
FY 2021 

Proposed Budget

FY 2020
Revised 
Budget $ Change % Change

GENERAL FUND (FUNDS 101 & 800)

Revenue 59,397,292$       53,505,117$       5,892,175$         11.0%
Transfers-In 1,740,961            1,736,057            4,904                    0.3%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 61,138,253$       55,241,174$       5,897,079$         10.7%

Expenses 57,319,387$       49,829,420$       7,489,967$         15.0%
Transfers-Out 7,415,249            4,953,319            2,461,930            49.7%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 64,734,636         54,782,739         9,951,897$         18.2%

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Revenue 6,437,211$         6,645,374$         (208,163)$           -3.1%
Transfers-In 7,878,780            4,956,896            2,921,884            58.9%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 14,315,991$       11,602,270$       2,713,721$         23.4%

Expenses 11,963,569$       12,782,009$       (818,440)$           -6.4%
Transfers-Out 448,271               968,271               (520,000)              -53.7%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 12,411,840         13,750,280         (1,338,440)$        -9.7%

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Revenue 10,058,971$       19,164,571$       (9,105,600)$        -47.5%
Transfers-In 1,800,000            500,000               1,300,000            260.0%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 11,858,971$       19,664,571$       (7,805,600)$        -39.7%

Expenses 23,715,038$       38,908,340$       (15,193,302)$      -39.0%
Transfers-Out 3,800,000            1,800,000            2,000,000            111.1%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 27,515,038         40,708,340         (13,193,302)$      -32.4%

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Revenue 11,047,963$       11,698,247$       (650,284)$           -5.6%
Transfers-In -                        -                        
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 11,047,963$       11,698,247$       (650,284)$           -5.6%

Expenses 10,319,439$       10,445,474$       (126,035)$           -1.2%
Transfers-Out 1,151,521            998,219               153,302               15.4%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 11,470,960         11,443,693         27,267$               0.2%

BUDGET COMPARISON BY FUND



Description of Fund
FY 2021 

Proposed Budget

FY 2020
Revised 
Budget $ Change % Change

BUDGET COMPARISON BY FUND

UTILITY FUNDS

Revenue 21,392,683$       25,490,456$       (4,097,773)$        -16.1%
Transfers-In 7,142,536            7,835,884            (693,348)              -8.8%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 28,535,219$       33,326,340$       (4,791,121)$        -14.4%

Expenses 18,983,955$       41,152,890$       (22,168,935)$      -53.9%
Transfers-Out 7,719,226            8,387,670            (668,444)              -8.0%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 26,703,181         49,540,560         (22,837,379)$      -46.1%

OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Revenue 7,577,384$         7,866,681$         (289,297)$           -3.7%
Transfers-In -                        -                        -                        
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 7,577,384$         7,866,681$         (289,297)$           -3.7%

Expenses 7,495,551$         7,855,701$         (360,150)$           -4.6%
Transfers-Out 16,000                 16,000                 -                        0.0%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 7,511,551           7,871,701           (360,150)$           -4.6%

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUNDS

Revenue 86,326$               104,710$             (18,384)$              -17.6%
Transfers-In 1,987,990            2,094,642            (106,652)              -5.1%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 2,074,316$         2,199,352$         (125,036)$           -5.7%

Expenses 1,209,364$         1,325,197$         (115,833)$           -8.7%
Transfers-Out -                        -                        
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 1,209,364           1,325,197           (115,833)$           -8.7%

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

Revenue 115,997,830$     124,475,156$     (8,477,326)$        -6.8%
Transfers-In 20,550,267         17,123,479         3,426,788            20.0%
Total Revenue & Transfers-In 136,548,097$     141,598,635$     (5,050,538)$        -3.6%

Expenses 131,006,303$     162,299,031$     (31,292,728)$      -19.3%
Transfers-Out 20,550,267         17,123,479         3,426,788            20.0%
Total Expenses & Transfers-Out 151,556,570$     179,422,510$     (27,865,940)$      -15.5%





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7b2 Public Hearing: Sienna MUDs 1, 5, 6, and 7 SPA Amendment No. 1  
Submitted by: E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
On or about August 17, 2020, the City Council authorized staff to proceed with the process of initiating 

a limited purpose annexation of Sienna MUDs 1, 5, 6, and 7 for the purpose of providing fire protection 
services. This is the first of two required public hearings.  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

On or about March 19, 2001, the City of Missouri City (the “City”) entered into a strategic partnership 
agreement with Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 1 (“Sienna MUD 1”), which provided for a fire protection 
services agreement. On or about March 19, 2001, the City entered into an agreement with Sienna MUD 1 
for fire protection services. On or about February 21, 2005, the City entered into an agreement with Sienna 
Municipal Utility District No. 5 (“Sienna MUD 5”) for fire protection services. Such agreement was amended 
and restated in 2015. On or about July 15, 2013, the City entered into a strategic partnership agreement with 
Sienna MUD 5, which provided for annexation under certain conditions. On or about May 18, 2005, the City 
entered into an agreement with Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 6 (“Sienna MUD 6”) for fire protection 
services. Such agreement was subsequently amended and restated in 2015. On or about July 15, 2013, the 
City entered into a strategic partnership agreement with Sienna MUD 6, which provided for annexation under 
certain conditions. On or about February 21, 2005, the City entered into an agreement with Sienna Municipal 
Utility District No. 7 (“Sienna MUD 7”) for fire protection services. Such agreement was subsequently 
amended and restated in 2015. On or about July 15, 2013, the City entered into a strategic partnership 
agreement with Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 7 (“Sienna MUD 7”), which provided for annexation under 
certain conditions. The fire protection plans have been voted on and approved at duly called elections.  

 
On or about November 16, 2017, without obtaining the City’s consent, Fort Bend Emergency Services 

District No. 7 canvassed an election annexing Sienna Plantation Municipal Utility District Nos. 1, 5, 6, and 7 
into the emergency services district. Pursuant to Chapter 775 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, a city 
that completes all other procedures necessary for annexation that intends to remove territory from an 
emergency services district and be the sole provider of emergency services to the territory by the use of 
municipal personnel may remove such territory from the emergency services district. Chapter 43 of the 
Texas Local Government Code authorizes municipalities and utility districts to enter into strategic partnership 
agreements as a mechanism for mutually agreeing to terms for the provision of services and the annexation 
of land. Pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City and Sienna MUD 1, Sienna 
MUD 5, Sienna MUD 6, and Sienna MUD 7, respectively, desire to amend their existing strategic partnership 
agreements with the City to authorize limited purpose annexation for the sole purpose of providing fire 
protection services. The attached amendments to the proposed strategic partnership agreements provide for 
such amendment. The districts will remain in existence upon the limited annexation to continue to provide 
authorized functions.  
 
 
 



BUDGET ANALYSIS 
  
Sienna MUD 1 currently facilitates the contract between the City and Sienna MUD 1, Sienna MUD 5, Sienna 
MUD 6, and Sienna MUD 7 for fire protection services. The City received approximately $ 0  for fire protection 
services for Sienna MUD 1, Sienna MUD 5, Sienna MUD 6, and Sienna MUD 7. 
 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Proposed amendments 
2. Resolutions of support for exclusion from Fort Bend County Emergency Services District No. 7  

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
ACTION IS REQUIRED: Conduct a public hearing on the amendment of strategic partnership agreements 
for Sienna Municipal Utility District Nos. 1, 5, 6, and 7.  
 
Director Approval:   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 



 

Sienna MUD 1 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 1 of 4 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AND 
SIENNA PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1  

 
 
 This First Amendment to the Strategic Partnership Agreement entered into on or 
about March 19, 2001 (the "Amendment") is entered into by and between the City of 
Missouri City, Texas (the "City"), a municipal corporation in Fort Bend and Harris 
Counties, Texas, and Sienna Plantation Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the "District"), a 
conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of the 
Texas Constitution. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Sienna Plantation Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the "District") is 
located within the master-planned community of Sienna Plantation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 43, Texas Local Government Code, authorizes the City and the 
District to enter into a strategic partnership agreement, which may provide for such 
lawful terms that the parties consider appropriate to provide for the provision of 
services to the District and the annexation of the land within the District and into the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District and the District’s voters have 
determined that the City can provide the most reliable and prompt fire protection and 
emergency services to its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Board of Directors also believe that it is in the best 
interest of the residents of the District to continue to receive fire protection and 
emergency services from the City pursuant to existing agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to be the sole provider of fire protection and 
emergency services to the District by use of municipal personnel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV of the Strategic Partnership Agreement, the 
parties have agreed that the City shall provide fire protection services to the District;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the City hereby covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 



 

Sienna MUD 1 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 2 of 4 
 

 Section 1. Purpose. 
The purpose of this Amendment is to authorize the annexation of the District for the 
limited purpose of providing fire protection services and to establish the City as the sole 
provider of such services to the District.  
  
 Section 2. Amendment. 
 

A.  Subsection A of Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is 
hereby amended as follows: 

  
“A. The City agrees that irrespective of its right and 

power under existing or subsequently enacted law, 
except as provided in paragraph B, C, C-1, and 
Section 3.02 hereof, it will not annex or attempt to 
annex, annex for limited purposes or attempt annex 
for limited purposes, in whole or in part, the District 
until the following conditions have been met:   

 
 1. At least 90% of the developable acreage within 

the District has been developed with water, 
wastewater treatment, and drainage facilities. 
Developable acreage means the total acreage in 
Sienna less acreage associated with land uses 43, 44, 
61, 62, 63, 64, and 65 in the Parcelization Plan attached 
as Exhibit D-13 to the Development Agreement, 
which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference;  
and 

 
 2. The Landowner developing within the District 

has been reimbursed by the District to the maximum 
extent permitted by the rules of the TNRCC or the 
City assumes any obligation for such reimbursement 
of the District under such rules.” 

  
B. Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is hereby 

amended by adding a new Subsection C-1 after Subsection C 
of Section 3.01 of Article III thereof to provide as follows: 
 
“C-1. The District and the City agree that the City is hereby 
permitted to annex for limited purposes the District, 
whether or not contiguous to the City’s corporate limits, for 
the purpose of providing fire protection services to the 
District by the use of municipal personnel in accordance 



 

Sienna MUD 1 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 3 of 4 
 

with a duly adopted fire protection plan authorized by the 
TCEQ. The Board of Directors agree, upon request to execute 
and deliver such further documents as may be necessary in 
order to effectuate the terms of this paragraph. Except as 
described herein, the District will continue to exercise all 
functions, powers, and authority vested in the District. ”   
 

 Section 3.  Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains in full force and effect.  
 

B. If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the 
provisions of this Amendment shall prevail.  

 
Section 4.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, section, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Amendment is for any reason held to be invalid or 
contrary to the law by a court of competent jurisdiction or contrary to any rule or 
regulation in the remaining portions of the Amendment, it shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate this Amendment as a whole or any provision hereof not declared to be 
invalid or contrary to law. 
 

Section 5.  Entire Agreement; Requirement of a Writing. 
It is understood and agreed that this Amendment supersedes all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any 
previous agreement presently in effect between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof.  Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this 
Amendment shall be valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by the 
Parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original as of the date and year first written 
above, to be effective as of ________________________, 2020. 
 

SIENNA PLANTATION MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 

 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Directors 
 
     



 

Sienna MUD 1 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 4 of 4 
 

Address:  
The Muller Law Group, PLLC 

      202 Century Square Blvd 
Sugar Land, Texas 77478 

      Attn:  Richard Muller 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
      CITY OF MISSOURI CITY 
 
 
 
      By:        
       Odis Jones, City Manager 
       
      Address: 

City Hall 
      1522 Texas Parkway 
      Missouri City, Texas 77489 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
        
City Attorney 
 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 5 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 1 of 5 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AND 
SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 5  

 
 
 This First Amendment to the Strategic Partnership Agreement entered into on or 
about July 15, 2013 (the "Amendment") is entered into by and between the City of 
Missouri City, Texas (the "City"), a municipal corporation in Fort Bend and Harris 
Counties, Texas, and Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 5 (the "District"), a 
conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of the 
Texas Constitution. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 5 (the “District”) is located within 
the master-planned community of Sienna; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 43, Texas Local Government Code, authorizes the City and the 
District to enter into a strategic partnership agreement, which may provide for such 
lawful terms that the parties consider appropriate to provide for the provision of 
services to the District and the annexation of the land within the District and into the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District and the District’s voters have 
determined that the City can provide the most reliable and prompt fire protection 
services to its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Board of Directors also believe that it is in the best 
interest of the residents of the District to continue to receive fire protection services 
from the City pursuant to existing agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to be the sole provider of fire protection to the District 
by use of municipal personnel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV of the Strategic Partnership Agreement, the 
parties have agreed that the City shall provide fire protection services to the District;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the City hereby covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 5 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 2 of 5 
 

 Section 1. Purpose. 
The purpose of this Amendment is to authorize the annexation of the District for the 
sole, and limited purpose of providing fire protection services and to establish the City 
as the sole provider of such services to the District.    
  
 Section 2. Amendment. 
 

A.  Subsection A of Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is 
hereby amended as follows: 

  
“A. The City agrees that irrespective of its right and 

power under existing or subsequently enacted law, 
except as provided in paragraph B, B-1, and Section 
3.02 hereof, it will not annex or attempt to annex, for 
all purposes, in whole or in part, the District until the 
following conditions have been met:   

 
 1. At least 90% of the developable acreage within 

the District has been developed with water, 
wastewater treatment, and drainage facilities. 
Developable acreage means the total acreage in the 
District less acreage associated with land uses for 
roads, utility easements, drainage easements, levee 
easements, lakes, creeks, bayous, and open space; and 

 
 2. The Developer has been reimbursed by the 

District to the maximum extent permitted by the rules 
of the TCEQ or the City assumes any obligation for 
such reimbursement of the District under such rules; 
and 

 
3. Solely with respect to the Financing District, (a) 
the City has annexed the other Sienna South Districts, 
specifically Sienna Municipal Utility District Nos. 4, 6, 
and 7, and the Financing District has completed 
Financing District Facilities that serve 90% of the 
developable acreage within Sienna South; or (b) the 
City has annexed the other Sienna South Districts, 
specifically Sienna Municipal Utility District Nos. 4, 6, 
and 7 and upon 180 days’ notice to the Financing 
District, with such notice occurring no sooner than 
five year after the completion of the most recent 
construction contract in excess of $50,000 for facilities 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 5 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 3 of 5 
 

that serve the Financing District, unless the Financing 
District awards an additional construction contract in 
excess of $50,000 for facilities that serve the Financing 
District  prior to expiration of the 180 day notice 
period.” 

  
B. Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is hereby 

amended by adding a new Subsection B-1 after Subsection B 
of Section 3.01 of Article III thereof to provide as follows: 
 
“B-1. The District and the City agree that the City is hereby 
permitted to annex for limited purposes the District, 
whether or not contiguous to the City’s corporate limits, for 
the purpose of providing fire protection services to the 
District by the use of municipal personnel in accordance 
with fire protection agreements and a duly adopted fire 
protection plan authorized by the TCEQ. The Board of 
Directors agree, upon request to execute and deliver such 
further documents as may be necessary in order to effectuate 
the terms of this paragraph.  Except as described herein, the 
District will continue to exercise all functions, powers, and 
authority otherwise vested in a district.”   
 

 Section 3.  Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains in full force and effect.  
 

B. If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the 
provisions of this Amendment shall prevail.  

 
Section 4.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, section, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Amendment is for any reason held to be invalid or 
contrary to the law by a court of competent jurisdiction or contrary to any rule or 
regulation in the remaining portions of the Amendment, it shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate this Amendment as a whole or any provision hereof not declared to be 
invalid or contrary to law. 
 

Section 5.  Entire Agreement; Requirement of a Writing. 
It is understood and agreed that this Amendment supersedes all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any 
previous agreement presently in effect between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof.  Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 5 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 4 of 5 
 

Amendment shall be valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by the 
Parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original as of the date and year first written 
above, to be effective as of ________________________, 2020. 
 

SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 5 

 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Directors 
 
     
 
 
 

Address:  
Allen Boone Humphries LLP 

      3200 Southwest Freeway 
      Suite 2600 
      Houston, Texas 77027 
      Attn:  Annette Stephens 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
      CITY OF MISSOURI CITY 
 
 
 
      By:        
       Odis Jones, City Manager 
       
      Address: 

City Hall 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 5 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 5 of 5 
 

      1522 Texas Parkway 
      Missouri City, Texas 77489 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
        
City Attorney 
 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 6 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 1 of 4 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AND 
SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 6  

 
 
 This First Amendment to the Strategic Partnership Agreement entered into on or 
about July 15, 2013 (the "Amendment") is entered into by and between the City of 
Missouri City, Texas (the "City"), a municipal corporation in Fort Bend and Harris 
Counties, Texas, and Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 6 (the "District"), a 
conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of the 
Texas Constitution. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 6 (the “District”) is located within 
the master-planned community of Sienna; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 43, Texas Local Government Code, authorizes the City and the 
District to enter into a strategic partnership agreement, which may provide for such 
lawful terms that the parties consider appropriate to provide for the provision of 
services to the District and the annexation of the land within the District and into the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District and the District’s voters have 
determined that the City can provide the most reliable and prompt fire protection 
services to its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Board of Directors also believe that it is in the best 
interest of the residents of the District to continue to receive fire protection services 
from the City pursuant to existing agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to be the sole provider of fire protection to the District 
by use of municipal personnel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV of the Strategic Partnership Agreement, the 
parties have agreed that the City shall provide fire protection services to the District;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the City hereby covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 6 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 2 of 4 
 

 Section 1. Purpose. 
The purpose of this Amendment is to authorize the annexation of the District for the 
sole, and limited purpose of providing fire protection services and to establish the City 
as the sole provider of such services to the District.    
  
 Section 2. Amendment. 
 

A.  Subsection A of Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is 
hereby amended as follows: 

  
“A. The City agrees that irrespective of its right and 

power under existing or subsequently enacted law, 
except as provided in paragraph B, B-1, and Section 
3.02 hereof, it will not annex or attempt to annex, for 
all purposes, in whole or in part, the District until the 
following conditions have been met:   

 
 1. At least 90% of the developable acreage within 

the District has been developed with water, 
wastewater treatment, and drainage facilities. 
Developable acreage means the total acreage in the 
District less acreage associated with land uses for 
roads, utility easements, drainage easements, levee 
easements, lakes, creeks, bayous, and open space; and 

 
 2. The Developer has been reimbursed by the 

District to the maximum extent permitted by the rules 
of the TCEQ or the City assumes any obligation for 
such reimbursement of the District under such rules.” 

  
B. Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is hereby 

amended by adding a new Subsection B-1 after Subsection B 
of Section 3.01 of Article III thereof to provide as follows: 
 
“B-1. The District and the City agree that the City is hereby 
permitted to annex for limited purposes the District, 
whether or not contiguous to the City’s corporate limits, for 
the purpose of providing fire protection services to the 
District by the use of municipal personnel in accordance 
with fire protection agreements and a duly adopted fire 
protection plan authorized by the TCEQ. The Board of 
Directors agree, upon request to execute and deliver such 
further documents as may be necessary in order to effectuate 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 6 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 3 of 4 
 

the terms of this paragraph.  Except as described herein, the 
District will continue to exercise all functions, powers, and 
authority otherwise vested in a district.”   
 

 Section 3.  Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains in full force and effect.  
 

B. If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the 
provisions of this Amendment shall prevail.  

 
Section 4.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, section, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Amendment is for any reason held to be invalid or 
contrary to the law by a court of competent jurisdiction or contrary to any rule or 
regulation in the remaining portions of the Amendment, it shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate this Amendment as a whole or any provision hereof not declared to be 
invalid or contrary to law. 
 

Section 5.  Entire Agreement; Requirement of a Writing. 
It is understood and agreed that this Amendment supersedes all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any 
previous agreement presently in effect between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof.  Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this 
Amendment shall be valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by the 
Parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original as of the date and year first written 
above, to be effective as of ________________________, 2020. 
 

SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 6 

 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Directors 
 
     
 
 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 6 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 4 of 4 
 

Address:  
Allen Boone Humphries LLP 

      3200 Southwest Freeway 
      Suite 2600 
      Houston, Texas 77027 
      Attn:  Annette Stephens 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
      CITY OF MISSOURI CITY 
 
 
 
      By:        
       Odis Jones, City Manager 
       
      Address: 

City Hall 
      1522 Texas Parkway 
      Missouri City, Texas 77489 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
        
City Attorney 
 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 7 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 1 of 4 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AND 
SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 7  

 
 
 This First Amendment to the Strategic Partnership Agreement entered into on or 
about July 15, 2013 (the "Amendment") is entered into by and between the City of 
Missouri City, Texas (the "City"), a municipal corporation in Fort Bend and Harris 
Counties, Texas, and Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 7 (the "District"), a 
conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of the 
Texas Constitution. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 7 (the “District”) is located within 
the master-planned community of Sienna; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 43, Texas Local Government Code, authorizes the City and the 
District to enter into a strategic partnership agreement, which may provide for such 
lawful terms that the parties consider appropriate to provide for the provision of 
services to the District and the annexation of the land within the District and into the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District and the District’s voters have 
determined that the City can provide the most reliable and prompt fire protection 
services to its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Board of Directors also believe that it is in the best 
interest of the residents of the District to continue to receive fire protection services 
from the City pursuant to existing agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to be the sole provider of fire protection to the District 
by use of municipal personnel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV of the Strategic Partnership Agreement, the 
parties have agreed that the City shall provide fire protection services to the District;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the City hereby covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 7 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 2 of 4 
 

 Section 1. Purpose. 
The purpose of this Amendment is to authorize the annexation of the District for the 
sole, and limited purpose of providing fire protection services and to establish the City 
as the sole provider of such services to the District.    
  
 Section 2. Amendment. 
 

A.  Subsection A of Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is 
hereby amended as follows: 

  
“A. The City agrees that irrespective of its right and 

power under existing or subsequently enacted law, 
except as provided in paragraph B, B-1, and Section 
3.02 hereof, it will not annex or attempt to annex, for 
all purposes, in whole or in part, the District until the 
following conditions have been met:   

 
 1. At least 90% of the developable acreage within 

the District has been developed with water, 
wastewater treatment, and drainage facilities. 
Developable acreage means the total acreage in the 
District less acreage associated with land uses for 
roads, utility easements, drainage easements, levee 
easements, lakes, creeks, bayous, and open space; and 

 
 2. The Developer has been reimbursed by the 

District to the maximum extent permitted by the rules 
of the TCEQ or the City assumes any obligation for 
such reimbursement of the District under such rules.” 

  
B. Section 3.01 of Article III of the Agreement is hereby 

amended by adding a new Subsection B-1 after Subsection B 
of Section 3.01 of Article III thereof to provide as follows: 
 
“B-1. The District and the City agree that the City is hereby 
permitted to annex for limited purposes the District, 
whether or not contiguous to the City’s corporate limits, for 
the purpose of providing fire protection services to the 
District by the use of municipal personnel in accordance 
with fire protection agreements and a duly adopted fire 
protection plan authorized by the TCEQ. The Board of 
Directors agree, upon request to execute and deliver such 
further documents as may be necessary in order to effectuate 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 7 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 3 of 4 
 

the terms of this paragraph.  Except as described herein, the 
District will continue to exercise all functions, powers, and 
authority otherwise vested in a district.”   
 

 Section 3.  Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains in full force and effect.  
 

B. If there is a conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the 
provisions of this Amendment shall prevail.  

 
Section 4.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, section, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Amendment is for any reason held to be invalid or 
contrary to the law by a court of competent jurisdiction or contrary to any rule or 
regulation in the remaining portions of the Amendment, it shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate this Amendment as a whole or any provision hereof not declared to be 
invalid or contrary to law. 
 

Section 5.  Entire Agreement; Requirement of a Writing. 
It is understood and agreed that this Amendment supersedes all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any 
previous agreement presently in effect between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof.  Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this 
Amendment shall be valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by the 
Parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original as of the date and year first written 
above, to be effective as of ________________________, 2020. 
 

SIENNA MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 7 

 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Directors 
 
     
 
 
 



 

2020 Sienna MUD 7 SPA Amendment 1.doc  Page 4 of 4 
 

Address:  
Allen Boone Humphries LLP 

      3200 Southwest Freeway 
      Suite 2600 
      Houston, Texas 77027 
      Attn:  Annette Stephens 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
      CITY OF MISSOURI CITY 
 
 
 
      By:        
       Odis Jones, City Manager 
       
      Address: 

City Hall 
      1522 Texas Parkway 
      Missouri City, Texas 77489 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
        
City Attorney 
 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 7b3 Public hearing on the limited purpose annexation of Sienna Municipal Utility Districts 

1, 5, 6, and 7  
 
Submitted by: E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney  

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This is the first of two public hearings on the annexation for limited purposes of Sienna Municipal Utility 
District Numbers 1, 5, 6, and 7, respectively, into the City of Missouri City, Texas (the “City”) for the sole 
purpose of the provision of fire protection services. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
• Maintain a financially sound City 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The City of Missouri City currently provides fire protection services to certain municipal utility districts in its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction pursuant to fire protection agreements and other agreements. Fort Bend County 
Emergency Services District No. 7 has annexed several of those districts into its territory, which would 
duplicate fire protection services. On August 17, 2020, the City Council of the City of Missouri City authorized 
staff to initiate proceedings to annex certain municipal utility districts located in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
of Missouri City for the limited purpose of providing fire protection services to eliminate the service overlap 
between Fort Bend County Emergency Services District No. 7 and the City.  
 
On or about March 19, 2001, the City of Missouri City (the “City”) entered into a strategic partnership 
agreement with Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 1 (“Sienna MUD 1”), which provided for annexation under 
certain conditions. On or about July 15, 2013, the City entered into strategic partnership agreements with 
Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 5 (“Sienna MUD 5”), Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 6 (“Sienna MUD 
6”), and Sienna Municipal Utility District No. 7 (“Sienna MUD 7”), respectively, which provide for annexation 
under certain conditions. The City is contemporaneously considering amending the aforementioned 
agreements to authorize the limited purpose annexation addressed in this item. If the aforementioned 
amendments are authorized, this agenda item will facilitate the subsequent annexation of Sienna MUD 1, 
Sienna MUD 5, Sienna MUD 6, and Sienna MUD 7 for the limited purpose of providing fire protection 
services. Upon completion of the limited-purpose annexation, the City intends to continue to provide fire 
protection services. The schedule for annexation is as follows:  
 

1. September 21, 2020: First Public Hearing 
2. September 28, 2020: Second Public Hearing 
3. October 19, 2020: First Reading of Ordinance 
4. November 2, 2020: Second Reading of Ordinance 

 
 
 



BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
The City will retain its existing responsibilities if the proposed annexations are effectuated.  
 
According to the Fort Bend Central Appraisal District, the market values for the applicable utility districts are 
as follows (approximately): 
 

• Sienna MUD 1: $364,780; 
• Sienna MUD 5: $468,390; 
• Sienna MUD 6: $11,203,420; and 
• Sienna MUD 7: $12,110.810. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. August 17, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes  
2. Fort Bend Independent Published Notice of Hearing 
3. Map 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
ACTION IS REQUIRED: Conduct a public hearing on the limited purpose annexation of Sienna Municipal 
Utility District Nos. 1, 5, 6, and 7.  
 
 
Director Approval:   E. Joyce Iyamu 
 
Assistant City Manager/   
City Manager Approval:  



 
Page 1 of 4 

August 17, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

 
YOLANDA FORD 
Mayor 
 
VASHAUNDRA EDWARDS 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 1 
 
CHRIS PRESTON 
Mayor Pro Tem 
Councilmember at Large Position No. 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CHERYL STERLING 
Councilmember District A 

  

JEFFREY L. BONEY 
Councilmember District B 

  

ANTHONY G. MAROULIS 
Councilmember District C 

 

FLOYD EMERY 
Councilmember District D 

 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
The City Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, met in special session on Monday, August 17, 2020, 
at the City Hall, Council Chamber, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, 77489, at 5:30 p.m. to 
consider the following.   
 
Due to the COVID 19 Disaster and the Center for Disease Control's recommendation regarding social 
distancing measures, the Mayor, City Council, City Staff members, and members of the public were not 
physically present during this meeting.  The meeting was made possible through the cloud-based video 
conferencing platform Zoom.   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ford called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Those also present: Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmembers Edwards, Sterling, Boney, Maroulis, and 
Emery; City Manager Jones, City Attorney Iyamu, City Secretary Jackson, Assistant City Manager Atkinson, 
Assistant City Manager Martel, Director of Financial Services Portis, Director of Communications Walker,  
Director of Human Resources and Organizational Development Russell, Director of Economic Development 
Esch and Golf Course Manager Stittleburg. 
 
2. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION 

(a) Presentation of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 budget. 
 
Director of Financial Services Portis presented the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 budget.  Councilmember 
Maroulis noted the City’s INS was at 17 last year and the proposal was now a 14; and asked if it was 
aggressive to drop three cents.  Portis stated the INS rate was calculated based on debt service for the year 
and believes it would be sufficient.  Assistant City Manager Atkinson noted staff was working with a financial 
advisor to see the capacity they would have with respect of the 17cent rate.   
 
Councilmember Boney stated he was concerned about aspects of the budget, in particular the increase of 
the two positions in the Communications Department.  He noted the City of Pearland and Sugar Land both 
have smaller Communication Departments and have a larger number of residents.  He asked why it was a 
high priority and if management had evaluated current staffing.  City Manager Jones stated dealing with 
COVID has increased the demand upon the Communications Department, as they were not only engaging 
with neighborhoods and community activities, but at the same time they have to enhance their virtual and 
social media interactions.  Jones stated he has engaged and evaluated the department and holistically has 
found that the resources of the department have been reduced causing them less ability to answer customer 
demands as noted in the Community Survey.  He added the addition to staff was to meet the residents 
requests.  Boney asked if Jones performed an internal review of all departments and if the Communications 
Department was the only department in need of an increase in budget and positions.  Jones stated that was 
not what he said and noted the budget enhanced the Public Works and the Economic Development budgets 
as well.   
 



 
Page 2 of 4 

August 17, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

Mayor Ford asked if the City of Sugar Land contracted communications services such as their website.  
Director of Communications Walker stated Sugar Land outsourced a number of communication services.  
Ford noted if they were looking to downsize, an alternative would be to contract out services the team does 
in-house.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis asked what robust or better customer service would look like by adding two 
positions to the Communications Department.  Jones stated they would have better capability to respond 
timely to requests made by other departments and citizens.  In addition, they would have the ability to develop 
a better brand and marketing.  Councilmember Maroulis asked if the Permits Division should be a higher 
priority.  Maroulis noted that the budget had a line item for residents’ education of $4,000 and asked for 
specifics.  Jones concurred with the need to improve the permitting process and have proposed additional 
positions in that division.  Jones noted the $4,000 was to pay for additional customer service relations for a 
survey and internal use to better package and relay incoming information from other departments. 
 
Maroulis asked if they were using resources such as WCA to promote recycling and METRO for education.  
Director Walker stated the Communications Department does a lot of work internally for marketing for these 
organizations.  Maroulis asked about the Daktronics line item and the amount allocated of $214,000.  
Maroulis stated that he does not think that in a COVID environment that they need additional positions.   
 
Councilmember Emery asked where the Communications Department was placed under.  Director Portis 
stated the department was under general government.  Emery stated they should be taking a detailed look 
at departmental operations since it was one of the largest they had.  Emery asked that they determine if it 
was more economical and efficient to do things internally versus externally.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston stated it is important to create a strong branding image for the City.  Councilmember 
Edwards stated that a few of her colleagues made a big deal about the survey results, which stated that 
communications need to be improved.  She noted staff had prepared a proposal on how to rectify and in her 
opinion, the Communications Department was the most underrated department.   
 
Director Portis explained the $214,000 was a request made by the Communications Department, but the 
amount funded was $38,463.  Councilmember Emery asked for an evaluation to know that in fact they were 
going down the correct road.  Mayor Ford agreed and asked how much the City of Sugar Land paid for their 
website.  Walker stated Sugar Land paid about $60,000, and noted that when Missouri City first entered into 
the contract with CivicPlus, they paid $60,000 plus because a lot was outsourced.  Walker added that the 
redesign of the website was far more robust and the cost was $20,000 as it was done in house thus having 
a significant saving.  Ford noted the department lost several positions.  Councilmember Emery asked how 
many employees were in the Communications Department.  Director Walker stated there were nine now and 
were requesting two additional employees. 
 
Councilmember Sterling recalled that Director Walker stated they could have spent less if they had done a 
brochure in house.  Walker stated she was referring to the BrandEra project.   
 
Councilmember Maroulis asked if there had been any changes to the supplemental list.  Director Portis stated 
the supplemental list has been updated as staff has reduced some supplemental and refined requests.  
Maroulis asked City Manager Jones how many employees worked in the Communications Department.  
Jones stated they had eight.  Maroulis agrees with customer service and Communications needing help, but 
does not think they cannot just add people when other divisions such as Street which are understaffed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Preston stated Communications is an important part as they get the message out to the 
community and lets them know what is on the horizon.  Councilmember Boney stated he appreciated the 
advocacy for one department, but felt they need to have the same advocacy for all departments.  Boney 
noted it was not an attack on the work of any individual or department.  He wanted to note the amount of 



 
Page 3 of 4 

August 17, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

time spent on things not directly tied to citizen engagement as many of the staff members were covering 
events for Mayor and Council.  Mayor Ford asked for examples.  Boney stated he saw an employee at an 
event with the Mayor and was not sure if they were there representing City or as a contractor.  He said there 
have been other events where he has seen City staff covering events that were not directly tied to citizen 
engagement.  Ford clarified the event was in the City and for citizen engagement.  Boney asked if they were 
allowed to call the Communications Department to cover any event they request them to do.  Jones stated 
that what he proposed was not only addition of resources with communications, but for all departmental 
areas as well.  He stated that if City Council called and asked the Communications staff to attend an event 
to support their district they would do so.  Jones noted it comes down to what the level of services Council 
wishes implemented and that this a policy conversation.     
 
3. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
After proper notice was given pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council went into Executive 
Session at 6:45 p.m. 

 
(a) Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 – Consultation with attorney to seek or receive legal 

advice regarding pending or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or on a matter in which 
the duty of the attorney to the City under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act:  

 
(1)  Inclusion of City territory in Fort Bend County Emergency Services District No. 7. 
(2)  City liability for certain Vicksburg Joint Powers Board activities. 

 
(b) Texas Government Code, Section 551.074 – Deliberations concerning the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee: the city attorney.   

 
(c) Texas Government Code, Section 551.087 – Deliberations regarding commercial or financial 

information that the governmental body received from a business prospect that the governmental 
body seeks to locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with 
which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations: proposed 
commercial developments.  

 
4. RECONVENE  
 
At 7:25 p.m., City Council reconvened into open session.    
 
Councilmember Maroulis moved to authorize staff to proceed with a limited purpose annexation of Sienna 
MUDs 1, 5, 6, and 7 for the purpose of providing fire protection services and not having duplicate services; 
and, to authorize staff to seek judicial action to establish the legality of the ESD annexation in the City’s 
territory and to prevent the establishment of debt.  Councilmember Sterling seconded.  MOTION PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.   
 

Ayes: Mayor Ford, Mayor Pro Tem Preston, Councilmember Edwards, 
Councilmember Sterling, Councilmember Boney, Councilmember Maroulis 
and Councilmember Emery  

Nays:  None 
 
At 7:27 p.m., City Council recessed the special meeting for the regular meeting.    
 
At 8:26 p.m., City Council reconvened into the special meeting.   



 
Page 4 of 4 

August 17, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

 
At 8:28 p.m., City Council reconvened into closed executive session. 
 
At 9:35 p.m., City Council reconvened into open session.  No action was taken.   
 
3. ADJOURN 

The special City Council meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m.  
 
Minutes PASSED AND APPROVED this the 8th day of September 2020. 
 
 
   
   
                                                                                                                                   
  Maria Jackson, City Secretary 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

Location/Date:  The City Council of the City of Missouri City will hold a public hearing 
on Monday, September 21, 2020, in the City Council Chamber—2nd Floor, City Hall 
Building, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas at 7:00 p.m. Due to the current state 
of disaster, the hearings may take place by conference call or by another mechanism, as 
authorized by the Texas governor. Please monitor www.missouricitytx.gov for additional 
information. 

Purposes:  
(1)To receive comments for and against the annexation for the limited purpose of 
providing fire protection services in Sienna Plantation Municipal Utility Districts 1, 4, 
5, 6, and 7, which are generally located north and west of the Sienna Point residential 
subdivision, south of Steep Bank Trace, east of the Brazos River, and west of Farm to 
Market Road 521.   

(2)To receive testimony or evidence for and against the adoption of an amendment 
to the strategic partnership agreements between the City of Missouri City and Sienna 
Plantation Municipal Utility Districts 1, 4, 5, 6, and 7, respectively, for the purpose of 
authorizing a limited purpose annexation for the provision of fire protection services. 
Copies of the proposed amendments to the strategic partnership agreements may be 
obtained prior to the hearing from the City Secretary’s office, City of Missouri City, 1522 
Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, (281) 403-8686. All residents and taxpayers of the 
City of Missouri City, Texas, Sienna Plantation Municipal Sienna Plantation Municipal 
Utility Districts 1, 4, 5, 6, and 7, and other interested persons are hereby invited to attend 
these and all other meetings of the City Council.

City of Missouri City





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 8(a) Consider nominations and cast votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League 

Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees. 
  
Submitted by: Maria Jackson, City Secretary 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Consider candidate nominations and cast votes for candidates to serve the Texas Municipal League 
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The TMLIRP is the leading provider of workers' compensation, liability, and property coverage for local 
governments in Texas. Founded in 1974, TMLIRP is the oldest and largest pool of its type in the United 
States, serving over 2,800 governments and political subdivisions. TMLIRP’s mission is to provide Texas 
municipalities and other units of local government with a stable source of risk financing and loss prevention 
services at the lowest cost consistent with sound business practices. 
 
TML Region 14, San Jacinto Region/Houston Area, is one of the 15 sub-state regions to promote local 
interests in city government, facilitate the exchange of information among the cities in this region, and assist 
the TML Board of Directors in formulating policy that represents the diverse interests of the state. 
 
The City of Missouri City is a member of the TMLIRP and entitled to vote for Board of Trustee members. The 
TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool Board is comprised of fifteen voting members, twelve of whom are elected 
by the Pool’s membership to serve staggered, six-year terms.   
 
The officials listed have been nominated to serve a six-year term on the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool 
(Workers' Compensation, Property and Liability) Board of Trustees. The names of the candidates for each 
Place on the Board of Trustees are listed in alphabetical order on this ballot. 
 
Council may vote for one candidate for each place or a write-in candidate to the TMLIRP Board of Trustees. 
Ballots must be received no later than September 30, 2020. The candidates are as follows: 
 

PLACE 1 
 
Robert T. Herrera (Incumbent). City Manager, City of Cibolo (Region 7) since 2012. Mr. Herrera served as 
City Manager of Hondo, Texas from 2003 to 2012 and as City Manager of La Porte from 1986 to 2002. He 
has served other Texas cities, including management positions with the cities of San Marcos, Missouri City, 
and Woodway. Mr. Herrera has been a Board member of the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool since 1993 
and has served as Chair and Vice Chair of the Board. He also served as Chair of the Finance-Information 
Technology Committee and the Underwriting-Claims Committee of the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool. 
 
WRITE IN CANDIDATE:__________________________________________________________________ 
 

PLACE 2 



 
Chris Armacost. City Commissioner for the City of Hitchcock (Region 14). Mr. Armacost is Director of 
Technology, Transportation, Facilities, and Operations for the Hitchcock Independent School District. He 
serves on the Hitchcock Education Foundation and Hitchcock Chamber of Commerce. He is the president 
of the Hitchcock Little League Baseball Association and coached several teams. Mr. Armacost has been 
awarded the Hitchcock Chamber President Award and the Above and Beyond Citizen Award from the 
Hitchcock ISD. He has obtained a Certified Municipal Official certification from TML. 
 
John W. (Buzz) Fullen (Incumbent). Mayor of the City of Henderson since 2019 and from 2004 to 2012 
(Region 15). Mr. Fullen also served as a Commissioner of the Henderson Housing Authority from 2011 to 
2019 and is now ex-officio on same. He currently serves on the Henderson Main Street Board (2004-present), 
Henderson Civic Center Board (2003- present), and the Henderson ETMC Hospital Diabetes Board (2009-
present). He has been a Board member of the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool since 2010, during which 
time he served as Chair (2018-2020) and Vice Chair (2016-2018). 
 
WRITE IN CANDIDATE:__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

PLACE 3 
 
George Hyde. City Attorney for the City of Watuaga (Region 8). Mr. Hyde is a partner in the law firm Russell 
Rodriquez Hyde Bullock, LLP, located in Georgetown. He is a member of and holds Merit Certification in 
Municipal Law from the Texas City Attorneys Association. He has served as City Attorney for ten other cities 
across Texas, since 2003. He has also served local governments in various public safety positions within 
Fire Departments, Parks Departments, and Police Departments. During his tenure as a peace officer, Mr. 
Hyde received the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Educational Achievement Award for exceeding 
normal expectations in job performance. 
 
Roy E. Maynor. City Alderman, Position 3, for the City of West Columbia (Region 14). He has been an 
elected official of West Columbia since 2013. Mr. Maynor is a Life Safety Systems Specialist for Vallen Safety 
Services and a member of Gulf Coast Christian Church. He is also part-owner of Grit Fitness in West 
Columbia. He and his wife, Rachel, have two children. 
 
Jeffrey Snyder (Incumbent). City Manager for the City of Plainview (Region 2). He previously served as 
the Assistant City Manager for Plainview and as the City Manager for Idalou. Mr. Snyder graduated from 
West Texas A&M University and obtained a Master of Public Administration from Texas Tech University. He 
is a member of the International City Management Association (ICMA) and TCMA. He is a graduate of the 
Public Executive Institute through the University of Texas and is a credentialed manager through ICMA. He 
has been a Board member of the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool since 2018 and served on various 
committees with TML, TCMA and ICMA and as past president of the Panhandle City Management 
Association. 
 
WRITE IN CANDIDATE:__________________________________________________________________ 
 

PLACE 4 
 
Robert S. Hauck (Incumbent). City Manager for the City of Tomball (Region 14), a position he has held 
since April 2018. He began his full-time career in public service with the Los Angeles Police Department in 
1988. In 2008, Mr. Hauck retired from the LAPD andjoined the City of Tomball, where he has served as Chief 
of Police, Assistant City Manager, and now City Manager. Mr. Hauck holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Business Administration, and a Master of Science degree in Management. He has been a Board member of 
the TML Intergovernmental Risk Pool since 2019. Mr. Hauck and his wife Kathleen have three children 
-- Lauren, Conner, and Madeline. 
 



Dave Martin. City Councilmember and current Mayor Pro Tern for the City of Houston (Region 14). Mr. 
Martin serves as Chair of the City Council Budget and Fiscal Affairs Committee. He previously served on the 
Humble ISO Board of Trustees and as Secretary/Treasurer of the Board of Directors for the Harris County 
Houston Sports Authority. Mr. Martin is a Managing Director of Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., the 
largest Global Risk Management firm. Previously he worked for two "Big Four" accounting firms, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP and Ernst & Young, LLP. 
 
Kimberly Meismer. Executive Director for General Operations for Kerrville (Region 7), overseeing Human 
Resources, Municipal Court, Public Library, Public Information, the Senior Services Advisory Committee, 
and the Kerrville Area Youth Leadership Academy. Ms. Meismer has over 23 years of public service, which 
includes serving Kerrville and La Porte. She is a member of the TCMA, International Public Management 
Association for Human Resources (IPMA-HR), Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM), and is a 
former President of the Bay Area Human Resource Management Association. She has a Master's degree in 
Public Administration and is an IPMA-HR Senior Certified Professional and a SHRM Certified Professional. 
 
Sean Overeynder. City Manager for the City of Lamesa, Texas (Region 3). Sean Overeynder began his 
career in local government administration in August 2014 in Economic Development, working for various 
public and private organizations. He has held the position of City Manager for the City of Lamesa since March 
2020. Prior to becoming the City Manager, he was appointed as the Economic Development Director for the 
City of Lamesa on August 27, 2018. 
 
WRITE IN CANDIDATE:__________________________________________________________________ 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City of Missouri City in voting for the TMLIRP Board of Trustees. 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Cast votes for candidates to the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool Board of Trustees. 
 
Director Approval:   Maria Jackson, City Secretary 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(a) Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Republic Masonry & Fencing 

LLC for the Corridor Enhancements Monument Signs Project. 
  
Submitted by: Shashi K. Kumar, P.E., Director of Public Works and City Engineer 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to execute a contract with Republic Masonry & Fencing 
LLC for the Corridor Enhancements Monument Signs Project. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
• Maintain a financially sound City 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
In July 2020, the Public Works Department along with the Purchasing Division, prepared and advertised an 
Invitation for Bid – IFB No. 20-042 “Corridor Enhancements Monument Signs”. Notices were published on 
the Electronic State Business Daily, Demand Star, City’s website and local newspaper. City staff received 3 
responses to this solicitation with pricing ranging from $756,988.00 to $502,845.50 (See Bid Tabulation 
Enclosed). 
 
Republic Masonry & Fencing LLC was the lowest most responsive bidder with a total bid of $502,845.50 with 
an anticipated 90 days to completion. The City’s contracted engineering firm (TBG Partners) completed the 
process of reviewing the bids submitted and made a recommendation, of which the City Staff concurs, to 
award the bid and this project to Republic Masonry & Fencing LLC 
. 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name FY20 

Funds Budgeted 

FY20  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

General Bond 403-58200-15-
999-50092 

50092 / Corridor 
Enhancements $2,185,435.05 $2,134,125.00 $502,845.50 

 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM - Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 



 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. Engineer Recommendation 
2. Bid Tabulation 
3. Project Location Map 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Republic Masonry & Fencing LLC for the Corridor 
Enhancements Monument Signs Project in the amount of $502,845.50 
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Glen A. Martel, ACM 
 



 

1333  W.  Loo p So uth ,  Su i te  1450 ,  Hou ston ,  Texas  77027  T EL 713 .439 .0027  W EB www. tbg par tners . co m 

 
 
August 24, 2020 
 
 
 
Mark Law 
City of Missouri City 
1522 Texas Parkway 
Missouri City, Texas 77459 
 
Re: Notice of Bids Received 

City of Missouri City Corridor Enhancements Monument Signs 
COMC Project # 2912 / TBG Job No. H17116 

 
 
On August 18th, 2020 we received three (3) bids for the referenced project.  After review 
of the bids submitted, Republic Masonry and Fencing, LLC is the lowest comprehensive 
base bid. Their bid was also lowest for alternates 2 at $502,845.50 which is the 
recommended alternate for the project. 
 
Enclosed for your review is a copy of the bid tabulation.  Please do not hesitate to call if 
you have any questions regarding the bid. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
TBG Partners 
 
 
 
Amy Harr; PLA, LEED AP 
Associate 
 
 
 
cc: Shashi Kumar, COMC 
 Jessica Kokes, COMC 
 Meade Mitchell, TBG 
 J. Wes Cegelski, TBG 



Jerdon 

Enterprise, LP

Republic 

Masonry & 

Fencing LLC

Bass 

Construction

Item

1 General Conditions $46,000.00 $2,984.00 $82,500.00

2 Payment, Performance, & Maintenance Bonds $8,000.00 $7,645.00 $9,750.00

3 Sitework (Base bid: 19.8mm w/Amber) $388,467.67 $338,216.50 $504,750.00

5 Site Field Conditions Allowance $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

$467,467.67 $373,845.50 $622,000.00

$597,000 written total base bid

Alternate 1: (19.8mm / RGB) Subtotal $249,800.00 $334,950.00 $386,085.00

   Alternate 1 breakdown

      One Single Sided LED Screen Only (x1) $53,300.00 $75,945.00 $25,716.00

      Three Double Sided LED Screen Only (x3) $196,500.00 $259,005.00 $360,369.00

      Remaining Sitework $232,761.61 $96,266.50 $239,504.00

Total Package w/ Alt. 1 $561,561.61 $466,845.50 $742,839.00

Alternate 2: (16mm / RGB) Subtotal $284,380.00 $370,950.00 $424,264.00

   Alternate 2 breakdown

     One Single Sided LED Screen Only (x1) $58,705.00 $81,945.00 $27,850.00

     Three Double Sided LED Screen Only (x3) $225,675.00 $289,005.00 $396,414.00

     Remaining Sitework $233,216.96 $96,266.50 $215,474.00

Total Package w/ Alt. 2 $596,596.96 $502,845.50 $756,988.00

100 90 180

Addenda 2 2 2

Y Y Y

*Red=totals did not match Bass left off the Field conditions allowance in total

Recommended bidder with recommended alternate

Bid Bond

Total

Days to Complete

Prepared by TBG Partners

August 19, 2020

COMC Beautification - Reader Signs

H17116

Bid Tabulation

Page 1 of 2



city of 
missouri city

proposed 
monument locations

Missouri City, Texas

02/13/20
TBG

1333 W Loop South

Suite 1450

Houston, Texas 77056 

[713] 439 0027

tbgpartners.com

The information shown is based on 

the best information available and is 

subject to change without notice.

N.T.S.

SINGLE- SIDED READER SIGN IN MEDIAN - 
INDEPENDENCE @ CITY LIMITS CHANNEL (REPLACES 
OLD LOGO SIGN)

DOUBLE-SIDED READER SIGN ON NW SIDE OF ROAD - 
TEXAS PARKWAY @ CITY LIMITS CHANNEL (REPLACES 
OLD LOGO SIGN)

DOUBLE-SIDED READER SIGN IN EAST MEDIAN  - 
INDEPENDENCE AT FM 1092/MURPHY RD.

DOUBLE-SIDED READER SIGN WITHIN MEDIAN ON 
S.E. SIDE OF DULLES - CARTWRIGHT @ DULLES 
INTERSECTION 

LOGO COLUMNS ON NE AND SE CORNER OF 
INTERSECTION - SH6 @ DULLES

REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING INCORRECT LOGO SIGN 
PANEL - SH 6 @ FM 1092

EXISTING SIGN LOCATIONS

A

B

C

0372

0506

0337

2091

4028

2050

4065

20894127

2081

2078

2136

2070

4030

2059

2090

2116

4049

2115

4131

2077
2093

1134

2092

2112

2075

2036

2051

2033

2088

Mayor: Allen Owen

Council District Members:

District A - Yolanda Ford
District B - Don Smith

District C - Anthony Maroulis
District D - Floyd Emery

At-Large Positions:

Position 1 - Jerry Wyatt
Position 2 - Chris Preston

LEGEND

4

3                 

1

2

D

CARTWRIGHT RD
4

T
E

X
A

S
 P

K
W

Y

F
M

 1
0
9
2
 / M

U
R

P
H

Y
 R

D

D
U

L
L

E
S

 A
V

E

S.H. 6

F
O

N
D

R
E

N
 R

D

F.B
. T

O
L
L
 R

O
A

D

U.S. 90 A BELTWAY 8

INDEPENDENCE BLVD

CITY OF HOUSTON

CITY OF STAFFORD

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

U
G

A
R

 L
A

N
D

1

2

3

T
E

X
A

S
 P

K
W

Y
T

E
X

A
S

 P
K

W
Y

6

5

5

1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9b CARES ACT- Air Regulators 
  
Submitted by: Eugene Campbell, Jr. 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Staff is requesting the purchase of 53 Air Regulators for $75,048.00 with CARES act funding. This 
purchase would allow the Fire department to issue each firefighter their own individual Air Pack 
regulator. This would help isolate potential contamination between individuals who currently share 
regulators.  The current system the regulator stay with the air pack on the truck and is share by all 
users.  This presents a risk of contamination with a direct line to their respiratory system. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
This item is seeking city council authorization to purchase in accordance with §2-102 Signatory Authorities 
and Approval Thresholds of the 2017 City of Missouri City Procurement Policy, for a purchase over $50,000.  
Further, the item is seeking authorization to purchase the items through cooperative procurement method in 
accordance with §3-106 Cooperative Procurement of the City of Missouri City Procurement Policy. 
 
This purchase request is for 53 Air Regulators. This project was approved at the August 3rd council 
meeting.  
 
Staff recommends the Council authorize purchase of (53) new Air Regulators at the cost of $75,048.00. 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

FY2020 
Funds 
Budgeted 

FY2020  
Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

800-52034-99-
999-COVID     75,0048* 

      

*Funds will be reimbursement from the CARES funding. 
 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM - Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 



 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the 

interested party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-
days of this Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. HGACBuy Contract Pricing Worksheet 
2. Approved Project list 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approval for the Fire Department to purchase the air regulators.  
 
Director Approval:   Eugene Campbell, Jr.  
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Odis Jones, City Manager 
 



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
       September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 9(c) Consider authorizing the negotiation and execution of a bed maintenance contract. 
  
Submitted by:  Paul Wierzbicki, City Horticulturalist/Forester 

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Staff desires to award a term contract for landscape bed maintenance services with Maldonado Nursery & 
Landscaping, Inc.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2020 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
• Develop a high performing City team 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
City staff request that Council considers authorizing the negotiation and execution of a term contract for 
landscape bed services with Maldonado Nursery & Landscaping, Inc.  The Parks Department utilizes these 
services to perform routine landscape maintenance tasks such as weeding, mulching, pruning and trimming 
shrubs and groundcovers along with irrigation system repairs and inspections. City properties under this 
maintenance contract will include; City Hall/Community Center, Missouri City Branch Library, all Fire 
Stations, PSHQ/Municipal Court, Rec. & Tennis Center, Buffalo Run Park, 90A monument. Next year the 
recently landscaped medians on Texas Parkway and Cartwright Rd will be added, after the TXDOT 
maintenance period expires. The Purchasing Division issued an Invitation for Bid No. 20-053 bid on August 
10, 2020, with the bids due September 8, 2020.  The City received three responses. After careful review, the 
department selected Maldonado Nursery & Landscaping, Inc. as the bid most advantageous to the City, with 
a bid of $50,066.22 for bed maintenance plus an hourly rate for irrigation repair & monitoring ($80hr), and 
supplemental hedge & bed pruning ($70hr). Total amount requested for FY21 is $97,500.    
 

BUDGET/FISCAL ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account 
Number 

Project 
Code/Name 

Proposed FY 
2021   Budgeted 
Funds 

Proposed FY 
2021 Funds 
Available 

Amount 
Requested 

General Fund 101-53568-16-
153- 

Landscape 
Services $97,500 $97,500 $97,500 

 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM - Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 



 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Bid Tabulation Sheet  
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that Council award a term contact to Maldonado Nursery & Landscaping, Inc.  
      for Landscape Bed Maintenance Services. 
 
Director Approval:   Jason S. Mangum, CPRE 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Bill Atkinson  
 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item:  10(a)  Consider and take action on an ordinance approving an ad valorem tax rate for 

the City of Missouri City, Texas, upon all taxable property within the corporate limits of 
the City for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2021; directing the assessment and 
collection thereof; providing for a severability clause; and providing for an effective date.  

 
     Staff requests first and final reading. 
  
Submitted by: Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services  

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
Property Tax Code 26.05 states that a taxing unit may not impose property taxes in any year until the 
governing body has adopted a tax rate for that year.  It also states that the vote setting the tax rate must be 
separate from the vote adopting the budget.  The rate must be adopted before the later of September 30 or 
the 60th day after the date the certified appraisal roll is received with an exception for a tax rate that exceeds 
the voter-approval rate. The Harris County certified appraisal roll was received on September 2, 2020 and is 
included as an attachment to this report.  Approval of this ordinance will set a property tax rate of $0.598035 
per $100 for Fiscal Year 2021, which is the no-new revenue rate. The two components of the tax rate must 
be approved separately. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Maintain a financially sound City 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Section 102.009 (a) of the Local Government Code states, “The governing body of the municipality may levy 
taxes only in accordance with the budget.” Tonight, under separate cover, City Council adopted the Fiscal 
Year 2021 Budget based on a property tax rate of $0.598035 per $100 valuation.  On August 17, 2020, City 
Council proposed a tax rate of $0.598035 per $100 for Fiscal Year 2021.  This rate is the no-new revenue 
rate, which does not require a public hearing prior to adoption.  
 
Total Tax Rate    $0.598035 
Debt Rate    $0.144505 
M&O* Rate    $0.453530 
 
Effective NNR M&O Rate  $0.443015 
No-New Revenue (NNR) Rate $0.598035 
Voter Approval Rate   $0.603024 
 
*M&O – Maintenance and Operations 
  



BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Using a 97% collection factor, the total tax revenue proposed to be raised in FY2020 at the proposed tax 
rate of $0.598035 for each $100 of taxable value, including tax revenue to be raised from new property added 
to the tax roll this year, is $44,347,506.    Any increase/decrease in tax to property owners would be due to 
an increase or decrease in their property’s assessed valuation. 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

1. Tax Rate Ordinance 
2. Certified Appraisal Roll – Harris County 
3. Certified Appraisal Roll – Fort Bend County 
4. Tax Rate Notice 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the FY2020 Tax Rate of $0.598035. 
 
Director Approval:   Allena Portis, Director of Financial Services   
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 
 



 
01 Tax Rate Ordinance FY 2021.doc  Page 1 of 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O-20-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
PROVIDING FOR THE ASSESSMENT, LEVY, AND 
COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 
MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, FOR THE TAX YEAR 2020 AND FOR 
EACH YEAR THEREAFTER UNTIL OTHERWISE PROVIDED; 
PROVIDING THE DATE ON WHICH SUCH TAXES SHALL BE 
DUE AND TIMELY PAID; AND AUTHORIZING AN ADDITIONAL 
PENALTY FOR THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT AD 
VALOREM TAXES IN LIEU OF RECOVERING ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES. 

 
*  *         *                   *                    *            
 

 WHEREAS, the Budget of the City of Missouri City, Texas, for the fiscal 
year period beginning October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021 (“Fiscal 
Year 2021”), has been adopted; and 
 
 WHEREAS, certain revenues from sources other than ad valorem taxes 
will be available for a portion of the expenditures of such budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ad valorem taxes should be levied and collected to provide 
the additional revenues necessary to meet the remaining portion of such 
expenditures; now, therefore, in accordance with such Budget and pursuant 
hereto, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby found to be true and correct.  
 
 Section 2.   All property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City of 
Missouri City, Texas, shall be equally and uniformly assessed for such purposes 
at one hundred percent (100%) of the full cash market value of such property. 
 
 Section 3.  There is hereby levied for general purposes for use by the City 
of Missouri City, Texas, for tax year 2020, and for each year thereafter until 
otherwise provided, an annual ad valorem tax at the rate of $0.453530 on each 
One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation on all property, real, 
personal, and mixed, within the corporate limits upon which an ad valorem tax is 
authorized by law to be levied by the City of Missouri City, Texas. THIS TAX 
RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR'S TAX RATE. The proceeds from such 
tax shall be applied to the payment of the general and current expenses of the 



 
01 Tax Rate Ordinance FY 2021.doc  Page 2 of 3 

 

government of the City, including payment of any obligations for which taxes are 
not levied by another section hereof and for the payment for which provision is 
not otherwise made.  All such taxes shall be assessed and collected in current 
money of the United States of America. 
 
 Section 4.  For the purpose of paying the interest on bonds, warrants, 
certificates of obligation, or other lawfully authorized evidence of indebtedness 
issued by the City of Missouri City, Texas, including the various installments of 
principal due on the serial bonds, warrants, certificates of obligation, or other 
lawfully authorized evidence of indebtedness issued by the City as such 
installments shall respectively mature, and for the purpose of repaying any sums 
borrowed in anticipation of current revenues for use in the payment of bonds and 
certificates of obligation and interest therein maturing in the Fiscal Year 2021, 
and for the purpose of paying interest and making provisions for the sinking fund 
on such other bond issues, warrants, certificates of obligation, or other lawfully 
authorized evidence of indebtedness as may be authorized, there is hereby 
levied for the tax year 2020 and for each year thereafter until otherwise provided, 
to be assessed and collected upon all property described in Section 3 of this 
Ordinance, an annual ad valorem tax rate at the rate of $0.144505 on each One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation. 
 
 Section 5.  All ad valorem taxes levied hereby in the total amount of 
$0.598035 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation, as 
reflected in Sections 3 and 4 hereof, shall be due and payable upon receipt of the 
tax bill.  All ad valorem taxes due to the City of Missouri City, Texas, and not paid 
on or before February 1 following the year for which they were levied shall bear 
penalty and interest as prescribed in the Texas Tax Code Annotated, as such 
code may be amended. 
 
 Section 6.  That on July 1, 2021, all tax accounts which are delinquent for 
the tax year 2020 will incur, in addition to the interest and penalties referenced in 
Section 5, above, additional penalties in the amount of fifteen percent (15%) of 
the sum of the tax, penalty and interest then due, and to be due, in order to help 
defray the cost of collection of the same. 
                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              



 
01 Tax Rate Ordinance FY 2021.doc  Page 3 of 3 

 

 Section 7.  That the Tax Collector shall deliver a notice of delinquency and 
of this additional penalty to the property owner of each tax account, at least thirty 
(30) and not more than sixty (60) days before July 1, 2021. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this 21st   
day of September, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary  E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 







































1000.1.12 

Unencumbered Fund Balances 
The following estimated balances will be left in the taxing unit's accounts at the end of the fiscal year. These balances are not encumbered by corresponding 
debt obligation.  

Type of Fund 

General Fund

Debt Service  Fund

Balance

$19,477,578 

6,401,643 
Current Year Debt Service 

The unit plans to pay the following amounts for long-term debts that are secured by property taxes. These amounts will be paid from upcoming property tax 
revenues (or additional sales tax revenues, if applicable).  

Description of Debt 

GO and Co Bond Debt 

Capital Leases 

Paying Agent 
Fees/Arbitrage 

Principal or Contract   
Payment to be Paid from 
Property Taxes  

6,816,412 

383,853 

0 

Interest to be Paid from 
  Property Taxes 

3,628,536 

109,047 

0 

Other Amounts to be 
  Paid  

0 

0 

16,550 

Total Payment 

10,444,948 

492,900 

16,550 

Total required for 2020 debt service 
- Amount (if any) paid from funds listed in unencumbered funds 
- Amount (if any) paid from other resources
- Excess collections last year
= Total to be paid from taxes in 2020
collect only   100.16% of its taxes in 2020 
=Total debt levy

10,954,398 
0 
0 

925,759 
10,028,639 

-16,021 
10,012,618 

NOTICE ABOUT 2020 TAX RATES 
Property Tax Rates in the City of Missouri City.  This notice concerns the 2020 property tax rates for the City of Missouri City.  This notice provides information about two 
tax rates used in adopting the current tax year’s tax rate.  The no-new-revenue tax rate would impose the same amount of taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed in 
both years.  In most cases, the voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate a taxing unit can adopt without holding an election.  In each case, these rates are calculated by 
dividing the total amount of taxes by the current taxable value with adjustments as required by state law.  The rates are given per $100 of property value 

This year's no-new-revenue tax rate: $0.598035/$100 

This year's voter-approval tax rate:    $0.603024/$100 

This notice contains a summary of the no-new-revenue and voter-approval calculations as certified by Carrie Surratt, 
Fort Bend County Tax Assessor-Collector on 08/07/2020.  

To see the full calculations, please visit www.fortbendcountytx.gov/taxrates for a copy of the Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To:  Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item:  11(a) Resolution authorizing the establishment of programs and the use of funds for  

 such programs to address COVID-19 
Submitted by:  James Santangelo, Assistant City Attorney   

 
SYNOPSIS 

 
This item is being brought to the City Council in order to authorize the establishment of programs to address 
the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, such as rental and small business assistance programs. This resolution 
will also authorize the use of City funds that may eligible for reimbursement under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, 
and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act to establish such programs and fund other priorities relating to COVID-
19, as well as establish a public purpose for any funds hereunder used to benefit a private party.  
  

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live.  
 

BACKGROUND 
 
 Pursuant to Article III, section 52 of the Texas Constitution, the State Legislature “shall have no power 
to authorize any county, city, town or other political corporation or subdivision of the State to lend its credit 
or to grant public money or thing of value in aid of, or to any individual, association or corporation 
whatsoever.” Case law regarding this provision has held that, should a city grant a thing of value to benefit 
an individual, the expenditure must serve a public purpose. Declaring a public purpose is a legislative 
function. 
 
 This resolution establishes programs and authorizes Council priorities relating to the COVID-19 
threat, including those that assist renters and small business. The City, in conducting such programs and 
making certain expenditures may be eligible for reimbursement under the CARES Act. The City is eligible to 
receive $4,108,775 in CARES Act funds from Harris and Fort Bend Counties This resolution also declares 
the public purpose for these programs and expenditures, as required by the Texas Constitution, as creating 
a safer and more united community, helping to slow the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, and maintaining 
the economic security and stability of Missouri City. 
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Purchasing Review:  N/A 
Financial/Budget Review: N/A 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested 

party disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this 
Council action and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 



1. Resolution 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt the resolution.   
 
Director Approval:   E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
Assistant City Manager/  
City Manager Approval:  Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager 
 



2020.09.21 CARES Act Resolution.docx   Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-20-__ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING CERTAIN PROGRAMS TO ADDRESS THE 
COVID-19 PANDEMIC; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF CITY FUNDS FOR 
SUCH PROGRAMS; AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
* * * * * 

 
WHEREAS, in December, 2019, a novel coronavirus that causes the disease now 

designated as “COVID-19,” was detected, and has since spread throughout the world; and  

 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized COVID-
19 as a pandemic; and  

 WHEREAS, according to the Center for Disease Control, as of September 14, 2020, 
6,503,030 cases and 193,705 deaths have been reported by 50 states and the District of 
Columbia in the United States of America; and 

 WHEREAS, in response to the public health and economic impacts of COVID-19, the 
United States Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(“CARES Act”), which was signed into law on March 27, 2020, and authorized an economic 
relief package of over two trillion dollars; and 

 WHEREAS, a goal of the CARES Act is to provide fast and direct economic assistance 
for American workers, families, and small businesses, and preserve jobs for American 
industries; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Missouri City (the “City”) is eligible to receive up to 
$4,108,775.00 in CARES Act funds from Fort Bend and Harris Counties; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Missouri City (“City Council”) finds it in the 
best interest of the residents of the City to use City funds, including CARES Act funds, for 
certain City expenditures and Council priorities relating to pandemic response and relief, and 
distribute such funds to assist renters and small businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council also finds that the City’s use of such funds furthers the 
City’s 2019 Strategic Plan goal of creating a great place to live; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the City’s use of CARES Act funds to 
fund rental assistance, small business assistance, and other Council priorities related to the 
pandemic creates a safer and more united community, helps to slow the spread of the COVID-
19 pandemic, and provides relief to residents and local businesses necessary to maintain the 
economic stability and security of the City, thereby serving a public purpose; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS:  



2020.09.21 CARES Act Resolution.docx   Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 1. The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Resolution are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct.    

Section 2.  The City Council of the City of Missouri City hereby establishes the 
programs set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, to 
address the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic and to provide relief to residents and local 
businesses to maintain the economic stability and security of the City.  

Section 3.  The City Council of the City of Missouri City hereby authorizes the use of 
City funds, including CARES Act funds, to assist residents, renters and small businesses and 
fund other Council priorities relating to the COVID-19 pandemic, as set forth in Exhibit “A.” 

Section 4.  The officers, employees, and volunteers of the City of Missouri City are 
hereby authorized and directed to take such actions that maximize the furtherance of such 
goals through the use of CARES Act funds. 

Section 5.  The City Council of the City of Missouri City hereby declares the City’s 
use of CARES Act funds in the manner described herein to serve a public purpose. 

Section 6.  Repeal. All resolutions or parts of resolutions, if any, in conflict herewith, 
shall be and are expressly repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7.  Severability.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part 
of this Resolution or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 
reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall 
not affect, impair, or invalidate this Resolution as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 
than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or 
whether there be one or more parts. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this the 21st day of September, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 

Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 

 



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

1 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

City of Missouri City COVID-19 Response and Emergency Assistance 
TASK ORDER No. 001 

 
 

CONSULTANT:  MPACT Strategic Consulting, LLC 
 
COVID-19 Scope Summary: 

Task 1: Rental, Mortgage and Utility (RMU) Assistance Program 
Task 2: Small Business (SB) Assistance Program 
Task 3: Continuity of Operations (COOP) Assistance 
Task 4: Technical Assistance 

. 
 

COVID-19 TASK SCOPE DESCRIPTION 
• Task 1: Program Services including (Call Center Operations and Program Administration) for 

Missouri City Rental, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance Program. 

• Task 2: Program Services including (Call Center Operations and Program Administration) 
for Missouri City Small Business Assistance Program. 

• Task 3: Planning Services for Missouri City Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) Technical 
Assistance. 

• Task 4: COVID-19 Grant Management Technical Assistance for Missouri City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

2 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

TASK 1: Rental, Mortgage and Utility (RMU) Assistance Program 
• Scope: 

Missouri City has identified housing as a priority among basic needs for our community. Due to 
the impacts of the COVID-19 crisis, a rising number of Missouri City residents are unable to sustain 
their rent payments and are at risk of eviction and displacement. In response, Missouri City has 
set-aside up to $500,000 for a rental, mortgage and utility assistance program. Applications will 
be accepted from eligible applicants for the Rental, Mortgage and Utility program that provide 
assistance to households under the following 
guidelines: 

o One (1) or more month of rental, mortgage and/or utility assistance for eligible applicants, 
until all allocated funds are deemed exhausted or expended. 

o Up to $1,500 per month to cover past due or current rents or mortgages from October 1, 
2020 through December 1, 2020 

o Up to $500 per month per eligible applicant to cover past due utility bills from October 1, 
2020 through December 1, 2020. 

o Payments will be made directly to landlord/vendor on behalf of the eligible applicant 
(with household verification) 

 
• Deliverables: 

Call Center Operations: 
o Open and operate a call center for 1-week duration, with approximately 5 FTEs. 
o Estimated cost approximately $11,000.00 

 
Case Management Operations: 

o Payment packages (invoices/transmittals) for up to 200 applicants or $500,000 whichever 
comes first. A payment package is considered completed once it has been submitted to 
Missouri City for payment. 

o Estimated costs approximately $97,000.00 
 
Qualiy Assurance and Verifiation Support  

o Review and confirmation of Payment packages (invoices/transmittals) for processing and 
payment to Vendors and Landlords 

o Estimated costs approximately $30,000.00 
 
Reports: 

o Weekly progress reports 
 

• Period of Performance 
September 28, 2020 – November 20, 2020 
 

• Rate Schedule 
TITLE RATE WEEKS HRS/WEEK TOTAL 

Project Manager $  125.00/hr. 8.00 20.00  $    20,000.00  
Case Manager Lead $  75.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    24,000.00  
Case Manager $  55.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    17,600.00  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

3 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

Case Manager $  55.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    17,600.00  
Case Manager $  55.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    17,600.00  
Analyst $  35.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    11,200.00  
QA/QC Verification 
Team (2 FTEs) $55.00/hr. 6.00 90.00 $29,700 

Grant Total = $137,700.00 
Contractor will be paid within 7 days of invoice submission, provided no edits are required.  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

4 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

• Assumptions: 
Missouri City to provide the following: 

o Office space 
o Phones for call center support 
o Emails addresses (Missouri city) 
o Computers 
o Printers 
o Copiers/Scanners 
o QA/Verification Team to be directed by Fort Bend County staff for payments 
o Online portal capability with document upload and retention 

 Optional MPACT Provided Solution - Additional cost of $125,000.00 
 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 
 
  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

5 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

TASK 2: Small Business Assistance Program 
• Scope: 

Missouri City has identified small business as a priority among basic needs for our community. 
Due to the impacts of the COVID-19 crisis, a rising number of Missouri City small businesses are 
unable to sustain their operational costs and are at risk of closing down. In response, Missouri 
City has set-aside up to $500,000 for a small business assistance program. Applications will be 
accepted for the for the Small Business Assistance Program from eligible small businesses meeting 
the following criteria: 

o Annual business revenue does not exceed $2,000,000. 
o For-profit businesses only. 
o The business must have been substantially impacted (25% revenue loss or more) by 

COVID-19 and operational as of February 15, 2020 and has not permanently closed. 
o The business and all principals must be in good standing at the time of application with 

the State of Texas and their respective city (real and personal taxes, outstanding 
payments, potential judgements, fines, or other amounts due to the city.) Verifiable 
though the County and State of Texas Comptroller’s office. 

o No more than 50 employees 
o FICO review ($82 per report) 

 
Awards will be $2,500 for all eligible small businesses. 

o For a business to be eligible, it can have no more than 50 total employees 
 
Grants are available to businesses for the following eligible CARES ACT 
activities: 

o Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
o Re-opening supplies, equipment & renovations 
o Inventory 
o Utilities 
o Remote working expenses 
o Leases (commercial property only) 

 
 

• Deliverables: 
Case Management Operations: 

o Payment packages (invoices/transmittals) for up to 200 applicants or $500,000 whichever 
is comes first. A payment package is considered completed once it has been submitted to 
Missouri City for payment. 

Reports: 
o Weekly progress reports 

 
• Period of Performance 

October 11, 2020 – December 11, 2020 
 

  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

6 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

• Rate Schedule 
TITLE RATE WEEKS HRS/WEEK TOTAL 

Project Manager $  125.00/hr. 8.00 20.00  $    20,000.00  
Case Manager Lead $  75.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    24,000.00  
Case Manager $  55.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    17,600.00  
Case Manager $  55.00/hr. 8.00 40.00  $    17,600.00  
Analyst $  35.00/hr. 8.00 40.00 $    11,200.00  

Grant Total = $90,400.00 
 
Contractor will be paid within 7 days of invoice submission, provided no edits are required. 
 

• Assumptions: 
Missouri City to provide the following: 

o FICO review cost will be passed through to Missouri City at a rate of $82.00 per report. A 
report will be required for approved applications. Total Additional Cost = $16,400.00 

o Office space 
o Emails addresses 
o Computers 
o Printers 
o Copiers/Scanners 
o Online portal capability with document upload and retention 

 
 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

7 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

 

TASK 3: Continuity of Operations (COOP) Assistance 
• Scope: 

Consultant will revise and enhance the City’s 2010 Continuity of Operations (COOP) with most 
recent emergency management best practices and lessons learned.  Also, consultant will produce 
a new COOP annex addressing pandemic response and operational contingencies for providing 
uninterrupted emergency services. 
 

• Deliverables: 
Existing Continuity of Operations Plan: 

o Updated 2020 Missouri City Continuity of Operations Plan  
Pandemic Response Annex: 

o New section for 2020 COOP specific to operational continuity for pandemic events 
 

• Period of Performance 
November 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020 
 

• Rate Schedule 
TITLE QUANTITY RATE HOURS TOTAL 

Principal Planner 1.0 $  150.00 80.00 $  12,000.00 
Planning Analyst 1.0 $  125.00 24.00 $  3,000.00 

Grand Total = $15,000.00 
 

Contractor will be paid within 7 days of invoice submission, provided no edits are required. 
 
• Assumptions 

o Missouri City will facilitate updates or requirements from various City and external 
agencies and provide the inputs to MPACT. 

 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

8 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

TASK 4: Technical Assistance for COVID-19 Programs/Tasks 
• Scope: 

Provide implementation activities as necessary to ensure compliance and operational support for 
programs developed and designed for COVID-19 response due to the public health emergency 
with respect to COVID-19. These activities include all of the following: 

o Attend meetings with and assist the Client in responding to inquiries from FEMA, HUD 
and State agencies 

o Review and update/revise policies and procedures for compliance with federal and state 
regulations 

o Assist in identifying eligible costs and appropriate funding sources 
o Review procurements for proper application of federal 2 CFR requirements 
o Review and update documentation and compliance requirements 
o Assist with appeals and reconciliations with HUD, FEMA, FHWA and/or TDEM 
o Assist with presentation to City/County agencies and constituents 

 
• Deliverables: 

o Attend meetings with and assist the Client in responding to inquiries from TDEM, FEMA, 
HUD and other State agencies 

o Review and update/revise policies and procedures for compliance with federal and state 
regulations 

o Assist in identifying eligible costs and appropriate funding sources 
o Review procurements for proper application of federal 2 CFR requirements 
o Review and update documentation and compliance requirements 
o Assist with appeals and reconciliations with HUD, FEMA, FHWA and/or TDEM 
o Assist with presentation to City/County agencies and constituents 

 
• Period of Performance 

August 24, 2020 – December 31,2020 
 

• Rate Schedule 
TITLE RATE HOURS 

Project Manager $  150.00/hr. 80.00 
Subject Matter Expert $  185.00/hr. 20.00 
Manager $  110.00/hr. 120.00 
COVID-19 Analyst 1 $    75.00/hr. 120.00 
COVID-19 Analyst 2 $    55.00/hr. 120.00 

Not to exceed $75,000.00 
 
Contractor will be paid within 7 days of invoice submission, provided no edits are required. 

  



 
 
 EXHIBIT A 

9 
DRAFT – FOR REVIEW 

In witness thereof, the parties have caused this Task Order to be duly executed, intending to 
be bound thereby 
 
 
 
 
City of Missouri City, Texas  MPACT Strategic Consulting, Inc. 

DO NOT SIGN - DRAFT  DO NOT SIGN - DRAFT 
Signature  Signature 

  Spurgeon Robinson 
Printed Name  Printed Name 

   
Date  Date 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO 
 
September 21, 2020 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
Agenda Item: 11(b) Consider adopting a resolution amending the utility schedule of fees based on 

recommendation from the Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee 
  
Submitted by: Shashi K. Kumar, P.E., Director of Public Works and City Engineer  

Todd J. Hoover, Utilities Manager  
 

SYNOPSIS 
 
The Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee comprised of plan participants is charged with 
maintaining oversight over the implementation of the GRP program as well as setting/amending pumpage rates 
as may become necessary.  At the August 7, 2020 GRP Oversight Committee meeting, the Committee 
recommended amendments to the pumpage and user’s fees to meet anticipated growth and expansion needs.  
The City Council is to consider recommendations from this committee and authorize proposed changes (increase) 
to the pumpage and user’s fees.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2019 GOALS ADDRESSED 
 

• Create a great place to live 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Fort Bend Subsidence District (FBSD) was created by the Texas State Legislature in 1989, for the purpose 
of regulating withdrawal of groundwater to minimize land subsidence (sinking) and associated risks, which 
includes flooding impacts.  Currently, each City and municipal utility district (MUD) in east Fort Bend County is 
required to reduce groundwater pumpage to no more than 70% of the total water demand withdrawn from the 
ground.  To meet this mandate by the Subsidence District, the City and MUDs have adopted and implemented a 
Joint Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP).  The City with partnership from 30-plus other local entities has 
constructed a Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant to produce treated surface water to meet this mandate.  
Currently, about 42% of the total water supplied to the GRP participant area is attributed to surface water supplies 
(well above the 30% mandate by FBSD).  Water users located within the participant area contribute to the cost 
associated with meeting the FBSD mandate, which includes construction and operation of a Surface Water Plant 
and the purchase of raw surface water from the Brazos River.  This cost is passed on to all water customers 
(residents) within the participant area by paying a GRP fee based on the actual metered water usage. The GRP 
Oversight Committee which is comprised of plan participants is charged with maintaining oversight over the 
implementation of the GRP program as well as annually review and recommend pumpage fee rate adjustments 
as necessary. 
 
The GRP Oversight Committee evaluated cost increases to supplement expenses mainly related to additional raw 
water purchase, Capital Projects necessary to accommodate ultimate growth and FBSD mandates and worked 
diligently to keep the proposed rate increases to the very minimum.  It should be noted that some parts of the City 
primarily are converted to surface water sources (Converted MUD’s) and the other areas rely solely on 
groundwater sources (Non-converted MUD’s).  The attached water sources map depicts these areas.  However, 
all participants (Converted and Non-Converted MUD’s) pay their share of cost to meet the FBSD conversion 
mandates.  The current wholesale pumpage fee charged by the City to its providers (MUD’s etc.) is $1.72 per 
1,000 gallons, and is proposed to increase to $1.79.  The current surface water pumpage fee is $2.19 and is 
proposed to increase to $2.38 per $1,000 gallons.  The current ground water user’s fee is $0.47 and is proposed 
to increase to $0.59 per 1,000 gallons.  These adjusted pumpage fees are proposed to take effect on October 1, 



2020 for fiscal year FY21.  These increases were substantiated after a detailed financial analysis (pro-forma) 
taking into account the projected revenues, expenses, debt service obligations and operating reserves for the 5-
year planning horizon.  An average household within the city uses 8,000 gallons per month and currently pays a 
monthly GRP fee of about $18 per month, which may include an administrative fee charged by the MUD/billing 
agent.  The proposed increase will be in the range of $1.52 for an average resident’s monthly water bill. 
 
Both the current fee and increased fee are lower than other pumpage (GRP) fees in the County, and significantly 
lower than the FBSD disincentive fee of $6.50 per thousand gallons which is charged to entities not meeting the 
30% reduction mandate.  It should be noted that the GRP fee is a result of the FBSD mandate and not an additional 
tax levied by the City or the MUD.  As a comparison, the proposed pumpage fee of $2.38 is less than the City of 
Rosenberg at $2.60, City of Richmond at $2.42, and North Fort Bend Water Authority at $4.30. 
 
Per the recommendations from the City’s financial consultant and staff, this proposed rate change (increase) will 
enable the GRP Committee to obtain debt at a favorable rate to fund the planned Capital Improvement Project, 
while maintain a healthy operational reserve for any unforeseen contingencies.  City staff routinely meets with 
wholesale customers to inform them of GRP program updates.  Staff is also working on an outreach effort to keep 
residents\consumers informed about this upcoming rate change in collaboration with the City’s Communications 
Department.   
 

BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 
Funding 
Source 

Account Number Project 
Code/Name 

Proposed 
FY21 Funds 
Budgeted 

Proposed FY21 
Funds 
Available 

Amount to be 
Received yearly 

RWTP 
Revenue 

540-45524-01-
001- 
 

GRP Pumpage 
Fees 

$6,200,000 $6,200,000  

RWTP 
Revenue 

540-45540-01-
001- 

Groundwater 
User Fee 

$5,500,000 $5,500,000  

 
Purchasing Review:  Shannon Pleasant, CTPM, Procurement & Risk Manager 
Financial/Budget Review: Bertha P. Alexander, Budget & Financial Reporting Manager 
 
Note:  Compliance with the conflict of interest questionnaire requirements, if applicable, and the interested party 

disclosure requirements (HB 1295) has been confirmed/is pending within 30-days of this Council action 
and prior to execution. 

 
SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 
1. GRP Fee Analysis Summary- Schedule 9 
2. Ground Water User’s Fee Analysis  
3. Water Sources Map  
4. Resolution and Schedule of Fees 
5. Presentation 

 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Accept recommendations from the Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) Oversight Committee and adopt a 
resolution amending the utility schedule of fees to reflect the new GRP Pumpage fee, effective October 1, 2020.  
 
Director Approval:   Shashi K. Kumar, P.E. 
 
Assistant City Manager/   
City Manager Approval:  Glen A. Martel, ACM 



Schedule of Fees Utilities 2020.DOC  Page 1 of 3 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-20-__ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UTILITY SCHEDULE 
OF FEES; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
*         *                   *                *          * 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, 
TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  That applications for utility services and related permits and 
licenses shall be accompanied by a fee paid to the City in the amounts specified 
in the Schedule of Fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof. 
Additionally, City water customers and groundwater reduction plan participants 
shall pay groundwater reduction fees as required in the amounts specified in the 
Schedule of Fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof. 
 

Section  2. Resolution R-18-35 adopted September 17, 2018, is hereby 
repealed effective October 1, 2020.  

 
Section 3. This resolution shall become effective October 1, 2020.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this 21st 

day of September, 2020. 
 
 

 __________________________ 
 Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ __________________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 
  
 



Schedule of Fees Utilities 2020.DOC  Page 2 of 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

 
  DESCRIPTION          FEES 
 

I.  In General 
 

 

 A. Single-Family Residential Customer Water Tap 
 

 

  ¾ inch 
 

$1,600.00 

  1 inch 
 

 
$1,900.00 

  Greater than 1 inch Three times the actual cost 
of installing the tap, meter 

and necessary service lines 
and of repairing or restoring 

any yards, sidewalks, streets 
or other improvements 

affected by the installation 
 B. Multifamily Residential, Nontaxable and Commercial 

Water Tap 
 

 

  ¾ inch                                                         
 

$1,000.00 plus three times 
the cost to the city of 

installing the tap, meter and 
necessary service lines and 
of repairing or  restoring any 
yards, sidewalks, streets or 

other improvements affected 
by the installation 

  1 inch or greater 
                                                                            

$1,200 plus three times the 
cost to the city of installing 

the tap, meter and necessary 
service lines and of repairing 

or restoring any yards, 
sidewalks, streets or other 
improvements affected by 

the installation. 



Schedule of Fees Utilities 2020.DOC  Page 3 of 3 

 
II.  Multifamily Residential, Commercial and Nontaxable  

Customer Inspections 
 

 

 A. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and Nontaxable  
Customer Prefacility Inspection 
 

$175.00 

 B. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and Nontaxable  
Customer Prefacility Reinspection 

$75.00 

 C. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and Nontaxable  
Customer Facility Inspection 

$175.00 

 D. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and Nontaxable  
Customer Facility Reinspection 

$75.00 

III.  Sewer Connection Inspection or Reinspection  $125.00 
IV.  Grease Trap Inspection $75.00 
V.  Temporary Meters  
 A.  Installation fee $75.00 
 B. City Deposit $1000.00 
VI.  Miscellaneous Fees  
 A. Reconnection Fee $75.00 
 B. Transfer Fee $35.00 
 C. Security Deposit $150.00 
 D. Service Inspection $50.00 
    
VII.  Groundwater Reduction Plan Participation Fee  
 A. Non-converting GRP Pumpage Fee $1.79 per 1,000 gallons 

billed 
 B. Converting GRP Pumpage Fee $2.38 per 1,000 gallons 

billed 
VIII.  Industrial Waste Fee  
 A. Industrial User Connection Fee $175.00 
 B. Annual Industrial User Fee $1,000.00 

 



8/7/20 1

City	of	Missouri	City
Groundwater	Reduction	Plan
GRP	Fee	Analysis

Schedule	9
Pumpage	Fee	Projection

2020 Notes
Total	Cost	of	Surface	Water 10,469,164$										
Total	Cost	of	Groundwater 1,793,021														
				Total	System	Cost 12,262,185$										

Total	Estimated	Metered	Volume	(Ground	+	Surface) 5,144,250,414

Surface	Water	Pumpage	Fee 2.38$																						
				Less	Groundwater	User's	Fee (0.59)																							
Groundwater	Pumpage	Fee 1.79$																						

Cost	of	Groundwater:
				Groundwater	Production	Cost 0.59$																						
				Groundwater	Production	Projection 3,039,018,960						
Estimated	Annual	Groundwater		Production	Cost 1,793,021.19$						



Groundwater Reduction Program

Ground Water User's Fee Analysis

July 2020

Entity Cost/1,000 Gals
Active 

Wells

Gallons 

Produced 
Chemical Costs Electrical Costs 

Maintenance 

Costs

QVUD $0.57 3 451,194,000 $5,934.55 $98,467.81 $131,936.78

Palmer MUD 2 $0.67 1 116,460,000 $1,531.78 $25,416.04 $47,373.25

Palmer MUD 1 $0.64 1 127,171,000 $1,672.66 $27,753.58 $47,438.16

COMC Mustang Bayou $0.52 2 367,001,000 $4,827.16 $71,414.68 $95,559.07

Fort Bend MUD 42 $0.52 2 175,773,000 $2,319.08 $38,478.90 $45,738.36

Fort Bend MUD 26 $0.63 1 121,686,000 $1,600.55 $26,556.55 $47,404.92

Blue Ridge West MUD $0.63 1 245,962,000 $3,235.14 $53,678.34 $94,825.58

First Colony MUD 9 $0.54 2 333,222,000 $4,382.86 $72,721.81 $100,571.78

Fort Bend MUD 23 $0.62 4 497,858,000 $6,548.32 $108,651.68 $189,687.11

Totals $5.34 17 2,436,327,000 $32,052.10 $523,139.39 $800,535.01

2019 Average Cost per 1,000 Gallons (Jan. to Dec.)

Average Cost                

per 1,000 Gals
$0.59

This calculation was reached by evaluating twelve months (Jan. to Dec.) of monthly production operating statements 

data from 2019.  The attached data was taken from fourteen (14) GRP Participants groundwater well groupings.  Five 

(5) of the well groupings were then omitted from the final calculations because of data anomalies.  The final data set 

included nine (9) groundwater well groupings.            



3. Water Sources Map 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1820-__

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UTILITY SCHEDULE
OF FEES; REPEALING RESOLUTION R-13-25, ADOPTED ON
OCTOBER 21, 2013PROVIDING FOR REPEAL; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

*         *                   *                *          *

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY,
TEXAS:

Section 1.  That applications for utility services and related permits and
licenses shall be accompanied by a fee paid to the City in the amounts specified
in the Schedule of Fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof.
Additionally, City water customers and groundwater reduction plan participants
shall pay groundwater reduction fees as required in the amounts specified in the
Schedule of Fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof.

Section  2. Resolution R-1318-2535 adopted October 21,
2013,September 17, 2018, is hereby repealed effective NovemberOctober 1,
2018.2020.

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective NovemberOctober 1,
2018.2020.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on first and final reading this
17th21st day of September, 2018.2020.

__________________________
Allen OwenYolanda Ford, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_________________________ __________________________
Maria Jackson, City Secretary E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney

Schedule of Fees Utilities 2018.2020.09.16.DOC
Page 1 of 5



EXHIBIT “A”

SCHEDULE OF FEES

DESCRIPTION     FEES

I. In General

A. Single-Family Residential Customer Water Tap

¾ inch $1,600.00

1 inch
$1,900.00

Greater than 1 inch Three times the actual
cost of installing the tap,

meter and necessary
service lines and of

repairing or restoring any
yards, sidewalks, streets

or other improvements
affected by the installation

B. Multifamily Residential, Nontaxable and
Commercial Water Tap

¾ inch $1,000.00 plus three times
the cost to the city of

installing the tap, meter
and necessary service

lines and of repairing or
restoring any yards,

sidewalks, streets or other
improvements affected by

the installation
1 inch or greater $1,200 plus three times

the cost to the city of
installing the tap, meter
and necessary service

lines and of repairing or
restoring any yards,

sidewalks, streets or other
improvements affected by

the installation.

Schedule of Fees Utilities 2018.2020.09.16.DOC
Page 2 of 5



II. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and
Nontaxable  Customer Inspections

A. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and
Nontaxable  Customer Prefacility Inspection

$175.00

B. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and
Nontaxable  Customer Prefacility Reinspection

$75.00

C. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and
Nontaxable  Customer Facility Inspection

$175.00

D. Multifamily Residential, Commercial and
Nontaxable  Customer Facility Reinspection

$75.00

III. Sewer Connection Inspection or Reinspection $125.00
IV. Grease Trap Inspection $75.00
V. Temporary Meters

A. Installation fee $75.00
B. City Deposit $1000.00

VI. Miscellaneous Fees
A. Reconnection Fee $75.00
B. Transfer Fee $35.00
C. Security Deposit $150.00
D. Service Inspection $50.00

VII. Groundwater Reduction Plan Participation Fee
A. NonconvertingNon-converting GRP

ParticipationPumpage Fee
$1.721.79 per 1,000

gallons billed
B. Converting GRP ParticipationPumpage Fee $2.192.38 per 1,000

gallons billed
VIII. Industrial Waste Fee

A. Industrial User Connection Fee $175.00
B. Annual Industrial User Fee $1,000.00

Schedule of Fees Utilities 2018.2020.09.16.DOC
Page 3 of 5



Document comparison by Workshare 9.5 on Wednesday, September 16, 2020
11:44:49 AM

Input:

Document 1 ID
file://W:\Legal Department\Resolution\Schedule of
Fees\Finals\Schedule of Fees Utilities 2018.DOC

Description Schedule of Fees Utilities 2018

Document 2 ID
W:\Legal Department\Resolution\Schedule of
Fees\Drafts\Schedule of Fees Utilities 2020.09.16.DOC

Description
W:\Legal Department\Resolution\Schedule of
Fees\Drafts\Schedule of Fees Utilities 2020.09.16.DOC

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 18

Deletions 18

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 36



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Proposed Amended 
Pumpage Fees 

Groundwater 
Reduction Plan 



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Groundwater Reduction Plan Overview

 Fort Bend Subsidence District (FBSD) created by the Texas State Legislature in 1989

 FBSD prepared Groundwater Management Plan in 1998  

 The Plan sets forth the following five goals:

 Provide for the efficient use of groundwater

 Control and prevent subsidence

 Address surface water management 

 Address groundwater natural resource issues

2



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Groundwater Reduction Plan Overview

 Permittee required to submit a Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) to FBSD in 2008 

 City is the Administrator of the Missouri City GRP

 City formed a GRP Oversight Committee to address matters  

 City GRP includes Missouri City and all MUDs in Extra Territorial Jurisdiction 

 Fort Bend Subsidence District Mandates Groundwater Reduction

• 30% Reduction of Groundwater by 2013

• 60% Reduction of Groundwater by 2025

3



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

4



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant

 Built in 2012 with a plant capacity at 10 Million Gallons/Day (MGD)

 Current expansion project to 20 MGD (Phase II)

 Next expansion ~ 33 MGD (Phase III) ?

5



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Groundwater Reduction Plan Costs

 Daily Surface Water Treatment Plant Costs

• Purchase of raw water

• Operations 

• Maintenance 

 Annual Capital Improvement Projects Costs

• Engineering & Design  

• Construction  

 Fort Bend Subsidence District Mandate Costs

• Plant Expansions (Phases I, II, III, etc.)

6



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

FY2021 Pumpage Fee (Proposed) Overview

 GRP FY2021 Proposed Fee Analysis Criteria

 Evaluated actual data from FY2018 and FY2019

 Projected data for FY2020 thru FY2021

 Used FY2021 proposed budget with some adjustments 

7



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

FY2021 Data vs FY2018 Data

 Total expenses have increased by $1,848,652 (17%)

 FY2021 projected expenses are $12,482,930 

 Total projected revenue has increased by $1,385,049 (13%)

 FY2021 projected revenue required is $10,469,164

Bases for proposed rate increase 

8



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

FY2021 Data vs FY2018 Data

 Surface Water operational expenses have increased by $1,191,304 

 FY2021 projected expenses are $10,496,164

 Groundwater production cost has increased by $463,602

 FY2021 projected expenses are $1,793,021

Bases for proposed rate increase 

9



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Groundwater User’s Fee Analysis 10



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Pumpage Fee Calculation (Current Rate) 

Pumpage Fee =      Cost of Surface Water + Cost of Groundwater 
Volume (1,000 gallons) of Surface + Groundwater

Less the groundwater users fee ($0.47/1,000 gallons) for non-converting MUDs

Current Wholesale (Groundwater) pumpage fee is $1.72/1,000 Gallons
Current Surface Water pumpage fee is $2.19/1,000 Gallons

FBSD disincentive fee is $6.50/1,000 Gallons

11



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Pumpage Fee Calculation (Proposed Rate) 

Pumpage Fee =      Cost of Surface Water + Cost of Groundwater 
Volume (1,000 gallons) of Surface + Groundwater

Less the groundwater users fee ($0.59/1,000 gallons) for non-converting MUDs

Current Wholesale (Groundwater) pumpage fee is $1.79/1,000 Gallons
Current Surface Water pumpage fee is $2.31/1,000 Gallons

FBSD disincentive fee is $6.50/1,000 Gallons

12



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

GRP Pumpage Fees Comparison
($ per 1,000 gallons)

13



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

GRP Proposed Pumpage Fees
($ per 1,000 gallons)

14



THIS IS YOUR
PRESENTATION TITLE
By:  Presenter

Questions



 
the show me city 

Council Agenda Item  
September 21, 2020 

 
11. RESOLUTIONS  

(c) Consider a resolution authorizing the city manager to negotiate and execute licenses for locating 
mobile food units (food trucks) on certain City of Missouri property.  (Proposed presenter: 
Assistant City Manager Glen Martel) 

 
 

 

 
Background information attached as follows:  

Cover Memo – forthcoming 

Resolution  



1 Food Truck License Resolution 2020.doc  Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-20-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI 
CITY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE LICENSES FOR THE LOCATION OF MOBILE FOOD UNITS 
(FOOD TRUCKS) ON CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS RELATING THERETO.  

*    *      *     *     * 
WHEREAS, Strategic Goal Number 1 of the City of Missouri City, Texas (the "City"), 

is to create a great place to live; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that allowing mobile food units (food trucks) to locate on 
City property to serve the public provides the residential areas near the City Hall with 
additional food options; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 253.001 of the Texas Local Government Code, the 
governing body of a municipality may sell and convey an interest in land that the 
municipality owns, holds, or claims as the city hall; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
residents of the City to temporarily license a portion of the City’s city hall complex to food 
truck vendors; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Resolution are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct.    

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 
temporary licenses, which shall be in a form substantially similar to the license form 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” with mobile food unit vendors for the location of mobile food 
units on the grass and paved areas depicted in Exhibit “B.” The location of such units 
within the area depicted in Exhibit “B” shall be determined by the city manager based on 
cost to the City, feasibility and potential interference with governmental functions. 

Section 3. The fee for a license authorized by this Resolution shall be $__ per 
square foot licensed.   

Section 4. The officers and employees of the City are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute such instruments and take such actions as are consistent with the 
provisions of this Resolution.  

Section 5. Repeal. All resolutions or parts of resolutions, if any, in conflict herewith, 
shall be and are expressly repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 6. Severability.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part 
of this Resolution or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for 



1 Food Truck License Resolution 2020.doc  Page 2 of 2 
 

any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Resolution as a whole or any part or 
provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City 
Council of the City of Missouri City, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and 
every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any part thus declared to be invalid 
or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 21st day of September, 2020. 
  

 
_______________________ 

         Yolanda Ford, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________               _______________________ 
Maria Jackson, City Secretary     E. Joyce Iyamu, City Attorney 
 



 

1 Ex A SAMPLE Food Truck License Form 2020.docx   Page 1 of 5 
 

  MOBILE FOOD VENDOR LICENSE  

 

 

LICENSOR: 

The City of Missouri City, Texas 

 

LICENSOR'S MAILING ADDRESS: 

 1522 Texas Parkway 

 Missouri City, TX 77489 

 

LICENSEE: 

 ____________________ 

 

LICENSEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: 

 ____________________ 

 ____________________ 

 ____________________ 

 

CONSIDERATION: 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROPERTY: 

A license for temporary mobile food vending purposes (the “License”) over a portion of 
the Licensor’s property located at 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas, in the area 
depicted on EXHIBIT “A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, 
containing approximately ______ square feet, more or less (the “Property”), said Property 
being more particularly depicted on EXHIBIT “B” attached hereto and made a part 
hereof.  

LICENSE: 

Licensor, for the consideration, hereby grants a License over the Property to Licensee. 



 

1 Ex A SAMPLE Food Truck License Form 2020.docx   Page 2 of 5 
 

DURATION:  

The duration of the License will be  _____ hours, beginning at ____ :____ AM/PM on the 
_____ day of _______________, 202_____, and ending at ____ :____ AM/PM on the 
_____ day of _______________, 202_____ (the “Duration Period”). 

 

LIMITED USE:  

The Licensed Property shall be used only for mobile food vending purposes.  All activities 
related to Licensee’s use of the Property, including but not limited to set-up and take-
down, shall occur and be limited to the Duration Period. Licensee shall not access the 
Property prior to the start of the Duration Period, nor remain on the Property past the end 
of the Duration Period. 

Licensee may temporarily access the surface of the Property as provided by this License.  
Licensee may enter upon the Property to engage in such activities as may be necessary 
and appropriate in connection with its use of the License for mobile food vending purposes 
only.  Licensee may bring and operate such equipment on the Property as may be 
necessary or appropriate for the purposes for which the License is granted. However, all 
of Licensee’s equipment, supplies, inventory and merchandise must be located totally 
within the boundaries of the Property as depicted in EXHIBIT “B” and shall be removed 
from the Property daily during the Duration Period. 

Licensee shall be solely responsible for providing all materials, supplies, provisions, 
inventory, equipment and merchandise it needs to conduct its activities permitted under 
this License.   

Licensee shall not engage in any activity not directly related to the preparation, sale and 
distribution of food and drink for human consumption while on the Property.  Licensee is 
strictly prohibited from any activity of a political nature while on the Property, including but 
not limited to, the distribution of politically themed pamphlets, brochures, flyers, cards, 
pins, balloons, or any other object of a political nature, the placement of political signs 
and posters, or otherwise promoting, supporting or endorsing any political party or 
candidate for a national, state, county or local elected position while on the Property. 

In connection with its use of the Property pursuant to this License, Licensee shall comply 
with all City ordinances and State laws that regulate the processing, handling, distribution 
and sale of food and drink products. 

If the City Manager, or his designee, determine that Licensee is not in compliance with 
the terms of the License, he may revoke this License immediately, and require that the 
Licensee vacate and stop any further activity on the Property. 

 

LICENSEE, FOR ITSELF AND ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, HEREBY 
RELEASES AND DISCHARGES LICENSOR AND  AGREES THAT IT WILL PROTECT, 



 

1 Ex A SAMPLE Food Truck License Form 2020.docx   Page 3 of 5 
 

DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS LICENSOR, ITS SUCCESSORS, 
ASSIGNS, ELECTED OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND CONTRCTORS 
FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES OR INJURIES TO 
PERSONS OR PROPERTY, COSTS OR EXPENSES (COLLECTIVELY,  “CLAIMS” ) 
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LICENSE OR ANY OF THE 
RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS ARISING THEREFROM.     

 

 IN ADDITION TO EACH INSURANCE POLICY REQUIRED AND SET OUT 
BELOW, LICENSEE’S CONTRACTORS SHALL PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN IN FULL 
FORCE AND EFFECT INSURANCE IN AN AMOUNT COMMENSURATE WITH THE 
WORK TO BE PROVIDED BY SUCH CONTRACTOR, BUT IN NO CASE SHALL THE 
AMOUNT BE LESS THAN $___________ PER OCCURRENCE. LICENSEE’S 
CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL PROVIDE COPIES OF SUCH INSURANCE CERTIFICATES 
TO LICENSEE. 

 

Insurance.  (1) Without intending limit Licensee’s liability under the indemnification 
provisions set forth above, whenever Licensee or any of its contractors or subcontractors 
is accessing the Property pursuant to this License, Licensee shall ensure that any such 
person or entity is maintaining at least the following insurance: 

 

(a) Worker’s Compensation at statutory limits; 

 

(b) Employer’s Liability, including bodily injury by accident and by disease, for 
$500,000 combined single limit per occurrence and a twelve (12)-month aggregate policy 
limit of $1,000,000;  

 

(c) Commercial General Liability Coverage, including blanket contractual liability, 
products and completed operations, personal injury, bodily injury, broad form property 
damage, operations hazard, pollution, explosion, collapse and underground hazards for 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and a twelve (12) month aggregate policy limit of $2,000,000; 
and 

 

(d) Automobile Liability Insurance (for automobiles used by Licensee in the course of 
its performance under this Agreement, including employer’s non-ownership and hired 
auto coverage) for $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence.   

 



 

1 Ex A SAMPLE Food Truck License Form 2020.docx   Page 4 of 5 
 

The insurance coverage required hereunder shall be evidenced by one or more 
certificates of insurance, which shall be provided to Licensor prior to access to the 
Property by Licensee, its employees, agents or contractors, as appropriate.    

 

The issuer of any policy must have a certificate of authority to transact insurance business 
in the State of Texas issued by the Texas Board of Insurance and a rating of at least A 
and a financial size of Class VI or better in the most current edition of Best’s Insurance 
Reports. Each issuer must be responsible and reputable and must have financial 
capability consistent with the risks covered. 

 

Each policy, except those for Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability, must 
name Licensor as an additional insured.    

 

Licensee shall assume and bear any claims or losses falling under or within any 
deductible amounts under any insurance policy responsive to the requirements of this 
Agreement and waives any claim it may ever have for the same against Licensor.   

 

Each policy must contain an endorsement to the effect that the issuer waives any claim 
or right in the nature of subrogation to recover against Licensor. 

 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement, in multiple counterparts, 
each of which is deemed to be an original, to become effective on the date of 
countersignature by the City. 

 

[Signature pages follow]  



 

1 Ex A SAMPLE Food Truck License Form 2020.docx   Page 5 of 5 
 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, Licensor and Licensee have made and executed this License in 

multiple copies, each of which is an original. 

EXECUTION BY LICENSOR 

 

CITY OF MISSOURI CITY, TEXAS, 
a home-rule municipality 
 
 
               Date:                                                    
Odis Jones, City Manager    
 
 
 

EXECUTION BY LICENSEE 

 

LICENSEE’S NAME ____________________________________________________ 

________________________________________ 

________________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

 

By:  

Name: __________________________________ 

Title: ___________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By:____________________________________ 

      Joseph N. Quintal, Assistant City Attorney  





 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   the show me city 

 

Council Agenda Item  
September 21, 2020 

 
 

12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Councilmembers, and 

City staff, for which no formal action will be discussed or taken. 
 

13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The City Council may go into Executive Session regarding any item posted on the Agenda as 

authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
 

14. RECONVENE 
Reconvene into Regular Session and Consider Action, if any, on items discussed in Executive 

Session. 
 
15. ADJOURN 

 
 

 
 


	September 21, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda
	1. ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. STAFF REPORTS
	6a: September 8, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes
	6a: September 8, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	6b: Cover Memo re Extension of MC TIRZ 2 to 2049
	Ordinance

	6c: Cover Memo re Amendment of MC TIRZ 2 Project and Financing Plan
	Ordinance

	6d: Cover Memo re City's Drug-Free Workplace Policy Testing Procedures
	Ordinance

	6e: Cover Memo re TMRS
	Ordinance
	TMRS Rate Letter

	6f: Cover Memo re Wells Fargo Bank for Despository Services
	Extension to Depository Contract
	Original Depository Contract

	6g: Cover Memo re Taxpayer request for wavier of penalty and interest on property taxes for the 2019 tax year
	Request packet from County Tax Assessor-Collector

	7a1: Cover Memo re FBISD Elementary School site #53 (20-acre tract) - SUP, Specific Use Permit
	Ordinance
	Planning and Zoning Commission final report
	Ortho map
	Ortho map with site plan overlay
	Conceptual building perspective, material and color designation
	Notice of public hearing
	Notice of public hearing to adjoining property owners
	Protest-support letter
	Mailing labels for adjoining property owners
	Rezoning application protest letters analysis

	7b1: Cover Memo re Approval and adoption of the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, andending September 30, 2021
	Ordinance
	FY 2021 Consolidated All Funds Summary
	General Fund Revenue, Expenditures & Fund Balances
	Budget Comparison by Fund
	City Manager Budget Transmittal Letter

	7b2: Cover Memo re Public Hearing: Sienna MUDs 1, 5, 6, and 7 SPA Amendment No. 1
	Proposed amendments
	Resolutions of support for exclusion from Fort Bend County Emergency Services District No. 7

	7b3: Cover Memo re Public hearing on the limited purpose annexation of Sienna Municipal Utility Districts1, 5, 6, and 7
	August 17, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes
	Fort Bend Independent Published Notice of Hearing
	Map

	8a: Cover Memo re Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP) Board of Trustees
	9a: Cover Memo re Proposed contract with Republic Masonry & FencingLLC for the Corridor Enhancements Monument Signs Project
	Engineer Recommendation
	Bid Tabulation
	Project Location Map

	9b: Cover Memo re CARES ACT- Air Regulators
	HGAC Buy Contract Pricing Worksheet
	Approved Project list

	9c: Cover Memo re Negotiation and execution of a bed maintenance contract
	Bid Tabulation Sheet

	10a: Cover Memo re Ad Valorem Tax Rate
	Ordinance
	Certified Appraisal Roll – Harris County
	Certified Appraisal Roll – Fort Bend County
	Tax Rate Notice

	11a: Cover Memo re Establishment of programs and the use of funds for such programs to address COVID-19
	Resolution

	11b: Cover Memo re Utilitiy Schedule of Fees 
	Resolution
	GRP Fee Analysis Summary- Schedule 9
	Ground Water User’s Fee Analysis
	Water Sources Map
	Resolution and Schedule of Fees
	Presentation

	11c: Fly Sheet re Mobile Food Units (Food Trucks)
	Resolution

	12. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS
	13. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION
	14. RECONVENE
	15. ADJOURN



